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Chairman’s Statement

..........................................................

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board"”) of Universe International Financial Holdings Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby present the 2017/2018 annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2018 (the “Year").

The Group is principally engaged in video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
entertainment business, securities investment, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products, watches and
jewellery products. The Group ceased the business of China
Jianxin Financial Services Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was principally engaged
in securities brokerage and margin financing (“Securities
Brokerage Business”) with effect from 30th June 2018.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$135.4
million for the Year, representing an increase of approximately
18.3% as compared to the net loss of approximately HK$114.5
million for the same period last year, which was mainly due to
the net effect of (i) a fair value loss arising from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$108.6
million for the Year in securities investments business segment
compared to a fair value gain arising from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$12.7
million for the same period last year; (ii) the loss from the
discontinued operation of the provision of securities brokerage
services and securities margin financing business (the
“Securities Brokerage Business”) of approximately HK$59.3
million for the Year as compared to profit of approximately
HK$8.9 million for the same period last year; (iii) the increase
of the segmental profit from video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights from
approximately HK$31.3 million for the year ended 30th June
2017 to approximately HK$129.0 million for the Year; and (iv)
the decrease of impairment loss of available-for-sale financial
assets from approximately HK$89.6 million for the year ended
30th June 2017 to approximately HK$23.8 million for the Year.
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The Group's result for the Year were affected by the unfavour
market conditions in the financial markets in Hong Kong and
the unsatisfactory performance of certain investments of the
Group. Looking forward, the financial and investment markets
are continuing affected by the US-China trade war, rising
interest rates, less-easy monetary policy and a strengthening
U.S. dollar with ripple effects across the world. In view of
the above, the Group will focus on its current business to
maximize the return of the shareholders.

As announced on 31st July 2018, the Board proposes to
change the existing name of the Company from “Universe
International Financial Holdings Limited” to “Universe
Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited” and to
adopt "EFIRLE (L EEBRAF]" as the secondary name
in Chinese of the Company to replace its existing secondary
name in Chinese "BEF BB & @IEARBRAF" (the “Change
of Company Name"). The Change of Company Name provides
the Company with a better identification and strengthen the
Company’s corporate image, which will benefit the Company’s
future business development. The Change of Company
Name was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 17th September
2018 and the Group will further announce the effective date
of the Change of Company Name.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors
and our staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to
the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank all our
customers and shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE W& DT

..........................................................

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$135.4
million for the Year, representing an increase of approximately
18.3% as compared to the net loss of approximately HK$114.5
million for the same period last year, which was mainly due
to the net effect of (i) a fair value loss arising from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$108.6 million for the Year in the securities investment
business segment as compared to a fair value gain arising
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$12.7 million for the same period last year;
(i) the loss from the discontinued operation of the Securities
Brokerage Business of approximately HK$59.3 million for
the Year as compared to the profit of approximately HK$8.9
million for the same period last year; (iii) the increase of the
segmental profit from video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights from
approximately HK$31.3 million for the year ended 30th June
2017 to approximately HK$129.0 million for the Year; and (iv)
the decrease of impairment loss of available-for-sale financial
assets from approximately HK$89.6 million for the year ended
30th June 2017 to approximately HK$23.8 million for the Year.

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights, and change in the use of
proceeds under the Disposal of the Film Library

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$41.0 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 70.5% as compared to approximately
HK$138.8 million in the same period last year. It accounted
for approximately 47.3% (2017: approximately 70.9%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year. The decrease in revenue was
mainly due to the absence of the large scale self-produced
film during the Year, while one large scale self-produced film
titled “Shock Wave"” (#7538 E ) was released during the year
ended 30th June 2017.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 9th
January 2017 and the Company's circular dated 24th February
2017, Universe Films Distribution Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Film Library Disposal Agreement”)
to dispose of 202 feature films (the “Film Library”) conditionally
at a consideration of approximately RMB178,895,000, subject
to possible adjustment as set out in the Film Library Disposal
Agreement (the “Disposal of Film Library”). The Film Library
Disposal Agreement was completed on 21st September
2017 and prior to completion, the cost of the Film Library had
almost been fully amortised in previous years. After deducting
other related expenses, the Company recorded a gain on the
Disposal of the Film Library of approximately HK$182.1 million
for the Year (2017: Nil). In addition, the Company also recorded
directors and staff bonus of approximately HK$35.6 million
(2017: approximately HK$22.0 million) for the gain on the
Disposal of the Film Library for the Year.

The Group originally intended to utilise the net proceeds from
the Disposal of the Film Library for further development of
the margin financing business of the Group. However, due to
the cessation of the Securities Brokerage Business on 30th
June 2018 as further elaborated below, the usage of the net
proceeds from the Disposal of the Film Library was changed
to general working capital of the Group during the Year. The
Board believes that the above change of the usage of the net
proceeds from the Disposal of the Film Library enables the
Group to increase the efficiency in the use of the Group's
cash resources. On such basis, the Board considers that the
above change is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Segmental profit from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$129.0 million, representing an increase
of approximately 312.1% as compared to approximately
HK$31.3 million in the same period last year. The increase in
segmental profit is mainly due to the net effect of (i) gain from
the Disposal of the Film Library of approximately HK$182.1
million (2017: Nil); and (ii) the payment of the directors and staff
bonus of approximately HK$35.6 million (2017: approximately
HK$22.0 million) for the gain on the Disposal of the Film Library
for the Year.
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The China’s culture and entertainment industry is on track
for speedy development, the Group will continue to adopt a
cautious approach to produce and license new films in coming
years.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical products,
watches and jewellery products

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$28.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 39.5% as compared to approximately HK$46.6
million in the same period in last year. Revenue from this
business segment included the revenue of approximately
HK$5.3 million (2017: approximately HK$6.9 million) from
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products from
2 (2017: 2) optical retail shops under the name of "X R
Hong Kong Optical” in Hong Kong (“Optical Business”) and
the revenue of approximately HK$22.9 million (2017:
approximately HK$39.7 million) from trading, wholesaling
and retailing of watches and jewellery products (“Watches
Business”) from 10 (2017: 13) retail shops in the PRC. It
accounted for approximately 32.6% (2017: approximately
23.8%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.

In response to the unfavorable retail market environment
in prior years, the Group closed down the non-performing
retail shops and decreased the wholesales operation scale
during the Year. As a result, the revenue from this segment
decreased.

Segmental loss from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$12.4 million, representing an decrease
of approximately 55.4% as compared to approximately
HK$27.8 million in the same period last year. The decrease in
segmental loss is mainly due to the net effect of the decrease
of gross profit of approximately HK$8.8 million as a result of
the decrease in revenue and the absence of the impairment
losses on the goodwill attributable to Watches Business and
the Optical Business of approximately HK$23.0 million for the
year ended 30th June 2017.

The retail sentiment showed a sign of improving in 2018, the
Group will take a cautious approach to open new retail shops
with good prospects to increase the revenue and improve the
profitability of this business segment.
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Securities investments

Below is a table setting out the list of the financial assets at
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fair value through profit or loss which the Directors consider EFRAAKEMFHBEAN 2 EBER
as material held by the Group as at 30th June 2018: ERAFEARZEREETS XK
Percentage to Percentage to
total issued the Group's
share capital total financial
of the investee Percentageto  Percentageto  assets at fair Unrealised Dividend
company as the Group's  the Group's  value through  gain/(loss)on  income for
Number of ~ at 30th June Market value as total assetsas  net assetsas profit or loss as change in the Year
Name of Place of shares held 2018 at30th June  at30th June  at 30th June at30th June  fair value for from such
investee company  Notes incorporation by the Group (Note 1) 2018 2018 2018 2018 the Year  investment
g
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RRENAER B EmAIeE  RAEA (MH3E1) ZhfE ZBEAR ZEAL  BEZEAE  WE/(FB)  ZREKA
(approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately
%) HK$'000) %) %) %) HK$'000) HK$'000)
(Ba%) (HaTiET) (B 41%) (H4%) (Ba%) HoHTET) HHTET)
Hong Kong Exchanges 2 Hong Kong 100,000 Less than 1 23,600.0 22 26 478 4433 Iy
and Clearing Limited
EERGREER B 3
ERAA
China Construction 3 PRC 2,000,000 Less than 1 14,500.0 13 16 294 1844 -
Bank Corporation
HEARRRARHG Gl TR
ERAA
First Credit Finance 4 Bermuda 150,000,000 41 94510 09 1.0 19.1 (79,050.0) 298
Group Limited
Z-EReRE BRE
ERAA
47,551.0 44 52 96.3 (78,422.3) 439
Notes: B 5E -
1. The percentage is calculated with reference to the then latest 1. ZA DL NZEZEH ARSI ABERA

A2 )@EE EARATEREKRER
ARZZE-NFRA=ZTHENERFEHN
AKX (ER)FTE -

monthly return as at 30th June 2018 of the investee company
publicly available on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") (where applicable).
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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEX") is
principally engaged in the operation of stock exchanges.
The shares of HKEX (stock code: 388) are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. As disclosed in the latest annual
report of HKEX, the revenue of the HKEX was approximately
HK$11,574 million for the year ended 31st December 2017
(2016: approximately HK$10,398 million), representing an
increase of approximately 11.3% compared to the same period
in last year. HKEX recorded a profit for the year of approximately
HK$7,355 million for the year ended 31st December 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$5,741 million), representing an increase of
approximately 28.1% compared to the same period in last year.

As disclosed in the latest interim report of HKEX for the six
months period ended 30th June 2018, facing a rapidly changing
financial landscape, HKEX continued its effort to ensure that its
stock market stays relevant and competitive. In April 2018, HKEX
implemented its largest listing reform in 25 years to facilitate
listing of companies from emerging and innovative sectors while
ensuring appropriate safeguards for investor protection. HKEX
were glad to see the listing of the first company under the new
regime in early July 2018. To further enhance overall market
quality, HKEX announced amendments to the Listing Rules on
capital raisings and delisting in May 2018 and to the Corporate
Governance Code in July 2018, following market consultations
in 2017. HKEX also launched a market consultation in June
2018 to seek views on proposed Listing Rule amendments to
address concerns about backdoor listings and shell activities.
The expansion of Stock Connect’s daily quota in May 2018,
along with the inclusion of A shares in the MSCl indices in June
2018, provided a catalyst for raising international interest in
Mainland China's financial markets. To capitalise on the growing
opportunities ahead, HKEX continued to enhance its product
portfolio during the first half of this year. Equity Index Options
were included in the after-hours trading of our Derivatives
Market in May 2018 to provide market users with more choice
and greater flexibility for risk management and investment.
HKEX also extended the contract months and strikes available
for HSI and HSCEI Futures and Options, introduced new single
stock futures and options contracts and MSCI Asia ex Japan
Index Futures, and enhanced its USD/CNH Futures with new
contract month and calendar spreads. In London, the London
Metal Exchange (LME), introduced its updated financial OTC
booking fee policy and enhanced trading regulations, following
market consultation in November 2017. HKEX were then looking
to launch several new contracts, including LME precious options,
while working to expand its precious metals, aluminium, ferrous
metals and battery materials markets.
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China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB") is a commercial
bank. CCB operates its businesses through corporate banking
businesses, including corporate deposit, corporate credit loan,
asset custody, enterprise annuity, trade financing, international
settlement, international financing and value-added services,
among others, personal banking businesses, including personal
deposit, loan, bank card services, private bank services, foreign
exchange trading and gold trading services, among others, and
capital business. CCB operates its businesses in domestic and
overseas markets. The shares of CCB (stock code: 939) are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. As disclosed in
the latest annual report of CCB, the operating income of the CCB
was approximately RMB594,031 million for the year ended 31st
December 2017 (2016: approximately RMB559,860 million),
representing an increase of approximately 6.1% compared to
the same period in last year. CCB recorded a profit for the year
of approximately RMB243,615 million for the year ended 31st
December 2017 (2016: approximately RMB232,389 million),
representing an increase of approximately 4.8% compared to
the same period in last year.

As disclosed in the latest interim announcement of CCB for the
six months period ended 30th June 2018. CCB would actively
cope with the complicated economic and financial situations,
adhere to stable operation and innovative development,
deepen the refined management and the application of the
“New Generation” core system, so as to actively serve the real
economy and people’s livelihood, and help maintain China's
financial stability as a large state-owned bank. CCB would
focus on the following tasks: Firstly, it would strengthen overall
management and coordination to maintain balanced growth
of assets and liabilities. Secondly, it would further promote
comprehensive proactive risk management, with focus on
strengthening anticipatory risk management. Thirdly, it would
actively promote the implementation of its strategies, with
innovated business development models. CCB would promote
the development of its housing leasing business, and provide
CCB'’s solutions for “easy dwelling”. Meanwhile, it would fully
carry out its inclusive finance service to provide support to
“happy working”. Furthermore, it would leverage fintech to
accelerate its development, and build an open platform for
“sharing”. Fourthly, it would uphold the priority of its retail
business development, and achieve advantages in transactional
businesses, so as to enhance the competitiveness of its financial
services. Fifthly, it would enhance its refined management
mechanism, and raise the Bank’'s operating efficiency and
quality.
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First Credit Finance Group Limited (“First Credit”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in money lending business
and securities trading business. The shares of First Credit
(stock code: 8215) are listed on GEM. As disclosed in the
latest annual report of First Credit, the revenue of the First
Credit was approximately HK$116.2 million for the year ended
31st December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$81.6 million),
representing an increase of approximately 42.4% compared to
the same period in last year. First Credit recorded a profit for
the year of approximately HK$52.9 million for the year ended
31st December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$33.6 million),
representing an increase of approximately 57.4% compared to
the same period in last year.

In connection with the re-focusing of the Group’s business
operations as announced on 25th May 2016, the Company
decided to change the purpose of holding First Credit from
short-term trading to long term investments. For the purpose
of complying with the applicable accounting standards, the
securities investments of First Credit were included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as current assets in the
consolidated balance sheet for the accounting purpose despite
the purpose of holding is a long-term investment.

On 24th November 2017, First Credit announced that the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC")
had exercised its powers under Section 8(1) of the Securities
and Futures (Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V of the
Laws of Hong Kong) to direct the Stock Exchange to suspend
all dealings in the shares of First Credit with effect from 9:00
a.m. on 24th November 2017. Based on the business valuation
report issued by an independent professional valuer which was
not connected with the Group, the fair value of the shares of
First Credit was approximately HK$0.063 per shares as at 30th
June 2018.

As disclosed in the latest interim report of First Credit for the six
months period ended 30th June 2018, First Credit was proactively
exploring further potential investment opportunities, including
but not limited to investments in bonds, debt instruments, listed
equity securities or project-based investments, subject to the
prevailing market condition and taking into account the interest
of First Credit and its shareholders as a whole. Looking forward,
with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders and
enhance its position in the competitive industry, First Credit
would continue to strive for maintaining revenue growth and
credit quality on the basis of its experience in money lending
business. In consideration of the potential development of
the securities market, First Credit would consider exploring
the possibility of other securities related business apart from
the provision of securities brokerage services. Meanwhile,
First Credit would closely monitor its capital base and ensure
sufficient funding is maintained through various means to
capture and support different potential opportunities.
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The Group had recorded a fair value loss arising from the
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$108.6 million for the Year
while the Group recorded a fair value gain arising from the
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$12.7 million for the same
period in last year. Such loss was mainly attributable to the
poor performance of certain investments during the Year. In
particular, the investments in the shares of First Credit recorded
the fair value loss of approximately HK$79.1 million during the
Year. In addition, the Group disposed 173.6 million shares of
Leap Holdings Group Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499)
and recorded a realized loss of approximately HK$15.6 million
during the Year. As a result, the overall segment loss of the
securities investment segment was approximately HK$108.4
million (2017: segment gain of approximately HK$12.0 million)
during the Year.

Available-for-sale financial assets
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Cassia Investment Limited Partnership Il (“Cassia I1”) is an
exempted limited partnership established in accordance with
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of Cayman Islands
offering limited partnership interests for the purpose of
obtaining capital appreciation through making private equity
investments mainly in the consumer sector across Greater
China and South East Asia, as well as in non-Asian enterprises
that have a strong exposure to Asian consumers market. Cassia
Il intends to target companies that it believes will benefit from
the growing disposable income of the Asian middle class and
can capture the behavioural consumer trends that follow such
growing household wealth and structured equity transactions
primarily in Greater China, Thailand, Indonesia, Vietnam and the
Philippines. Cassia Il will have a target size of US$60,000,000
(approximately HK$465.0 million) and the Group committed
to subscribe the limited partnership interest of Cassia Il of
US$9 million (approximately HK$69.7 million) and transferred
the subscription commitment of approximately US$1.1 million
to another investor (approximately HK$8.5 million) during the
Year. Up to 30th June 2018, the Group has subscribed for the
limited partnership interest of Cassia Il of approximately US$7.9
million (approximately HK$61.2 million).

Promising Social Media Private Equity Fund (the “PSM Fund”)
is a close-ended investment fund incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 5th February 2014 under the laws of the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. The
PSM Fund is not a regulated mutual fund for the purposes of
the Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
principal investment objective of the PSM Fund is to maximize
capital growth through investing businesses which are engaged
in or derive a significant proportion of their income from the
field of social media. The PSM Fund commenced operation on
29th April 2015. Due to the uncertainty in the prospects of this
investment, the carrying amount of the Group's investment
in PSM Fund of approximately HK$17.3 million was impaired
during the Year.
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3. Hydra Capital SPC — Class A#1 Share (“Hydra Capital”) is an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability and
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the laws
of the Cayman Islands established for the purpose of making
investments on behalf of its portfolios where its principal
investments are internet related and mobile application in Asia.
As at 30th June 2018, the Group held 5,500 shares (30th June
2017: same) in Hydra Capital, representing approximately 24.6 %
of the total issued shares of Hydra Capital of 22,400 shares. One
of the significant investments of Hydra Capital is the holding
of approximately 20.2% equity interest in a PRC-based mobile
gaming company (“Mobile Gaming Company”) mainly engaging
in development, distribution, operation and marketing of mobile
online games and software and provision of technical and
consulting services in PRC as well as overseas location including
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Japan, Korea and Southeast Asia.
According to the information provided by Hydra Capital, the
revenue and loss of the Mobile Gaming Company for the year
ended 31st December 2017 was approximately RMB16.5 million
and approximately RMB16.8 million respectively, representing a
decrease of 74.1% and an increase of 123% compared to those
of last year. As a result, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment in Hydra Capital of approximately HK$6.5 million
was impaired during the Year.

Total impairment loss of approximately HK$23.8 million was
recognised during the Year (2017: approximately HK$89.6
million), which was mainly due to the decrease in the fair value
of the investment in PSM Fund of approximately HK$17.3
million and the decrease in the fair value of the investment in
Hydra Capital of approximately HK$6.5 million during the Year.

Looking forward, the financial and investment markets are
continually affected by the US-China trade war, rising interest
rates, less-easy monetary policy and a strengthening U.S.
dollar with ripple effects across the world. The Group will
take a cautious approach in managing the investment portfolio
with the aim to reduce the risk and achieve a better return
to the Group.
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Money lending business

The Group engaged in money lending business in Hong
Kong during the Year. As at 30th June 2018, the Group had
(i) loans receivable of approximately HK$57.1 million (2017:
approximately HK$75.9 million), and (ii) loan to an associate
of HK$2.5 million (2017: approximately HK$5 million) under
the money lending business and recognized interest income
(excluded inter-segment sales) of approximately HK$7.3
million (2017: approximately HK$5.9 million). The increase
in interest income was mainly due to the increase in the
average loan portfolio amount during the Year. It accounted
for approximately 8.4% (2017: approximately 3.0%) of the
Group’'s revenue during the Year. Loans receivable are
interest bearing at rates ranging from 3% to 20% per annum
(2017: 7% to 20% per annum). The segment profit of this
business segment was approximately HK$6.0 million (2017:
approximately HK$322,000) during the Year. The increase in
segmental profit was mainly due to the increase of interest
income during the Year and the implementation of cost control
and decrease in operating expenses during the Year.

The market competition of the money lending industry in Hong
Kong is increasing during recent years, the Group will take a
cautious approach and keep the current scale in running the
money lending business in Hong Kong in coming year.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.0 million (2017: approximately
HK$1.0 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted
for approximately 1.2% (2017: approximately 0.5%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was approximately
HK$4.7 million (2017: approximately HK$877,000) during the
Year. The increase in segment profit is due to the increase in
fair value of investment properties of approximately HK$3.8
million (2017: Nil) during the Year. There were no additions
or disposals of the investment properties during the Year.
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Entertainment business

This segment primarily relates to artiste and model
management and organisation of concerts. Revenue from
this business segment during the Year was approximately
HK$9.1 million (2017: approximately HK$3.4 million). It
accounted for approximately 10.5% (2017: approximately
1.7%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year. The increase
in revenue was mainly due to the increase of the income from
organization of concert by approximately HK$2.6 million and
the increase of income from artiste and model management
by approximately HK$1.7 million during the Year. Segmental
profit of approximately of HK$2.9 million was recorded during
the Year (2017: segmental loss of approximately HK$2.0
million). The increase in profit from this segment was due to
the increase in turnover and decrease in operating expenses
during the Year.

Discontinued operation — Securities Brokerage
Business

The Company engaged in the Securities Brokerage Business
through its wholly owned subsidiary China Jianxin Financial
Services Limited (“China Jianxin Financial”). China Jianxin
Financial is a company licensed under the Securities and
Future Ordinance (the “SFO") to carry out Type 1 (dealing
in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities, the principal activities of which were provision of
securities brokerage services and securities margin financing
to clients for the Year.
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References are made to the Company’s 2017 annual report
dated 29th September 2017, the Company’s 2017/2018
interim report dated 27th February 2018 and the Company’s
announcement dated 17th May 2018, in which it was
mentioned that, among other things, in late June 2017, there
was a sharp decline in the share price of certain stocks held
by China Jianxin Financial as collateral securities for its margin
clients, with the percentage decline in share price of such
stocks ranging from 35% to approximately 89% (the “June
Incident”). As a result of the June Incident, a number of China
Jianxin Financial's accounts receivable arising from Securities
Brokerage Business became under collateralized and its excess
liquid capital also decreased. China Jianxin Financial thus made
margin calls with its margin loan clients. Following the June
Incident and the deterioration of China Jianxin Financial's
margin loans during and after the June Incident and the related
significant drop in its liquid capital, China Jianxin Financial
received a letter from the SFC, wherein the SFC, among other
things, had identified certain deficiencies of China Jianxin
Financial's margin loan operations and its failure to comply
with certain requirements under the Code of Conduct. In this
connection, the SFC had instructed China Jianxin Financial to
refrain from providing further margin lending or other form of
financial accommodation to clients until it had fully complied
with the applicable Code of Conduct requirements. The SFC
had also instructed China Jianxin Financial to prevent further
deterioration of its financial position, including maintaining
sufficient cash reserves to maintain its business operations for
areasonable amount of time, ceasing to apply imprudent margin
lending practices, and tightening and formalising its margin
lending policy. China Jianxin Financial undertook to the SFC to
implement the measures required by the SFC to address the
identified deficiencies and risk concerns satisfactorily within a
reasonable period of time, failure of which would result in the
SFC taking further action including the imposition of conditions
on China Jianxin Financial’s licence. The management of China
Jianxin Financial has already commenced addressing some
of the identified deficiencies and risk concerns of the SFC.
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Consequently, the revenue (included the inter-segment
sales) from the Securities Brokerage Business decreased
by approximately 73.3% to HK$9.6 million for the Year as
compared to approximately HK$35.9 million in the same period
last year. Loss for the year of approximately of HK$59.3 million
of Securities Brokerage Business was recorded during the Year
(includes written off of the goodwill of approximately HK$28.1
million and intangible assets of approximately HK$11.4 million
in relation to the Securities Brokerage Business as a result
of the cessation of the Securities Brokerage Business) as
compared to profit for the year of approximately HK$8.9 million
in the same period last year.

Nevertheless, given the current restrictions imposed by the
SFC on China Jianxin Financial, and the consequential loss of
clientele, significant drop in its business and revenue and the
continuing increase in the loss of the Securities Brokerage
Business, the Securities Brokerage Business was ceased on
30th June 2018.

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 65.9% (2017: approximately
74.7%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year decreased by approximately
8.0% to approximately HK$12.7 million as compared to
approximately HK$13.8 million in the same period last year.
The decrease in selling expenses was mainly due to the
decrease of the selling activities and expenses of (a) film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights; and (b) the trade, wholesale and retails of watches
products during the Year.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by
approximately 16.0% to approximately HK$111.7 million
as compared to approximately HK$96.3 million in the same
period last year. The increase in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the (i) the payment of the directors and staff
bonus of approximately HK$35.6 million (2017: approximately
HK$22.0 million) to the management of the films distribution
and exhibition for the gain on the Disposal of the Film Library
for the Year; and (ii) the share-based compensation expenses
of approximately HK$10.5 million (2017: Nil) in relation to the
grant of share options under the Company’s share option
scheme during the Year.

Update on the adjustment to the consideration of AP
Group Investment Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“AP Acquisition Agreement”) with two
independent third party vendors, namely Very Easy Limited
("Very Easy") and City Link Consultancy Limited (" City Link"),
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners, namely Chan
Sze Long (“Chan”) and Lim Wah Elsa (“Lim"), as guarantors to
acquire b1% equity interest of AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited (“AP Group”) at a consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed
profit as described in the AP Acquisition Agreement) (the “AP
Acquisition”). AP Group and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the provision of education and training programs
in relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The AP Acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.

On 13th June 2016, (i) Fragrant River as the vendor and the
Company as the guarantor of Fragrant River; and (ii) Lucky
Famous, an independent third party entered into a disposal
agreement (the “AP Disposal Agreement”) pursuant to which
Fragrant River sold to Lucky Famous the 51% of the equity
interest of AP Group at the consideration of HK$20,400,000
(the “Consideration”) subject to downward adjustments as
described below (the “AP Disposal”). The amount of the
Consideration was the same as the consideration for the AP
Acquisition. Completion of the AP Disposal took place on 1st
July 2016.
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Under the AP Disposal Agreement, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the AP Group attributable to
owners of the AP Group for the period from 1st January 2016
to 31st December 2017 ("FY 2016 & 2017") (which would only
include income or gain generated by activities in the ordinary
and usual course of business of AP Group and its subsidiaries)
(the "FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit"”) is less than HK$16,000,000,
the Group should pay to Lucky Famous (or to its order) the
Adjustment Amount (as defined below) in cash within fourteen
(14) days after the audited consolidated financial statements
of AP Group for the period of FY 2016 & 2017 (“FY 2016 &
2017 Audited Accounts”) are available.

The adjustment amount under the AP Disposal Agreement
(the “Adjustment Amount”) will be determined in accordance
with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000.00 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and
“NP” means the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit. Where the FY
2016 & 2017 Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP"” shall be
deemed to be zero.

The FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts will be prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and audited, at the cost of AP Group, by an accounting firm
as approved by Lucky Famous, adjusted for any non-recurring
Items.

Such downward adjustment mechanism for the Consideration
under the AP Disposal Agreement depending on the actual
performance of the AP Group for the FY 2016 & 2017 is virtually
of the same terms as the downward adjustment mechanism
of the consideration in respect of the AP Acquisition from
Very Easy and City Link under the AP Acquisition Agreement.
Details of such acquisition are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 12th October 2015.
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In the event there is a shortfall between the FY 2016 &
2017 Net Profit and the target profit of the AP Group for FY
2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the AP Acquisition
Agreement, an adjustment amount under such agreement
(the "Contingent Consideration Receivable"”) is payable by
Very Easy and City Link, being the vendors under the AP
Acquisition, to the Group within seven (7) days after the FY
2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for the purpose of the AP
Acquisition Agreement are available. The obligations of Very
Easy and City Link to pay such adjustment amount to the
Group are guaranteed by their respective beneficial owners.

As mentioned above, in the event there is a shortfall between
the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the target profit of the
AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the
AP Disposal Agreement, an adjustment amount under such
agreement (the “Contingent Consideration Payable”) is
payable by the Group to Lucky Famous within 14 days after
the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for the purpose of the
AP Disposal Agreement are available.

On 12th June 2018, the Group received a demand letter (the
“Demand Letter”) from Lucky Famous whereby it was alleged
that the AP Group recorded a net loss of HK$189,799 based
on the alleged FY2016 & FY2017 Audited Accounts dated
11th June 2018. As set out in the Demand Letter, Lucky
Famous demanded Fragrant River or the Company to fully
pay the amount of HK$20,400,000 (the “Alleged Claim"), being
the alleged Adjustment Amount pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the AP Disposal Agreement, to Lucky Famous
on or before 26th June 2018, and upon default, steps would
be taken by Lucky Famous to enforce its rights under the AP
Disposal Agreement without further notice.

In response to the Lucky Famous Demand Letter, Fragrant
River and the Company have through the letter from their
legal advisers dated 22nd June 2018 stated that they would
defend the purported claim of Lucky Famous for the payment
of the Adjustment Amount under the AP Disposal Agreement
as alleged by it.
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In light of the Lucky Famous Demand Letter and the alleged
net loss of the AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017, and in order to
protect the interest of the Group, but without admitting any
liability to Lucky Famous under the AP Disposal Agreement,
Fragrant River issued corresponding demand letters all dated
22nd June 2018 (collectively, the “Fragrant River Demand
Letters”) to Very Easy, City Link, Chan and Lim, respectively
demanding the payment of an amount of HK$20,400,000 (the
“Fragrant River Claim”) to Fragrant River within seven (7) days
from the date of the Fragrant River Demand Letters pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the AP Acquisition Agreement,
and if default, Fragrant River would take further action to
protect its interest without further notice.

On 16th July 2018, Lucky Famous as the plaintiff commenced
court action (HCA No. 1646 of 2018) at the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong against Fragrant River
as the 1st defendant and the Company as the 2nd defendant
(the “Lucky Famous Action”). Lucky Famous claimed against
Fragrant River and the Company for (a) the Adjustment Amount
of HK$20,400,000; (b) interests; (c) costs; and (d) further and/
or other relief.

Notwithstanding the Fragrant River Demand Letters, no
payment under the AP Acquisition Agreement is received
from any of Very Easy, City Link, Chan or Lim up to the date
of this report.

The Company is in the course of seeking legal advice in
respect of the Lucky Famous Action and any possible action
that may be taken against Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or
Lim in respect of the Fragrant River Claim. The Company will
keep the shareholders and potential investors of the Company
informed of any further significant developments as and when
appropriate.
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Without admitting any liability to Lucky Famous under the AP
Disposal Agreement and also without prejudice to any right
against Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or Lim under the AP
Acquisition Agreement, the Group has recorded the fair value
of the Contingent Consideration Receivable and Contingent
Consideration Payable, at approximately HK$3.8 million (2017:
approximately HK$15.7 million) and approximately HK$20.4
million (2017: approximately HK$19.6 million) respectively as
at 30th June 2018 in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which is based on the best estimation
of the Directors taking into account the financial statements
of AP Group in 2016 and 2017 and the discount rate factors
in estimating the fair value.

Qutlook

The Group's results for the Year were affected by the unfavor
market conditions in the financial markets in Hong Kong and
the unsatisfactory performance of certain investments of the
Group. Looking forward, the financial and investment markets
are continually affected by the US-China trade war, rising
interest rates, less-easy monetary policy and a strengthening
U.S. dollar with ripple effects across the world. In view of
the above, the Group will focus on its current business to
maximize the return of the shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's financial position remained healthy. As at 30th
June 2018, the Group had cash balances of approximately
HK$522.3 million (2017: approximately HK$228.2 million). As
at 30th June 2018, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,081.4 million (2017: approximately HK$1,456.9 million).

The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2018 was
approximately 0.003% (2017: approximately 5.2%), which was
calculated on the basis of the total debt (including borrowings
and obligations under finance lease) divided by total equity of
the Group.

Finance cost for the Year was approximately HK$3.1 million
(2017: approximately HK$6.1 million). The significant decrease
of finance cost was mainly due to the decrease of the Group's
borrowing outstanding during the Year.
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In light of the fact that most of the Group's transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor its exposure to the movements of
these currencies closely.

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$9.1 million (30th June 2017: approximately
HK$8.5 million). The shareholders’ capital of the Company
is constituted of 906,632,276 shares (30th June 2017:
853,302,276 shares).

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by
issuing new shares of the Company during the Year.

The Company conducted a placing of new shares under general
mandate and a placing of new shares under specific mandate
to increase the shareholders’ base and capital during the year
ended 30th June 2017, the details of which are as follows:

As announced on 18th January 2017, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (the “GM Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company appointed a placing agent to
procure, on a best effort basis, not less than six placees to
subscribe for up to 106,660,000 new shares of the Company
(the “"GM Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.519 per GM
Placing Share (the “GM Placing”) under the general mandate
of the Company.

GM Placing price of HK$0.519 per GM Placing Share
represented (the “GM Placing Price”):

(i)  adiscount of approximately 13.5% to the closing price
of HK$0.6 per share of the Company as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 18th January 2017, being the date
of the GM Placing Agreement; and

(i)  adiscount of approximately 17.9% to the average closing
price of HK$0.632 per share of the Company as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading
days of the shares immediately prior to 18th January
2017.
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The GM Placing Price was determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and the placing agent
with reference to, among other matters, the then prevailing
market prices of the shares. The Directors were of the view
that the GM Placing could strengthen the financial position of
the Group and provide working capital to the Group to meet
any future development and obligations. The GM Placing also
represented a good opportunity to broaden the shareholders’
base and the capital base of the Company. The Directors
considered that the GM Placing was in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The GM Placing Agreement was completed on 7th February
2017 and an aggregate of 106,660,000 GM Placing Shares
were successfully placed to not less than six placees. The net
proceeds from the issuance of the GM Placing Shares were
approximately HK$53.2 million.

The net issue price of each GM Placing Share was HK$0.499.
The net proceeds from the issuance of the GM Placing Shares
were approximately HK$53.2 million. The Group intended to
utilize the net proceeds from issuance of the GM Placing
Shares (“GM Proceeds Allocated for the Margin Financing
Business”) for developing the margin financing business of
the Group.

As intended, the Group applied and lent out all the GM Proceeds
Allocated for the Margin Financing Business during the period
from May 2017 to June 2017 to its margin clients. However,
due to the June Incident, the GM Proceeds Allocated for the
Margin Financing Business which were previously advanced to
margin clients were repaid by such margin clients to the Group
from July 2017 to September 2017 and the demand for the
Group's margin financing facilities subsequently decreased.
The sum repaid to the Group was deposited in the Group's
bank accounts on 29th September 2017. Having considered
the expected decrease in demand for the funding requirement
in connection with the Group's margin financing business for
the Year, the Group re-allocated the GM Proceeds Allocated
for the Margin Financing Business which have been repaid to
the Group as its general working capital during the Year as a
measure in response to the recent sudden change in market
conditions. The Board believed that such re-allocation enables
the Group to increase the efficiency in the use of the Group's
cash resources. On such basis, the Board considers that such
re-allocation is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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Placing of new shares under specific mandate and
re-allocation of the use of proceeds

As announced on 18th January 2017, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (the “SM Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company appointed a placing agent to
procure, on a best effort basis, not less than six placees to
subscribe for up to 213,320,000 new shares of the Company
(the “SM Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.519 per SM
Placing Share (the “SM Placing”) under the special mandate
of the Company. SM Placing price of HK$0.519 per SM Placing
Share represented (the “SM Placing Price”):

(i)  adiscount of approximately 13.5% to the closing price
of HK$0.6 per share of the Company as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 18th January 2017, being the date
of the SM Placing Agreement; and

(i) adiscount of approximately 17.9% to the average closing
price of HK$0.632 per share of the Company as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading
days of the shares immediately prior to 18th January
2017.

The SM Placing Price was determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and the placing agent
with reference to, among other matters, the then prevailing
market prices of the shares. The Directors were of the view
that the SM Placing could strengthen the financial position of
the Group and provide working capital to the Group to meet
any future development and obligations. The SM Placing also
represented a good opportunity to broaden the shareholders’
base and the capital base of the Company. The Directors
considered that the SM Placing was in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The SM Placing Agreement was completed on 29th March
2017 and an aggregate of 213,320,000 SM Placing Shares
were successfully placed to not less than six placees. The net
proceeds from the issuance of the SM Placing Shares were
approximately HK$106.1 million. The net issue price of each
SM Placing Share was HK$0.497.
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The net proceeds from the issuance of the SM Placing Shares
were approximately HK$106.1 million and the Group intended
to utilize HK$86.1 million for developing the margin financing
business of the Group (“SM Proceeds Allocated for the Margin
Financing Business”) and HK$20.0 million for the acquisition of
the membership ("CGSES Membership”) that confer eligibility
of the Group to trade on The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange
Society (the “"CGSES") and the development of the related
business following the acquisition of the CGSES Membership
("Proceeds Allocated for the CGSES”).

As intended, the Group applied and lent out all the SM
Proceeds Allocated for the Margin Financing Business during
the period from May 2017 to June 2017 to its margin clients.
However, due to the June Incident, the SM Proceeds Allocated
for the Margin Financing Business which were previously
advanced to margin clients were repaid by such margin
clients to the Group from July 2017 to December 2017. The
sum repaid to the Group was deposited in the Group's bank
accounts. Having considered (i) the accounts receivable
from securities brokerage and margin financing business
significantly decreased from approximately HK$257.9 million
as at 30th June 2017 to approximately HK$37.0 million as
at 31st December 2017; and (ii) the expected decrease in
demand for the funding requirement in connection with the
Group's margin financing business for the Year, the Group re-
allocated the SM Proceeds Allocated for the Margin Financing
Business which have been repaid to the Group as general
working capital during the Year, as a measure in response to
the above changes.

In addition, the Group has applied approximately HK$9.5
million for the acquisition of the CGSES Membership in June
2017. In view of the substantial increase of the price of the
CGSES Membership in the second half of 2017, the Group
disposed of the CGSES Membership at HK$16.3 million to an
independent third party on 8th January 2018 to take a gain of
approximately HK$6.8 million and not continued to develop
the related business following the disposal of the CGSES
Membership. Therefore, the Group re-allocated the Proceeds
Allocated for the CGSES as its general working capital during
the Year.
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The Board believes that above re-allocations enable the
Group to increase the efficiency in the use of the Group's
cash resources. On such basis, the Board considers that the
above re-allocations are in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2018, none of the Group's assets was pledged
to secure any liabilities.

As at 30th June 2017 the margin loans payable are secured by
the Group's listed equity investments recognised in available-
for sale investment and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss in the fair value of approximately HK$73.5 million
and HK$59.6 million respectively.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Group had the following material
disposals:

1. Disposal of the shares of Interactive
Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited (“IE China”)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 14th
November 2017, the Group disposed of an aggregate
of 144,580,000 shares of IE China on the open market
of the Stock Exchange from 6th November 2017 to
14th November 2017 for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$5.23 million (before deducting
stamp duty and related expenses) at an average price
of HK$0.036 per the share of IE China. IE China is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability, the issued
shares of which are listed on GEM (stock code: 8081).
The Group recognised a gain (before deducting stamp
duty and related expenses) of approximately HK$2.05
million from such disposal of the shares of IE China for
the Year. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 14th November 2017 for the details.
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Further disposal of the shares of [E China

Pursuant to the Company's announcement dated
11th January 2018, the Group further disposed of an
aggregate of 158,420,000 shares of IE China on the open
market of the Stock Exchange from 15th November 2017
to 11th January 2018 for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$5.29 million (before deducting
stamp duty and related expenses) at an average price
of HK$0.033 per the share of IE China. The Group
recognised a gain (before deducting stamp duty and
related expenses) of approximately HK$1.81 million from
such disposal of the shares of IE China for the Year. Upon
settlement of such disposal, the Group ceased to hold
any share of IE China. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 11th January 2018 for the details.

Disposal of the shares of China New Economy
Fund Limited (“"CNEF")

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 11th
January 2018, the Group disposed of an aggregate of
132,400,000 shares of CNEF on the open market of the
Stock Exchange on 11th January 2018 for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$17.08 million (before
deducting stamp duty and related expenses) at an
average price of HK$0.129 per share of CNEF. CNEF
is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 80).
The Group recognised a loss (before deducting stamp
duty and related expenses) of approximately HK$6.75
million from such disposal of the shares of CNEF for
the Year. Upon settlement of such disposal, the Group
ceased to hold any share of CNEF. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 11th January 2018 for
the details.
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4. Disposal of the shares of GET Holdings Limited
(“GET")
Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 14th
May 2018, the Group disposed of an aggregate of
74,074,500 shares of GET on the open market of the
Stock Exchange from 27th March 2018 to 14th May
2018 for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$22.56 million at an average price of HK$0.305 per
share of GET. GET is a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability, the issued shares
of which are listed on GEM (Stock code: 8100). The
Group recognised a loss (before deducting stamp duty
and related expenses) of approximately HK$15.91 million
from such disposal of the shares of GET for the Year.
Upon settlement of such disposal, the Group ceased to
hold any share of GET. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 14th May 2018 for the details.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of assets during the Year.

POSSIBLE UNCONDITIONAL MANDATORY
CASH OFFER AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Company was informed by the Mr. Chan Wai Sing,
Vincent (the “Vendor”) that on 26th July 2018 (after trading
hours), the Vendor, Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil, (“Mr. Lam”) the chairman and executive director of
the Company, (the “Offeror”) and Mr. Lam as guarantor of
the Offeror entered into the sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the Offeror has
conditionally agreed to purchase the 251,745,000 shares of the
Company (the “Sale Share(s)"), representing approximately
27.77% of the entire issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement at a
consideration of HK$128,389,950 (equivalent to HK$0.51 per
Sale Share). Completion is conditional upon the fulfiiment
of certain conditions as set out under the sub-section
headed “Conditions” under the section headed “The Sale
and Purchase Agreement” of the joint announcement of the
Company dated 31st July 2018 (the “Joint Announcement”).
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Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company
by way of poll at the special general meeting (“SGM") and the
Sale and Purchase Agreement becoming unconditional, the
Company proposed to declare and distribute, in accordance
with its bye-laws, the special dividend of HK$0.30 per share of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) (the “Share”) to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the Company’s
share register or branch share register on the record date
(the "Distribution”) as provided for in one of the conditions.
To give effect to the Distribution, the Board also proposed to
put forward for approval by the shareholders of the Company
at the SGM a proposal to reduce the credit standing to the
share premium account of the Company. As at 30th June
2017, based on the audited financial statements of the
Company, the audited amount of the share premium account
of the Company was HK$893,345,000. It was proposed that:
(i) the amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company be reduced by HK$893,345,000;
(ii) the credit arising from the share premium reduction be
transferred to the contributed surplus account of the Company
(the “Share Premium Reduction and Transfer”); and (iii)
the Board be authorised to make the Distribution of up to
HK$271,989,682.80 of the amount standing to the credit of
the contributed surplus account of the Company, pro rata to
the Shareholders, being the special dividend of HK$0.3 per
share of the Company.

As at the date of the Joint Announcement, the Offeror and
parties acting in concert with it hold 242,936,853 Shares,
representing approximately 26.79% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Immediately following completion
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Completion”), the
Offeror and parties acting in concert with it will be interested
in 494,681,853 Shares, representing approximately 54.56 %
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the Joint Announcement.

In accordance with Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code,
immediately following Completion, the Offeror will be required
to make the possible mandatory unconditional cash offer (the
"Offer”), subject to Completion, to be made by Kingston
Securities Limited, on behalf of the Offeror, to acquire all the
issued Shares of the Company not already owned or agreed
to be acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert
with it (the “Offer Shares”) subject to the terms to be set out
in the composite offer and response document to be jointly
issued by the Offeror and the Company to the shareholders
of the Company in connection with the Offer in compliance
with the Takeovers Code (the “Composite Document”) to
acquire all the Offer Shares. The Offer, if and when made will
be unconditional in all respects.
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Subject to and upon Completion, Kingston Securities Limited,
will make the Offer for and on behalf of the Offeror in
compliance with the Takeovers Code on the terms to be set
out in the Composite Document to be issued in accordance
with the Takeovers Code on the following basis:

For each Offer Share . ................ HK$0.51 in cash
(the "Offer Price"”)

The Offer Price of HK$0.51 per Offer Share under the Offer is
the same as the purchase price per Sale Share payable by the
Offeror under the Sale and Purchase Agreement. The Offeror
intends to maintain the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange after the close of the Offer.

In light of the expected time required by the Company for
(a) convening the SGM for the purpose of considering and
approving the share premium reduction and transfer, the
Distribution and the transactions contemplated thereunder;
(b)(i) obtaining the relevant approval from the SFC; or (ii)
obtaining the evidence to the satisfaction of the Vendor that
such approval is unnecessary; or (iii) effecting the revocation
of license of China Jianxin Financial to carry on Type 1 (dealing
in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities under the SFO) (as the case may be); and (c) making
all necessary arrangement for the payment of the Distribution,
an application has been made to seek the consent from
the executive director of the corporate finance division of
the SFC (the "Executive”) under Note 2 to Rule 8.2 of the
Takeovers Code to extend the deadline for the despatch of the
Composite Document to 11th October 2018 or within seven
(7) days from the date of fulfillment of the pre-conditions to
the Offer (including the Completion which shall take place
contemporaneously with the payment of the Distribution),
whichever is earlier, and the Executive has granted its consent
for such extension.

Further announcement(s) will be jointly made by the
Company and the Offeror when the Composite Document
and the accompanying form of acceptance and transfer are
despatched.

The Distribution and the Share Premium Reduction and
Transfer was approved by the Company’s shareholders
at the SGM held on 17th September 2018. However, the
Distribution is conditional upon the satisfaction that the
Sale and Purchase Agreement becoming unconditional in
all respects in accordance with its terms. In view of the
additional time required for fulfilling certain conditions to the
Sale and Purchase Agreement, the expected timetable for
the Distribution has been revised accordingly and set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17th September 2018.
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WARNING

Shareholders and potential investors of the Company should
note that Completion is conditional upon the fulfillment of
conditions mentioned in the Joint Announcement and the
Offer will only be made if Completion takes place. Accordingly,
Completion may or may not take place and the Offer may or
may not proceed.

Shareholders and potential investors of the Company should
also note that the Distribution is conditional upon the applicable
conditions mentioned in the Company's circular dated 24th
August 2018, which may or may not be satisfied.

Shareholders and potential investors of the Company are
advised to exercise extreme caution when dealing in the
Shares, and if they are in any doubt about their position, they
should consult their professional advisers.

Please refer to (a) the Company’s announcement dated 31st
July 2018 and jointly issued by the Offeror in relation to,
among other things, (i) the Sale and Purchase Agreement;
(ii) the Offer; and (iii) the Share Premium Reduction and
Transfer, and the Distribution; (b) the announcement of the
Company dated 21st August 2018 in relation to, among others,
the delay in dispatch of the Composite Document; (c) the
announcement of the Company dated 23rd August 2018 in
relation to, among others, the revised expected timetable
in relation to the share premium reduction and transfer and
the Distribution and closure of register of members; (d) the
circular of the Company dated 24th August 2018 in relation
to, among others, the share premium reduction and transfer,
the Distribution and the change of Company name; (e) the
announcement of the Company dated 17th September 2018
in relation to the result of the SGM held on 17th September
2018 in relation to proposed Share Premium Reduction and
Transfer, the proposed Distribution and the proposed change
of Company name; and (f) the announcement of the Company
dated 17th September 2018 in relation to, among others, the
further update on the expected timetable in relation to the
share premium reduction and transfer and the Distribution and
closure of register of members for more details.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30th June 2018, the Group employed 110 staff (2017:
117). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staffs
are entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff
benefits included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and mandatory provident fund.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

As announced on 31st July 2018, the Board proposes to
change the existing name of the Company from “Universe
International Financial Holdings Limited” to “Universe
Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited” and to
adopt "BFIREL (L EEEPRAF]" as the secondary name
in Chinese of the Company to replace its existing secondary
name in Chinese “BFBEE & @IEARBRAF" (the “Change
of Company Name"). The Change of Company Name provides
the Company with a better identification and strengthen the
Company’s corporate image, which will benefit the Company’s
future business development. The Change of Company Name
was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the SGM
held on 17th September 2018 and the Group's will further
announced the effective date of the Change of Company
Name.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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Particulars of the share options under the Share Option RERARR_ZT-—NFA=+H B
Scheme which remained outstanding/had been exercised/ M E NN ARITHE D ETHE /T %
had lapsed during the Year and as at 30th June 2018 were kv EERREZFHBFHO T :

set out below:

Number of
share options Number of Number of
Priceper  outstanding ~ Number of share options ~ Number of ~share options Market value
Period during share on atthe share options exercised share options  outstanding per share on
which share options exercise of beginning granted during during lapsed during at the end grant of
Participants Date of grant are exercisable options of the Year the Year the Year the Year ~ of the Year share option

fERKE REQ AEE AEE AEE RER R
BEfz HAfEZz ERHZ  Bfffz  BARz HAffZ BRERZ

28 REAH BREGES SREX EREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE BRE¥E SRAE
HK$ HK$
A7 o
Executive Directors
HrEs
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, 3rd October 2017 9th October 2017 to 0470 - 8,530,000 (8,530,000) - - 0470
Danell 8th October 2020

WPELE “E-t5+HZR —E-tETANRE
“ZZFETENA

Mr. Hung Cho Sing  4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0811 1,680,503 - - (1,680,503) - 0.68*
3rd March 2018

EHELRE ZE-R§ZAMA ZE-AF¥ZAMAZ
“Z-)\§=ZR=H

Mr. Lam Kit Sun~ 4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0.811* 1,680,503 - - (1,680,503) - 0.68*
3rd March 2018

W EE ZE-REZANB ZE-R4¥-AMmAEZ
“Z-\E=F=H

3rd October 2017 9th October 2017 to 0470 - 8,530,000 (8,530,000) - - 0470

8th October 2020

S$-LEHAZR ZT-LETAARE
“ECRETANA

QOther eligible 30th September 2015 30th September 2015 to 1.489* 2,351,799 - - (2,351,799) - 142%
participants 29th September 2017
EfaER ZE-REAAZTR ZE-RFARZTHE
BEN\ ZZ-tEnAZTNA
4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0.811% 7,732,651 - - (7,732,651) - 0.68*
3rd March 2018
“5-7#ZAMA Z5-/EZAMAZE
“2-\%Zh=H
3rd October 2017 9th October 2017 to 0470 - 36,270,000  (36,270,000) - - 0470
8th October 2020

“E-t5+HZR ZE-tETANRE
“ZZFETENA

13445456 53,330,000  (63,330,0000  (13,445,456) -

* The price per share on exercise of options and market value  * TEERESE 2 SRERERX D BERE

per share on grant of options have been adjusted after taking By SRTEBHREE T —NE+A
into account of the effect of the rights issue completed on 5th FHESR MRy S BREHFE.

October 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 56, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong"” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 77, is mainly responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry. Mr. Hung was
the founder of Delon International Film Corporation and has
been its general manager since June 2004. Mr. Hung was the
Organizing Committee Chairman of the 11th and 12th Hong
Kong Film Awards from 1991 to 1993 and from 1993 to 1995,
Mr. Hung was the chairman of the board of directors of Hong
Kong Film Awards Association Limited. Mr. Hung is currently
the chairman of The Federation of Motion Film Producers of
Hong Kong Limited and the chairman of Hong Kong Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Hung is appointed
as a vice chairman of the eighth Guangdong Film Association
since November 2016 and a deputy minister of Guangdong's
Association For Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong,
Hong Kong & Macao Cultural Professional Committee. In
recognition of his contribution to the Hong Kong film industry,
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in 2005. From April 2007 to March 2013, Mr. Hung
was appointed by the Government of HKSAR as a member of
the Hong Kong Film Development Council. Mr. Hung is also
a member of HKSAR Election Committee and since January
2013, he has been appointed by the Government of HKSAR as
a non-official member of the Working Group on Manufacturing
Industries, Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative
Industries under the Economic Development Commission.
Mr. Hung was a non-executive director of Capital VC Limited
(stock code: 2324), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, from September 2011 to January 2014;
an independent non-executive director of Hengten Networks
Group Limited (stock code: 136), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from January 2013 to
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October 2015; and an independent non-executive director
of Freeman Fintech Corporation Limited (stock code: 279), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
January 2013 to January 2017. Mr. Hung was also an executive
Director from October 2013 to June 2017. Mr. Hung resigned
as an executive Director on 2nd June 2017 and has remained
as the director of the certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Hung is the executive director of EJE (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited (stock code: 8101), a company listed
on GEM, an independent non-executive director of China Star
Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; an independent
non-executive director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(stock code: 913), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange; an independent non-executive director of
KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8226), a company
listed on GEM, an independent non-executive director of Miko
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and an
independent non-executive director of Enerchina Holdings
Limited (stock code: 622), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in October 2017.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 41, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group in 2013, he has over 10 years’ experience in
the field of financial reporting, financial management and audit
experience in the PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration in Accounting.
Mr. Lam is a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA"), an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam
was an executive director and a non-executive director of Kiu
Hung International Holdings Limited (stock code: 381) for the
period from October 2009 to July 2013 and for the period from
August 2013 to April 2016 respectively, the shares of which

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

..........................................

W2 RaE R KRR 279) 2 B L IEH
nNEF - HAEEBA T —=F+ARAEZ=
F—tEtFNATRATESF - HLAER
—E—t+tFRNRAZHBERTES B
BEARAETHERAANESTRY -
HEERRERER(BBE)ERBERA
A(—HRRGEM LM Z A7 - B A% :
BI0NZHTTER THELEEARAA
(—FKRBXMERLET 228 BHK
$iB26)ZBUFATEST & NEHE
BRERRB(—FKRBXAERLHTZA
AR N2 BLIFATESE
HRTMEBRAR AR (—HKNGEM £LH
Z N A B SR - 8226) 2 WL IEHAT
EF KBEBREERARAA(-RRE
RERLET 2 RR - ROAR: 1247)
ZBIFATESTRBREEERBRA
A(—HZKRBRXMERLET 2 QA BKH
R 622) 2 BIUFATEF - KR _-F
—tETAMAREHR-

MEFEE M BREASEZERUG
ERAAME - BEAELASEEZUBR
REEHE R-_ET—=ZFEMARESH
BRAPBELREEHEBIOF ZHEHRE
HBERBMYBENALCR BEXRE
BEREAE HEEIBEEE(BBEET)
B4+8-HEELATBSHAMAE

ERALkEeE REFFT AR
RErEARGE BAAEFITWELREZ
gEkFPRHAMEMBE o ERES
B - MEERZ_ZTENFT+AEZZT —
—FtLtABREE-_E—=ZFNAE=_F
—NFMA BB R E TG R RER
BERAG(EBRMABRA R LM &
MR BN ZHITESRIERTES -
MEER-_ZE—ZFNAE_ZT—1F
—RAVHEBRBEZERBERAA(H &R
B B 5% 8086) 2 B IEHITE

B



Directors and Senior Management Profile

..........................................................

are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was an independent non- executive director of Sino Vision
Worldwide Holdings Limited (“Sino Vision”) (stock code:
8086) from August 2013 to January 2015, an independent
non-executive director of GET Holdings Limited (“GET") (stock
code: 8100) from October 2013 to April 2015 and was also
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited (“Finsoft”) (stock code:
8018) from September 2013 to February 2015. The shares of
each of Sino Vision, GET and Finsoft are listed on GEM. He
joined the Group in August 2013.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 48, was the chief
executive officer and an executive director of Asia Television
Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) from May 2016 to March
2017 and acted as its chief financial officer from September
2015 to May 2016; and an executive director of Sino Haijing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1106) from August 2015 to
November 2016, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1019) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from March 2014 to June 2016. He was
also the group financial controller and company secretary of
Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246) from
January 2014 to October 2014, whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. CK Lam holds
a bachelor’s degree of science in accounting awarded by
Brigham Young University- Hawaii in 1996. Mr. CK Lam also
obtained a master’'s degree of science in e-Commerce from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a
fellow of the HKICPA and a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. CK Lam has over 20 years
of experience in accounting and corporate finance. He joined
the Group in December 2013.
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Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 41, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Huanxi Media Group
Limited (stock code: 1003), the shares of which are listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting awarded
by the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
1999. Mr. Choi also obtained a master degree of business
administration awarded by the University of Hong Kong in
2014. Mr. Choi is a fellow of the ACCA and a member of
the HKICPA. Mr. Choi has over 15 years of experience in
accounting and company secretarial field. Mr. Choi was the
financial controller and company secretary of Global Energy
Resources International Group Limited (stock code: 8192)
from March 2015 to January 2018, the shares of which are
listed on GEM. Mr. Choi was an independent non-executive
director of Zhidao International (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
1220) from January 2012 to September 2014 and the financial
controller and company secretary of Taung Gold International
Limited (stock code: 621) from September 2010 to April 2013,
shares of both of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was also the independent non-executive
director of G Neptune Berhad, a company listed on the ACE
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad from May 2014
to May 2017. He joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing, aged 51, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong, and the founder and a partner of Ivan Tang & Co.. He
holds a bachelor’'s degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master's
degree in Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania. Mr.
Tang has been an independent non-executive director of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 530), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since September
2006; an independent non-executive director of Jete Power
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8133), a company listed on
GEM, since April 2015; and an independent non-executive
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director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8366), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange since July 2017. Mr. Tang was an independent
non-executive director of KSL Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8170), a company listed on GEM, from March 2017 to May
2018. He joined the Group in October 2017.

Mr. CHONG Ki Ming, aged 37, is a financial consultant.
Mr. Chong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science Business
Administration and Master of Business Administration from the
Marshall School of Business, University of Southern California,
USA. Mr. Chong also completed the Global Executive MBA
Program jointly offered by the Marshall School of Business,
University of Southern California and the Antai College of
Economics and Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
Mr. Chong is a Certified Financial Consultant of the Institute
of Financial Consultants. Mr. Chong is currently the general
manager of Kam Yuen (Frozen Food) Limited, a frozen food
distributor in Hong Kong. He is also the founder and director
of Perseus Strategic Capital Limited, a licensed money lending
company in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in December
2017.

Mr. WONG Cheuk Wai, Jason, aged 43, has an extensive
experience in the property investment industry. Mr. Wong
holds a degree of Master of Science in Hotel and Tourism
Management. Mr. Wong is currently a director at Miracle World
Holdings Limited and Wiselande (International) Development
Limited. He joined the Group in December 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles that
emphasise a quality board of Directors (the “Board"), effective
risk management and internal control systems, stringent
disclosure practices, transparency and accountability save as
specifically disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provision as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group's internal controls and procedures in light of
changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the Code for the separation of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and
(ii) code provision A2.7 of the Code requiring the Chairman to
meet with the non-executive Directors as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEOQ. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Group’s strategies.
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Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group's prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company's
strategies and directions including:

(i)  policies relating to the overall strategic direction
and strategic plans of the Company;

(i) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(iii)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv) the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be
material by the Board.
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(c)  financial controls, compliance and risk management:

()  the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i)  the approval of the Company’'s consolidated
financial statements and published reports;

(iii)  the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

(iv) the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

(d) changes to the Company's capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue
of new securities, other than in accordance with the
terms of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive
schemes adopted by the Company from time to time;

(e)  major appointments and removals:

(i)  appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i) recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”); and

(iv) the appointment or removal of the company

secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).
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(f)  delegation of authority:

(i)  changes to the terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(g) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of eight Directors, with
three executive Directors, and five independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 37 to 41 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications. Their mix of professional skills and experience
is beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters
of the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non- executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of
the corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time
to time.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, Mr. Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Lam Chi Keung, Mr. Choi
Wing Koon, Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, Mr. Chong Ki Ming and Mr.
Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason, had participated in continuous
professional development with respect to directors’ duties,
relevant programmes and seminars or had perused reading
materials and updated information in relation to business and
industrial development.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he/she is fully aware of his/her
roles, functions, duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and
the governance policies of the Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors
are kept and updated by the Company Secretary.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by
the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
shall retire at the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term of three years pursuant to
code provision A4.1 of the Code. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the provision
of the Listing Rules and the Bye-law(s). At least one-third of
Directors shall retire from office every year at the Company’s
annual general meeting.

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Lam Kit Sun will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
of the Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Lam
Kit Sun being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
such meeting.

On 21st December 2017, Mr. Chong Ki Ming and Mr. Wong
Cheuk Wai, Jason were appointed as additional independent
non-executive Directors to the Board. Pursuant to Bye-law
86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chong Ki Ming and Mr. Wong Cheuk
Wai, Jason shall retire from office and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for
re-election and the candidates who will be proposed to be
elected as Directors, please refer to the circular containing
the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be despatched.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board
meetings at approximately half year interval. Fifteen board
meetings were convened during the Year and the attendances
of each Director at these meetings are set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. Hung Cho Sing

(appointed on 1st October 2017)
Mr. Lam Kit Sun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung
Mr. Choi Wing Koon
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

(appointed on 1st October 2017)
Mr. Chong Ki Ming

(appointed on 21st December 2017)
Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason

(appointed on 21st December 2017)
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(resigned on 21st December 2017)
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GENERAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other special general
meetings and encourages their participation.

One annual general meeting and no special general meeting
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual
General
Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
(Chairman) 11
Mr. Hung Cho Sing
(appointed on 1st October 2017) 1Al
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 11
Independent non-executive
Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
(appointed on 1st October 2017) 1/1
Mr. Chong Ki Ming
(appointed on 21st December 2017) N/A
Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason
(appointed on 21st December 2017) N/A
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee
(resigned on 21st December 2017) 1/1

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established
by the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman),
Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive
Director, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b) remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration

Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.
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8 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is
set out as follows:

Attendance

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 7/8
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 8/8
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

(appointed on 1st October 2017) 5/5
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(resigned on 21st December 2017) 6/6
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 5/8

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’'s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the Group.
In view of the new amendments of the Code in respect of
diversity of board members that has come into effect on 1st
September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for
the benefits of diversity. During the year, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of the Board's composition.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board structure, size
and diversity annually and recommends any proposed changes
to the Board to complement Company's corporate strategies.

2 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is
set out as follows:

Attendance

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 2/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

(appointed on 1st October 2017) 11
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(resigned on 21st December 2017) 1Al
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th
February 2012), which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference
to "A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the
audit or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, review of the Group's financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and
the attendances of the each committee member at these
meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 2/3
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
(appointed on 1st October 2017) 2/2
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee
(resigned on 21st December 2017) 2/2
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards,
the interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31st December 2017 and annual consolidated
financial statements for the Year. Based on its review and
discussions with management and the external auditor, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the annual consolidated
financial statements for the Year were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards and fairly present the
Group's financial position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
For details about the internal control review, please refer to
the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control”
in this report below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the
Codes and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board must ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains effective risk management and
internal control systems to meet the objectives and safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and assets of the Company.
The internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failures to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis through
identifying and grading risk components, perceiving control
impact and facilitating remediation plan. The development of
our risk management and internal control systems are largely
based on the framework as set down by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). The risk management framework, coupled with
our internal controls, ensures the risks associated with our
different business units are effectively monitored, and are in
line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The Group adopts both the top-down and bottom-up approach
to monitor the principal risks affecting the business as follows:

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its division on a quarterly basis
and establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks
identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control activities,
attending quarterly meetings with each division to
ensure principal risks are properly managed, and new
or changing risks are identified and documented.

3. The Board reviews and approves the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems on a regular basis.
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In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit
department in the Group, the Group reviews annually on
whether there is a need for such functional department. Given
the possibility to engage external professional assistance, the
board opposed to divert resources to establish a separate
internal audit department.

During the Year, an external consultant was engaged to conduct
a review on the internal control systems, which covers certain
procedures on the (i) distribution of films in various videogram
formats; (ii) licensing and sub-licensing of film rights; (iii)
investment of films production; and (iv) model agency, and
makes recommendations for improving and strengthening the
internal control systems. In addition, reviews on the human
resources function (including staff qualifications, experience
and training programs) and accounting and financial reporting
mechanism were conducted. The Board will continue to work
with the external consultant to discuss and follow-up on the
status of remediation of the internal control weaknesses and
to monitor the risks of the Group in the coming years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are
abiding by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls
and reports to the Board on such reviews. For the Year, the
Board considered that a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems had been conducted
and considered that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (formerly “Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited"”), about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report from pages 99 to 106 of
this annual report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (formerly “Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited"”) who will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration payable to
auditors is set out as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“"BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of Directors and Senior Management Profile
on page 38 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code")
as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will
be verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong
(the “Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the
general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and
the relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days' notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days' notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by
a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
election as a director and also a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected (including that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such
notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the
notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days’ notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
the Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by
poll except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
the Shareholders and the investment community to engage
actively with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of
the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member
of the Board, committees or an appointed representative, will
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
questions of the Shareholders. The Company will also invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to answer the Shareholders’ questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

As a company that aims to provide the best entertainment,
services and products to customers in Hong Kong, UNIVERSE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED and its
subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or “We") is committed to
sustain a stable corporate development growth, while protecting
environment and being socially responsible and adhering to
the highest standards of corporate governance. Pursuant to
the newly released requirement of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting guide (“Environmental, Social and
Governance Guide") in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities from the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group has prepared the 2017-2018 Environmental
Social and Corporate Governance (thereafter “ESG") Report,
covering the whole range of the its business operation.

The scope of this report will cover the Group's initiatives on
further developing the concept of Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance to employees and clients, putting them
into practices in our daily operations and disclosing results as
a year-end summary over this covered period.

The scope of this report will cover the Group’s whole range of
business activities, including securities brokerage and margin
financing, money lending, leasing of investment properties and
securities investment, video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products, watches and
jewellery products and financial printing service.

It is also the intention of the management to provide an
overview of the Group's direction in managing ESG related
matters, driving for ESG initiatives throughout the group,
and communicating our ESG performance result with our
stakeholders.

The reporting period of this report shall cover the period from
1st July 2017 to 30th June 2018.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT &
MATERIALITY IDENTIFICATION

The Group endeavours to develop its business sustainably,
and contribute positively to the environment and the society
where its business operates. The Group understands fully that
standalone effort is minimal and therefore see the engagement
of its stakeholders as essential.

To extend its efforts to a broader audience, the Group had
consulted both its internal and external stakeholders on its
potential impact on the environment and society as a result
of its business operations. The Group understands and values
relationship with customers and suppliers, and thus included
both parties as our consultation targets.

Furthermore, the Group engaged and commissioned a
specialised consultant firm on drafting its ESG Report, and
conducted a materiality analysis in the form of a management
interview during the drafting process. Particular sustainability
related issues, which are material to the Group, were identified
during the process, and the results shall be disclosed in later
part of this ESG Report.

The table below presents key stakeholders of the Group as
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variety of engagement channels during the year. EBB-
Internal Stakeholders External Stakeholders
RE GO E SMBEFGH
° The Board ° Shareholders
. Eo= . fi% ==
o Management o Investors
o EIEfE . wEE
° General Staff ° Customers
o SER =] . xR
° Local Community Groups
. B btk B¥
Engagement methods: S HE %
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interviews, internal publications, Annual General Meeting % 2@  REFIW BERAEAFRKE  BRE
("AGM"), special general meetings and announcements. BFrlRe ke
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STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its ESG
approach and performance. For any suggestion or opinion,
please kindly send it to the Group through its communication
channels.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products while
generating revenue for our shareholders, and recognising the
importance and contributing to both the environment and local
community have always been one of our guiding principles.
ESG is thus considered a high priority within the Group, and
is especially championed by our senior management.

As mentioned, the Group is committed to minimize the impact
its operations may have imposed on the environment. In
order to monitor the progress, the Group started collecting
and reporting its ESG-related activities in the past reporting
periods. Since the 2016-2017 ESG report, the Group took a
step further and began to collect in-depth data for disclosure.
Due to the Group's operations in various business sectors
across multiple geographic regions, the complexity of data
collection and analysis has imposed challenges to responsible
departmental personnel. The Group had endeavoured to
engage internal and external stakeholders to build an extensive
database for ESG matters. The collected data was analysed
and assessed against the Group’s operational performance,
to provide an accurate overview to the senior management to
implement improvement measures accordingly.

In summary, the result indicated the Group’s financial and
retail business do not involve in the production-related direct
air, water, or land pollutions, which are regulated under Hong
Kong laws and regulations, and thus do not contribute to any
material impact in these areas. The Group's film production
activity was also operated under the Group's ESG provision,
and complied to all local laws and regulations in concern.

The Group’s most relevant environmental issues identified
during this reporting period were the followings:

° Air emission;

° Electricity consumption;
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° Non-hazardous Waste; and
° Water consumption.

The Group's internal environmental protection awareness
programme had consistently reminded and encouraged
employees and clients to join efforts into improving its
environmental performance. Details of such processes and
actions are described in the following sections.

Air Emission

The Group's primary business activities branch into film
production, retail and securities trading services. The business
nature of the Group’'s operations in film production, retail
and securities operation does not involve direct or significant
emission of air and greenhouse gases from industrial or
combustion process. In other words, the Group concluded that
there is no material impact found, through direct air emission,
to the environment as a result of its business operations.
(Indirect carbon emission through electricity consumption is
measured and further details shall be provided in the later
section.)

Regardless, the Group brought itself forward to examine
the indirect emissions generated via its operations. The
assessment indicated that electricity and fuel consumption
(ie: Diesel, LPG and Petroleum) are two of the most significant
contributions to such. For instance, the hire of mobile
generators as a temporary power source for film production,
as well as own vehicles for transportation are main sources
for fuel consumption. The Group thus accords to the ESG
guideline suggestion to report on the captioned air emissions.

As a summary, the Group's total air emissions can be
summarized as below:
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Table 2. Group Air Emission Performance
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The Group will continue to monitor its operational activities to
ensure its air emission maintains at a satisfactory level. Further
information shall be disclosed should there be significant
changes to the reported emission levels.

Carbon Emission

The Group started examining its carbon emission generated
from its operation activities since its last ESG report. In this
reporting period, the Group enhanced its data collection
system, and thus improved the quality of data collected.
In addition to power consumption from offices, electricity
consumed from the Group's film production (which had
commenced during this reporting period) and vehicle fuel
consumption were also included in this year's carbon emission
calculation.

Similar to the methodology employed last year, the Group
estimated its carbon emission, as a Group, based on the
activities mentioned above and emission factors from
reputable third-party source on the public domain (ie:
electricity consumption data and the carbon intensity factor
are available on the electricity bills, sustainability reports from
electricity provider and public organizations, such as HKSAR
Environmental Protection Department).

As the result, the Group generated 750.8 tCO, in this reporting
period.

The Group will continue to put its best efforts on minimizing
carbon emission, enhancing overall performance and operation
efficiency through working closely with employees and
external stakeholders. Further information and progress will
be disclosed in the subsequent ESG report.

Waste Management

The Group's core business involves only retails and financial
services. However, there were an insignificant amount of
chemicals used during the filming process (<50kg), of which
were disposed of safely and legally by licensed operators.
Overall, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
related laws or regulations in regards to such matters and will
continue its strict monitoring practices.
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For non-hazardous waste, the Group had been cautious about
waste generation from daily activities, and have worked closely
with employees and partnered with suppliers on reducing
solid waste. The Group promoted the culture of recycling,
and had placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations
to increase employees’ awareness on recycling. Since last
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reporting period, the Group had promoted the paper-less REBEAIHN TIERE  BERLER K

working environment, and the initiative had been continued ¥ & Hi [l %5 & #: 17 -

in this reporting period.

The Group's office, retail and other business activites AEEHRAZE ZTERHEMEBKEH

generated daily waste from its operation. For this reporting REZLEFR TEHLBEEEY - R A&

period, recorded waste production as follows: HSHIE - T BmEENRENT

Total Sum (tonne)

Waste Generation BEYHE w8 (M)
Hazardous Waste BEEEZEY <0.05
Non-Hazardous Waste BEEZEY 910

Table 3. Group Waste Generation Amount k- AEEMNEEDPREE

The Group shall continue its effort in the careful management
of generated waste, and further data will be disclosed in
subsequent ESG reports.

Use of Resources

The Group is an environmentally friendly company, and
had actively promoted the culture of "Efficient & Green”
operations since the last reported period. Continued from
last year, the Group had continued its efforts to encourage
employees to consume resources smartly, particularly on
paper and electricity.

Initiatives such as the adoption of energy conservation
practices were successfully implemented in the offices in
the past year. Latest environmental trends and green tips
were available to employees as constant reminders for
responsible use of natural resources. In addition, suitable
facilities management were in place to identify building
services that require upgrades for improved building efficiency
and employee comfort.
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A summary of the Group’s consumption on natural resources ASEBERARERBHORRAERERH

during this reporting period is provided as below: E2MT
Total
Consumption ltem ¥ HIEH Unit B At
Electricity Consumption A& kWh T R B 800,766
Water Consumption A K m? 377K 123,327
Diesel Consumption 5 h # A L N T 56,750
Petroleum Consumption £\ L NG AT 4,393
LPG Consumption &AL BB R FER L nF 975
Electricity Consumption Intensity A & 538 E kWh/revenue  F I B, Uz A 0.0092
(HK$) (Bx)
Water Consumption Intensity Rk E L/revenue NH A 0.0014
(HK$) (%)
Table 4. 2017-2018 Resource Consumption Summary XN T+ /- \FEREREHBE
Resources Conservation BRR#E

Resources consumption patterns of the Group had been ZAEFEDIREFHEBE HEeREE®R
disclosed in last year's ESG Report, and the Group had strived & EZEEBREREBE N A& B 8 it —
to make incremental improvements since. HEBOELRZRA-

The Group had continued its successful policies regarding AEBEZETHEBAE XN R R AR ER
energy and paper consumption. These practices have been B % - ZZEBHICFHFMN FFHNRE -1

detailed in last year's ESG report, highlighted as below: ehERREF BB ROT
o Air conditioners were set to 23-25°C; o HTEFEE B23-25°C ;

. ldling electronic appliances were to be switched off or e EBREERIA B RTARBER
set to energy saving mode; o

bt

. Documents were to be printed or copied double-sided; e BHEY Nk N3 &
and

. E-marketing material, such as greeting cards weretobe o [FHAE FEHEM A WEINEFH R
sent via electronic means only. FEER

The Group took pride in promoting such practices toits partners A& B S M E B M EEFHEITE BB
and suppliers, and would continue to carry out most of its Il B E|EE - W4 & A &E H N ETH
business communication digitally instead of printing hardcopy A D X B EB KB EE XHF AR
documents to foster a paperless working environment. TRHEAEHITIERE-
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SOCIAL

The business of the Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, the film production business involves
working with a large number of individuals across various
industries. Employees include actors, productions workers,
retail shop sales and even line workers. The Group understands
the best way to attract or retain talents is by offering competitive
compensations, and treating employees fairly and equally in
regardless of culture, gender and interests, while complying
to laws and regulations. As one of its guiding principles, the
Group commits to growing its business sustainably and in
a socially responsible manner, whilst continuing its best
management practices to improve in areas as needed.

Employment and Labour Standard

The Group truly understands that its success depends on the
seamless teamwork among employees and thus recognises
its people as one of the most valuable assets in contributing
toward its achievements. The Group trusted that the works
of excellence must be well compensated, and therefore
have always offering a market competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to its own employees.

The Group is an Equal Opportunity Employer (EOQOE). This
means that it is committed to equal treatment of all employees
without regard to race, national origin, religion, gender, age,
sexual orientation, veteran status, physical or mental disability
or other basis protected by law. The Employment Policy of
the Group accords to and exceeds the requirements of the
Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming to
provide a fair compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and anti-discrimination scheme for all of our
employees.
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During the employment process, the Group made it clear to
responsible recruitment employees that any discrimination
acts against the EOE would not be tolerated. The same policy
extends to its internal training and promotion practices. The
human resource department would also be responsible for
ensuring compliance with all regulations during the employee
recruitment process, where resumes and identification cards
are carefully reviewed to prevent any cases of the employment
of child or forced labour, or junior members under the age
of 16 years old as full-time staff. In addition, for the film
operation, the Group protects the interests of part-time child
employees, and by restricting their working hours to under 4
hours per day. Any breach of such action will be reported to
the company’s senior management revision and subjected to
further company disciplinary action.

In the reporting period between 1st July 2017 to 30th June
2018, the Group has found no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations during operation.

Remuneration Committee

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive, the
Group had established a Remuneration Committee since
15th July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s Remuneration
Policy, structure of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing Remuneration Policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for giving suggestions to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of the senior management. In detail,
the principles of the Group’s remuneration policies consist of:

(@) ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his
or her own remuneration;

(b)  ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;
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(c) reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of Executive Directors and certain
senior management of the Group.

Emolument Policy

The Group employee’s emolument is determined by the
Remuneration Committee, and it will be assessed based
on merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is
reviewed annually and certain employees are entitled to
commission. In addition to basic salaries, employee benefits
included discretionary bonuses, medical insurance scheme
and the mandatory provident fund as stipulated by law.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees employed.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$0.80 million (approximately HK$0.80
million in the previous year), which had been recognized as
expenses and included in employee costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and
Anti-Discrimination

The Group's Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.
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The Group acquires talents based on their merits to fit in and
contribute to the company regardless of their gender and
age. Together with a transparent employment process, a fair
appraisal, remuneration and incentive scheme, the Group has
attracted a profile of diversified workers to join their workforce.

The following charts provided an overview of its employee’s
gender and age distribution with a total of 110 employees
recorded at the year ended 30th June 2018:

EMPLOYEE GENDER DISTRIBUTION
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Chart 1. Group Employee Gender Distribution
— - AEENEE MRS

The Group had issued a comprehensive Employee Handbook,
providing the basis for human resources management about
the employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest
days, conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety
policy, personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity
policy. All employees were handed a copy of such handbook
upon employment. Any updates to the Group’s employment
policies would be made transparent through electronic means
or other appropriate methods to staff members affected.

During the period from 1st July 2017 to 30th June 2018,

there was no reported material breach of related regulations
and laws.
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Occupational Health and Safety

As a socially responsible company, the Group places great
emphasis on workplace safety, especially for its film making
activities that occasionally involves activities of high risks to
workers, such as working from height, controlled explosions,
stuntman performances, use of equipment and chemicals etc.

The Group’s health and safety practices accords to the guideline
from HKSAR Labour Department (section “Occupational Safety
& Health"”), where safety equipment, measures, practices are
enforced per requirement. Sufficient lighting, air ventilation
and spacious working areas are provided in all premises to
minimise occupational health risks imposed to workers.

Furthermore, the Group safeguards its workplace from
unanticipated events that would require an immediate
evacuation, such as under the accident of fire, and employees
are required to participate in the office building’s regular fire
drills. The building management also provided clear signs and
instructions for emergency incidents (such as the access to
fire safety route or rally points). The participation of these
drills is mandatory for all employees and it were conducted
during office hours.

For the film division, safety practices are part of the daily
routine and it is applied at all times. The Group’s management
team makes periodic visits to ensure all safety practices
were implemented, and to review potential health and safety
risks, or any accidents that may occur. The Group provides
appropriate safety guidelines and equipment to all workers
exposed to safety risks such as Personal Protection Equipment
(PPE), fire extinguishers, emergency evacuation procedures,
and appropriate training to actors or actresses working on
action movies etc. Special insurance is provided to relevant
employees working in such conditions to ensure the best
assistance would be available should any cases of injuries
happen.

The Group also employs third-party contractors to perform
regular check-ups for filming equipment to ensure they are
in a good condition.
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During the reporting period from 1st July 2017 to 30th June
2018, the Group is happy to report that there is no material
non-compliance breach with relevant standards, rules and
regulations, and did not involve in any accidents that has
caused serious injuries to its workers.

Development and Training

The Group's business involves producing products in the
entertainment, financial and retail industry. In order to stay
competitive, periodic trainings for employees are required
for the Group to stay abreast with the latest market
development. Great emphasis was placed on training and
equipping employees with the latest market trend for career
advancement.

Furthermore, the financial market is a dynamic and fluid
industry with ever-changing trends, new knowledge and
mechanisms. As a financial firm dedicated to provide the
best service to its clients, the Group requires its SFC license
holders, especially Account Executives, to attend at least
5-10 hours of CPD training per year to be in the best shape.

Despite considerable training costs involve, the Group adheres
to nurturing talents internally to enhance the overall capability
of its workforce,

The following reports on training received by staff and its
distribution by gender and employee category.
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1At R T I R

Male =R 51.5% 199

Female el 89.6% 1,747
Table 5. Figures on employees trained by gender A -RERESWIEIE THE

Total

Training Ratio

Training Hours

3 Lt & 48 5 3 B B
Senior Management SREERE 62.5% 166
Management &I 45.5% 70
Staff 8T 81.8% 1,640

\

Table 6. Figures on employee trained by category
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Employees, Customers, Suppliers and Other
Stakeholders

The nature of the Group's business requires to work with
numbers of stakeholders from various sectors: suppliers of
watches business to clients and from the financial services
operation. As reported in last year's ESG report, the Group
maintains an open engagement channel with suppliers
that includes procedures to conduct regular meetings and
interviews (for new suppliers).

The Group examines qualifications of its suppliers. Required
business licenses, trademark registration certificates,
trademark use authorizations, product testing reports, and
customs duty certificates are inspected to ensure its validity.
Suppliers would be assessed based on product knowledge,
after-sales service, marketing strategies to ensure the Group's
standards can be met.

Supply Chain Operating Practices and Management

The Group only sources raw materials for its goods from
reputable suppliers. The Group exerts its influence, as a buyer,
to ensure suppliers provide products that comply to local and
international regulations.

The Group respects intellectual property rights and should
report any infringement on copyrights should any of such
act discovered within the scope of the Group’s management
capability. Its customer database is maintained in strict
confidentiality to safeguard consumer data and their privacy.

Product Responsibility

The Group ‘s business spreads across the production of
manufactured goods, movies, and the provision of financial
services. It is therefore anticipated that the Group has a
complicated product management portfolio due to its subjection
to various applicable laws and regulations. Continued from last
year's ESG report, details of the Group's product responsibility
are summarised as below.
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Financial Products

The Group has been strictly adhering to the regulations from
the SFC investors since the beginning of its business in
relation to financial products. Information of customers and
investors are safeguarded and handled in confidentiality.

Regular training is provided to financial advisors that represents
the Group in servicing its clients to ensure no misleading
or deceptive conduct involved when financial products are
offered. The Group ensures clients fully understood the nature
of investment and its associated risks before obtaining full
consent in transactions.

During this reporting period (1st July 2017 to 30th June 2018),
the Group has not received any complaints or comments from
investors and customers in relation to its offered financial
products.

Retails Products — Eyewear

The following ordinances and procedures have been adhered
to regarding the sales of eyewear products:

o Qualified optometrists are present in all of the Group's
eyewear retail shops;

° Eye-tests are conducted by such professionals according
to the section 12(1)(a) of the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance;

° Contact lens are only recommended to customers by
optometrists when a valid prescription is provided (under
section 7.4 of the Code of Practice of the Optometrists
Board);

o Only real and genuine products are offered (under the
Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362)), where false
trade descriptions, misleading or incomplete information
and mis-statements in respect of goods provided in all
sales activities) are strictly prohibited in all of the Group's
shops;

° Products are directly purchased from the manufacturers

and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and
authorizing documents are provided on re-selling goods;
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° Performance of “Triple” quality check-up process
before products are sent to shops (performed by buyer,
procurement officer and front-line sales employees);

° “Table of Tolerance” quality check to be performed on
the lenses upon product arrival to shop. The check is
prepared by the professional association in the Hong
Kong Optical Industry as a quality check up on the
contact lenses, ensuring the status of the expiration of
these lenses are valid before re-selling to customers;
and

° Protection of customers’ data and privacy by denying
unauthorised access to customers’ information.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1st July 2017
to 30th June 2018, the Group has not received any complaints
regarding its eyewear products and services.

Retails Products — Watches

The Group closely monitors its offered watch products,
especially in relation to safety issues. A consistent update
is performed safeguarding the Group with the compliance to
up-to-date laws and regulations related to watch products,
ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information and labels,
and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a breach of
law. On the other hand, regular communication is conducted
with suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation and
measures accordingly.

During its procurement process, the Group relies on a
comprehensive Procurement Policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents,
or directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors,
will be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are
requested from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will
also perform quality control checks to ensure the quality of
watches are up to standard before shipping to shops for sales.

The Group applies the same Data Protection and Privacy Policy
throughout the business. Customer data are stored in a Point
Of Sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.
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There was no comment received in relation to the Group's
watches sold during this reporting period (1st July 2017 to
30th June 2018).

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aims to maintain the same vision with its
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

It is at the heart of the Group's business to operate in an
ethical, personal and professional manner. Any activity relating
to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities would not be tolerated.
Conflict of interests will be reported, to prevent the possible
occurrence of inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client
transactions. Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering
training and circulars are provided to employees to remain
cautious on suspicious transactions.

One of the businesses of the Group is its securities business
and measures are enforced to prevent money laundering
activities in operations. Adoption of strict control over opening
of client account, which would be subjected to approval by
responsible officers is in place to ensure no fraud and money
laundering activities arise. Name search in the anti-money
laundering database system, maintained and provided by
third-party vendor, will be performed on new clients against
current terrorist and sanction designations. Customer filing
system is also set to perform customer identification, identity
data and preserve transaction records. Large and suspicious
transactions and other aspects of work will be reported to
respective authorities once identified.

The Group regularly reviews transactions by high-risk clients,
in order to identify suspicious transactions. In the event any
suspicious transactions are noted, the responsible officer
would then notify the SFC.
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The compliance manual of the Group has set out policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering. All
employees are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are procedures in place for reporting
suspicious fraudulent actions to the Group’s management, for
the corporate management, and a procedure of two signers
is required as a monitoring measure.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation
in relation to corruption and money laundering activities
identified, involving the Group and its employees.

Data Privacy Compliance

The Group is dedicated to protect the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data from employees, clients, business partners,
and other identifiable individuals. The Group's employees
are instructed to handle confidential information with due
care. Information is only collected and used in a responsible
and non-discriminatory manner, and restricting the use of the
information for the purposes consistent with those identified
in the contracts. Generally, the laws and regulations affecting
the Group includes the Trade Marks Ordinance, Copyright
Ordinance, Trade Descriptions Ordinance and the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the HK Laws). The
Group will stay alert to the relevant legal issues and update
its internal policies when necessary to avoid any breach of
the regulatory requirements.

There were no issues occurred concerning data privacy in this
reporting period.
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COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. The Group's
management team plays an important role in mobilising
employees to join all of these activities, which reflects
management team’s commitment to sustainable development.
The Group believes by encouraging employees to participate
in a wide range of charitable events, community awareness
will be raised, and more people will be inspired to take part
in serving our community.

During this reporting period, the Group had provided actual
support to various community organizations, and details can
be found as the followings:

..........................................
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Contribution
Amount (HKS$)

Company Name NG BREGER)
Banyan Services Association 9+t 88,000
Community CareAge Foundation HEREHS 90,000
Fresh Wave Film Festival Limited HRBEFHERAF 10,000
Lions Clubs International R F e 4 BB R 303 &

District 303-Hong Kong & Macao, China 50,000

The Group has donated a total of HK$238,000 in support
of their respective programmes. The Group will continue in
supporting these meaningful social events and ensure more
activities will be done in the future.
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The board of directors (the “Director(s)"”) (the “Board"”) submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Universe International Financial Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2018 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’'s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
109 to 110.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2017: same).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year are set out
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 36
of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$238,000 (2017: HK$702,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 319 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES/(DEFICIT)

Distributable reserves/(deficit) of the Company as at 30th June
2018 amounted to HK$(152,025,000) (2017: HK$79,365,000)
including contributed surplus, of HK$112,429,000 (2017:
HK$112,429,000), which is only distributable subject to
conditions as set out in Note 27(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
320 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities
during the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and
any invested entity (the “Participants” and individually,
a "Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe
for shares.

(i) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an "Employee”);

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of
its subsidiary or any invested entity;

(iii) any supplier of goods or services to any member

of the Group or any invested entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;
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(v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

(viii) any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of
the Group.

(c) Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

() The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval
for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company's
shareholders has been obtained.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of
the share options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes for the time being of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant to each grantee
must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares
for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of the
share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10- year period.

Payment on acceptance of the share options
offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on acceptance
of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share
option is made and shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided
that the subscription price should not be lower than the
nominal value of a share.
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Particulars of the share options under the Share Option RERARR_-_ZT-—NFEFA=+H B
Scheme outstanding during the Year and as at 30th June MEFEETHARTE2ERE ZFE

2018 were as follows: U
Number of
share options Number of Number of
Priceper  outstanding ~ Number of share options ~ Number of ~share options Market value
Period during share on atthe share options exercised share options  outstanding per share on
which share options exercise beginning granted during during lapsed during at the end grant of
Participants Date of grant are exercisable of options of the Year the Year the Year the Year  of the Year share option

fERKE REQ AEE AEE AEE RER R
BEfz HAfEZz ERHZ  Bfffz  BARz  HAGfZ BRERZ

28 REAH BREGES SREX EREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE BRE¥E SRAE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Executive Directors
HrEs
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, 3rd October 2017 9th October 2017 to 0470 - 8,630,000 (8,530,000) - - 0470
Danell 8th October 2020

WPELE “E-t5+HZR —E-tETANRE
“ZZFETENA

Mr. Hung Cho Sing  4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0811 1,680,503 - - (1,680,503) - 0.68*
3rd March 2018

EHELRE ZE-R"§ZAMA ZE-AF¥ZAMAZ
“Z-)\§=ZR=H

Mr. Lam Kit Sun ~ 4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0.811* 1,680,503 - - (1,680,503) - 0.68*
3rd March 2018

W EE ZE-REZANB ZE-R4¥-AMmAEZ
“Z-\E=F=H

3rd October 2017 9th October 2017 to 0470 - 8,530,000 (8,530,000) - - 0470

8th October 2020

S$-LEHAZR ZT-LETAARE
“ECRETANA

QOther eligible 30th September 2015 30th September 2015 to 1.489* 2,351,799 - - (2,351,799) - 142%
participants 29th September 2017
EfRER ZE-REAAZTR ZE-RFARZTHE
BEN\ ZZ-tEnAZTNA
4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0.811% 7,732,651 - - (7,732,651) - 0.68*
3rd March 2018
“5-7#ZAMA Z5-/EZAMAZE
“2-\%Zh=H
3rd October 2017 9th October 2017 to 0470 - 36,270,000  (36,270,000) - - 0470
8th October 2020

“E-t5+HZR ZE-tETANRE
“ZZFETENA

13445456 53,330,000  (63,330,0000  (13,445,456) -

* The price per share on exercise of options and market value  * TERRERNGRER R D ERE
per share on grant of options have been adjusted after taking ReBBRMEIEER_FT—RF+A
into account of the effect of the rights issue completed on 5th TR CHBR I ERELAE-

October 2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing
(appointed on 1st October 2017)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAM Chi Keung
Mr. CHOI Wing Koon
Mr. TANG Yiu Wing

(appointed on 1st October 2017)
Mr. CHONG Ki Ming

(appointed on 21st December 2017)
Mr. WONG Cheuk Wai, Jason

(appointed on 21st December 2017)
Ms. CHENG Lo Yee

(resigned on 21st December 2017)

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Lam Kit Sun will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
of the Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Lam
Kit Sun being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
such meeting.

On 21st December 2017, Mr. Chong Ki Ming and Mr. Wong
Cheuk Wai, Jason were appointed as additional independent
non-executive Directors to the Board. Pursuant to Bye-law
86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chong Ki Ming and Mr. Wong Cheuk
Wai, Jason shall retire from office and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for
re-election and the candidates who will be proposed to be
elected as Directors, please refer to the circular containing
the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be despatched.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
is satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30th June 2018, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFQO")) which were required to be
(a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest
which any such Director was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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& EEME K% & B BRAESHK
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil  Founder of a discretionary trust 33,546,853 3.70%
(Director) (Note 1)
AN & (EE) —BErEEFRZEIZ A
Beneficial owner 200,860,000 22.15%
ERERA
234,406,853 25.85%
Mr. Lam Kit Sun (Director) Beneficial owner 5,920,000 0.65%
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Note:
1. The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources

Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited which in turn is interested in
33,546,853 shares of the Company. Certain immediate family
members of Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are discretionary objects
of the discretionary trust.
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All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests which they were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief
executives of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short
position in the shares or underlying shares in or debentures
of, the Company or its associated corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2018, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO
were as follows:
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Number of Approximate
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share capital of

Name Nature of interest Company held the Company
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%A EEME KEBEROEHEB ZBMAB T

Mr. Chan Wai Sing, Vincent Beneficial owner 251,745,000 27.77%
PR BB St A EnlEARA
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All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2018, no other
person has any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company in the
register required to be kept by Company under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 30.41%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 71.23%
Sales

— the largest customer 6.76%
— five largest customers in aggregate 25.54%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Sale and Purchase Agreement in relation to the
Entire Issued Share Capital of DPP

Universe Films Distribution Company Limited ("UFD", a
company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with
limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) and Universe Films (Holdings) Limited (“UFH",
a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as vendor entered into the sale
and purchase agreement dated 15th August 2017 (“"SPA-
DPP") with Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, (“Mr. Daneil Lam"),
as purchaser in relation to the sale and purchase of the entire
issued share capital in Digital Programme Production Limited
("DPP", a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong
with limited liability) (“DPP Disposal”). The asset disposed
of under the SPA-DPP is the entire issued share capital of
DPP. The principal asset of DPP consists of 40% interests in
the entire registered capital of Sun Billion Property Limited
(the “Sun Billion”), a company incorporated under the laws
of Macau as a private limited liability company. The principal
business of Sun Billion is investment of land and property in
Macau and the principal asset of Sun Billion consists of the
holding of a property in Macau comprises a parcel of land
with a total registered site area of approximately 828.8 square
foot (“Macau Property”) and it was still under development
in August 2017. The estimated total construction cost for
the completion of the development of the Macau Property
is approximately HK$4,300,000 of which HK$2,660,000 has
been spent as at 30th June 2017.

The consideration of the SPA-DPP is HK$294,000 which was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between UFH and
UFD on the one part and Mr. Daneil Lam on the other part
after taking into account (1) the unaudited net liabilities of DPP
of HK$4,587 as at 15th August 2017; (2) the unaudited net
asset value of Sun Billion of approximately HK$733,183 as at
15th August 2017 (after fair value adjustment to the Macau
Property according to valuation performed by Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited (the “RGA"), an independent
qualified valuer); and (3) the valuation of the Macau Property
at HK$26,800,000 as at 30th June 2017 performed by RGA.
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The Directors considered that the DPP Disposal would reduce
the debt of the Group as DPP owed approximately HK$10.57
million to Mr. Daneil Lam prior to the completion of the
DPP Disposal, and save the further capital expenditure in
developing the Macau Property in the future. In addition, after
the completion of the DPP Disposal, the Group has recorded
a gain on disposal of approximately HK$249,000.

The Directors (except Mr. Daneil Lam who abstained from
participating in the approval of the SPA-DPP due to his
material interests therein), including the independent non-
executive Directors, considered that the entering into of the
SPA-DPP was in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; and the terms of the SPA-DPP were based on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of DPP
was completed on 15th August 2017 and DPP ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company immediately after the completion.

Sale and Purchase Agreement in relation to Vehicle A

Universe Property Investment Limited (“UPI”) (a company
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
and the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr.
Daneil Lam as vendor entered into the sale and purchase
agreement dated 4th December 2017 (“SPA-Vehicle A")
with Universe Watch & Jewellery Group Company Limited
("Universe Watch & Jewellery"”, a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as purchaser in
relation to the sale and purchase of a “"Mercedes Benz”
brand private vehicle manufactured in 2014 (“Vehicle A") at
a consideration of HK$1,060,000 which was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiation between UPI and Universe Watch
& Jewellery with reference to the original acquisition cost
of Vehicle A of HK$1,968,401.90 and a valuation performed
by a motor company, an independent third party, on 13th
November 2017 at HK$1,060,000.
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The Vehicle A was acquired for the daily travelling usage of the
Group's directors and staff. The Directors (except Mr. Daneil
Lam who abstained from participating in the approval of the
SPA-Vehicle A due to his material interests therein), including
the independent non-executive Directors, considered that the
entering into of the SPA-Vehicle A was in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; and the terms of the
SPA Vehicle A were based on normal commercial terms and
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The sale and purchase of
Vehicle A was completed on 4th December 2017.

Sale and Purchase Agreement in relation to Vehicle B

Mr. Lam Siu Keung, Alvin (“Mr. Alvin Lam”, the general
manager of the film production and film distribution division
of the Group and the younger brother of Mr. Daneil Lam) as
vendor entered into the sale and purchase agreement dated
25th January 2018 “SPA-Vehicle B"with Universe Watch &
Jewellery, as purchaser in relation to the sale and purchase
of a "Toyota” brand private vehicle manufactured in 2009
("Vehicle B"”) at a consideration of HK$118,000 which was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between Mr. Alvin
Lam and Universe Watch & Jewellery with reference to the
original acquisition cost of Vehicle B of HK$384,330 and a
valuation performed by a motor company, an Independent
Third Party, on 23rd January 2018 at HK$118,000.

The Vehicle B was acquired for the daily travelling usage of
the Group's directors and staff. The terms of the SPA-Vehicle
B were arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between Mr.
Alvin Lam and Universe Watch & Jewellery. The Directors
(except Mr. Daneil Lam who abstained from participating in
the approval of the SPA-Vehicle B due to his material interests
therein), including the independent non-executive Directors,
considered that the entering into of the SPA-Vehicle B was
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
and the terms of the SPA Vehicle B were based on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
The sale and purchase of Vehicle B was completed on 25th
January 2018.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with UPI, a company owned by Mr. Daneil
Lam, the executive Director of the Company, for renting (1)
an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level
basement (with a saleable area of approximately 13,983
square foot) and (2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a
28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking
podium plus a 2-level basement (“Rented Properties”) for
warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses from 25th
February 2017 to 24th February 2018, with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived
at following arm’s length negotiation between the Group and
UPI with reference to the rental valuation performed by Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent property
valuer, as at 29th September 2016 which reflected the then
market rent. Such tenancy expired on 24th February 2018.
Renewed tenancy agreement for the Rented Properties from
25th February 2018 to 24th February 2021 was entered into by
UDE and UPI, with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (“Renewed
Tenancy Agreement”) and the terms of the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement were arrived at following arm’s length negotiation
between the Group and UPI with reference to the rental
valuation performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited, an independent property valuer, as at 22nd January
2018 which reflected the then market rent.

During the Year, UDE has paid a total of HK$1,917,143 and
HK$1,010,857 in rent to UPI in respect of the Rented Properties
in accordance with the terms of the Tenancy Agreement and
Renewed Tenancy Agreement respectively.

LISTING RULE IMPLICATIONS OF THE
CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Daneil Lam is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules). As such, the Tenancy
Agreement and the Renewed Tenancy Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, the entering
into of the Tenancy Agreement will be aggregated with the
acquisitions of Vehicle A and Vehicle B and the DPP Disposal
which were entered into/completed within a 12-month period
as a single series of transactions.

Mr. Daneil Lam, who is the founder, the chairman of the
Company and an executive Director, is a Connected Person.
Mr. Alvin Lam is the general manager of the film production
and film distribution division of the Group and the younger
brother of Mr. Daneil Lam. Pursuant to Rule 14A.12(2)(a), Mr.
Alvin Lam is an associate of Mr. Daneil Lam and hence also
a Connected Person.

Accordingly, the entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on
an annual basis) together with the acquisitions of Vehicle A
and Vehicle B and the DPP Disposal constituted continuing
connected transactions/connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules. As certain applicable
percentage ratios for the entering into of the Tenancy
Agreement (on an annual basis) together with the acquisitions
of Vehicle A and Vehicle B and the DPP Disposal are less
than 5%, the entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on an
annual basis) together with the acquisitions of Vehicle A and
Vehicle B and the DPP Disposal satisfy the exemption under
Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules and are only subject to the
reporting, annual review and the announcement requirements,
but exempt from the circular (including independent financial
advice) and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Suffice it to say that (1) each of the entering into of the Tenancy
Agreement, the acquisition of Vehicle A, the acquisition of
Vehicle B and the DPP Disposal as a standalone transaction; (2)
the acquisition of Vehicle A and the DPP Disposal aggregated
together; and (3) the acquisition of Vehicle A, the acquisition
of Vehicle B and the DPP Disposal aggregated together, would
have been fully exempted under Rule 14A.76(1) as the relevant
considerations and applicable percentage ratios thereunder
are less than HK$3,000,000 and less than 5% respectively.
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To the extent applicable, the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent
non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms; and (c) in accordance with the Tenancy Agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

To the extent applicable, the Company's auditor was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” in respect of the Tenancy Agreement issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its letter containing its conclusion in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on page 95 and 96 of this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange in accordance with Rule 14A.57 of the
Listing Rules.

Apart from the above, there are other related party
transactions entered into by the Group during the Year, all
of which constituted exempted connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules, or did not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
during the Year. Details of these transactions are disclosed in
Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEERES

..........................................................

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company's
issued shares as at 30th June 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (formerly “Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited”) who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe

To the shareholders of Universe International Financial
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group"”) set out on
pages 107 to 318, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30th June 2018, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30th June 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BYRBERES

BEEE () SitMEHMERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
&8 REE SEEET7R BP0
9/F Leighton Centre,
77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Fair values of the unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership
Refer to Notes 3.3(i), 4(a)(iv) and 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

BYRBERES

FEREEZEE@®

FLHRABERF LHERBE AT
WAFHE
2B 5 A BT R M EE3.300 - da)ivI R

Key audit matter

HEREXRER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EMWERNHBERERSHEST

We identified the fair values of the unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited partnership as a key audit
matter as the carrying amounts of these financial
instruments are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and selection of valuation methodologies and
determination of key valuation assumptions requires the
use of significant judgement and estimates. As at 30th
June 2018, the Group held interest in unlisted investment
funds of HK$1,049,000 and unlisted limited partnership of
HK$64,833,000, which have been classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.
BMEFELLTREEGRIFLETAEREBRAARTE
B A HHEREXRFE RARZF R IANK
HEHGaWBEREMEBER MABEBFTENEE
EXrEHEBERNETCHRAERERNHE KGR
—E-NFXRA=Z=TH BEXERBBILTREHR
T 1,049,0008 T RIF LT ARE B QA A ELE
64,833,000 T - B HERAIMEESTREE -

These unlisted investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership are stated at their fair values, classified under
level three in the fair value hierarchy.
ZEFITREESGRIFLITEREGERRKEEAT
BIR BEoEARFTESRETHNE=H"-

The fair values of unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership were determined based on the net
asset values of those unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership as at 30th June 2018, which
had already taken into account the fair values of the
underlying investments of the unlisted investment funds
and unlisted limited partnership.
FIITTREESGRARGBR AN ATENDREZS
T REESRIILETARGBR AN _ZE—NEF
NAZTEWNEEFEET BRI RIFLTRER
CRIFELTEREBRAANMEBEAKREZATE:

Our procedures in relation to
management’s determination of the
fair value of these financial instruments
included:

B EEEE
FEMAATHRERF S :

TZEEMIANR

we verified the ownership and
existence of the unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited
partnership by checking to the
subscription confirmation issued by
the fund managers and arranging
written confirmation from the fund
managers;
EEFRERESKBRELNR
BHRERAELCHESKEEEY
BRE RERFLTREESR
FLETEREGREAANKRENH
ERERREFE:

we obtained and reviewed the
subscription agreements of the
unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership;

BMRETEHNIFLLTREES
RIIELFTEREGEERAANRED

22
e

we tested the accuracy of the
net asset values of the unlisted
investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership by checking to
their statements;
BMEREERE ARELTER
EESRIFLTEREELFE
EFEMERM
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Fair values of the unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership (Continued)

B R E X EE @)

LT REEEZRF LT ERERAA
#Y 22 F 18 ()

Key audit matter

HEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
EMNERNAHBEAREXRSRET
B2

The management and unlisted limited partnership engaged
independent external valuers in determining the fair value
of their underlying investments at fair value through profit
or loss.
EEERFLITEREGEARANZEB LI B ERE
EEREFRABEERATEAENEHRAKRENATE-

- we evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuers
engaged by the management and
unlisted limited partnership for
determining the fair values of the
underlying investments and the
valuation methodology employed;

- BTG EREERIFLTERE
BNTFTEE R R BB E A
BB Eee h REE I AEE BB
REATEURMKAMBEBERTE:

- we engaged our valuation experts to
assist us in critically assessing the
key inputs used in the valuations
of the underlying investments of
the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership which
require significant estimation and
judgement. We also evaluated
the adequacy of the independent
external valuers’ work; and

- BMZEGHEZXB R M A
MHTEIFELTHREES R L
MBEREGEZRAGWNMAEBEKRENG
BERREFFAAEFHERMH R
HETEH F Zda ABE - B IR
BUNBEEMOIERE R D
&

- we considered the adequacy of the
Group's disclosures in relation to
the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership.

- BMERE EEEAHEIILTERE
EeRILTEREGBARAEKE
BEREORD o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’'s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS S

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS S

REBMRERGS B ®RE

EENEFwm

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZRMRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Dune, Charles.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28th September 2018

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P00712
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

As at 30th June 2018 R=-ZF—/TEANA=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2018 2017

W=B-N%F R_T—+%

NA=1H NA=+H
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 3E THEx FAETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME HENEE 6 5,705 3,702
Investment properties "EYE 7 29,360 25,560
Goodwill RS 9 - 28,064
Other intangible assets HimEEE 8 2,535 23,583
Film rights and films in progress BT E R B S
E58-7 10 80,603 41,073
Interests in associates REEEQNR 2= 12(a) 2,875 19,393
Interests in joint ventures REERA ZER 13(a) = 251
Loans receivable EWE = 21(a) 1,447 45,500
Loan to an associate By —EBE R
Z B 21(b) 4,340 2,940
Loan receivable from a el — A % QA
joint venture Z B 13(b) - 8,595
Film related deposits ER- 25 HE 35,693 45,284
Deposits paid BfE] & 14 1,396 197
Deferred tax assets EIEFTEE E 30 274 6,447
Available-for-sale financial assets At ELMEE 16 65,882 155,693
te et eettttetttttaarrrnnsanneesemannnsrssesseennnnsnassssrnnaness. NN 230,110 . 406,276
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 19 8,028 10,066
Accounts receivable JE 452 BR 3K 20 30,935 333,859
Loans receivable e E &R 21(a) 56,598 30,400
Loan to an associate il 10 i /NI=]
ZEBX 21(b) 2,500 5,000
Amount due from an associate JE U — fE B & R B EIE 12(b) 89 964
Deposits paid, prepayments and BEfEI & B RE
other receivables N H b g W F 18 14 170,589 100,674
Financial assets at fair value FEBREAYE
through profit or loss Ao EE 15 49,356 232,629
Contingent consideration & U s A KB
receivable 22 3,796 15,737
Tax recoverable A Ug [B] i 1E = 93
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRKE S
— trust accounts -=EEEF 23 7,157 93,014
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHESEEY 24 522,285 228,222
Total current assets REBEELAE 851,333 1,050,658
Total assets wEE 1,081,443 1,456,934
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners AR Bl % A A FE (5 # 35
of the Company
Share capital fi% 7 25 9,066 8,533
Share premium f& 19 & B 27(a) 928,358 893,345
Other reserves H & 27(a) 67,565 67,867
(Accumulated losses)/retained (BstEE) REB AR
earnings 27(a) (88,094) 43,614
916,895 1,013,359
Non-controlling interests IE 175 A% #E 2 78 168
JTotalequity . . ... ... REBE 916,973 .. 1,013,527
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEEERER

As at 30th June 2018 R=-ZF—NE~NA=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2018 2017
RZEBE-NF RZT—tF
~A=+AH ~NB=+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FA T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Borrowings =R 28 - 10,000
Obligations under a finance lease gt & 8 & & & 29 7 28
Deferred tax liabilities B IHA & 30 440 13,413
TR, . L AU 23,441
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable & 15 BR 3K 31 8,518 92,447
Other payables and accrued H b fE < 5018 N FE &
charges et 32 112,388 234,560
Contingent consideration payable  F& i sk A X (B 33 20,400 19,568
Borrowings BE 28 - 43,063
Deposits received B Uk ET/i\ 14,528 22,645
Obligations under a finance lease gt & f & & 29 18 35
Taxation payable FE % B I8 8,171 7,648
. Total current liabilities . REAGEE . ..........084028 419,966
Total liabilities HmEE 164,470 443,407
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 1,081,443 1,456,934
Net current assets RBEEEE 687,310 630,692
Total assets less current MEERRBAE
liabilities 917,420 1,036,968
The notes on pages 115 to 318 are an integral part of these &N FE1I5BEEFI8E 2 WTF A=
consolidated financial statements. EMmE L — o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 t0 318 H R F107EEZ F£318E VK& B R X
were approved by the Board on 28th September 2018 and R -_ZEZ—NEHNLA- T+ NBREE=2 #t
were signed on its behalf: EERBRENTREESE -
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun /s 87 k£ 57
Director Director = FE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #HZ=

—E-NFEXNA=THILFE

2018 2017
—E-\§ ZE—+f
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TER TET
(restated)
E5)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: BEGEXY
Revenue I &
Sales of goods - video distribution, optical HEER-BBEET
products, watches and jewellery products YEER BRNEZER 32,857 52,161
Income on film distribution and exhibition, BYBRORNM BT
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights RERSFMmERA 36,377 133,725
Income from other businesses B 3 ON 17,439 9,831
Total revenue Bl n 5 86,673 195,717
Cost of revenue I & B A
Cost of inventories sold EEREMAE (21,703) (32,500)
Related cost on film distribution and BYRORNM B
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of RER TR AN A
film rights (15,913) (65,052)
Cost from other businesses HEMEBRA (3,234) (462)
Total cost of revenue WEBKA (40,850) (88,014)
Selling expenses HEEZH (12,747) (13,834)
Administrative expenses THER (111,727) (96,319)
Other operating (expenses)/income Em@e(BR) /A (45) 60
Gain on disposal of film library HEEYE < M 10 182,050 -
Impairment loss of goodwill BEFEER 9 = (22,980)
Impairment loss of interest in an associate R-EBEAR ERAE
BB 12(a) (16,045) (3,227)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale HELELREERERE
financial assets 16 (23,849) (89,643)
Impairment loss of other receivables EmERFEREESSE - (1,532)
Impairment loss of film related deposits BEYHE2RERR (6,949) -
Impairment loss of accounts receivable EURBR SR BB 1B 20 (4,098) (1,510)
Impairment loss of film rights EYMERBBA 10 (4,903) -
Amortisation of other intangible assets HwBFEESH 8 (148) (148)
Other losses - net EEE-F8% 39 (8,999) (5,462)
Other income At A 38 2,772 2,956
Gains/(losses): Wa/ (B8 :
Fair value change of financial assets BRBRERATEAR
at fair value through profit or loss EREELNTEEY (108,598) 12,679
Fair value change of contingent EURIAREBELATEED
consideration receivable 22 (11,941) 4,807
Fair value change of contingent ERIARELATEED
consideration payable 33 (832) (8,638)
Fair value change on investment properties REMEZLATEEY 7 3,800 -
Finance income BBRA 40 104 288
Finance costs B A 34(c) (3,078) (6,061)
Share of losses of associates ¥ A= R (473) (216)
Share of losses of a joint venture BlE—HA2RAABE 13(a) (31) (231)
Loss on deregistration of a joint venture AH-HAERAMNBE 13(a) - (24)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HMBLA 2 RaE 47 249 -
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary dH-ENBERF . BE (35) -
Loss before tax bR 34 (79,700) (121,332)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisme &/ (%) 41 3,586 (6,154)
Loss for the year from continuing operations ERRAERELEXBNER (76,114) (127,486)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRLEEER:
Profit for the year from discontinued PEABELEN
operation classified as held for sale REERIEELEBH
R 43 - 4,075
(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued REBKRIEEEEBR
operation FRER) & 42 (59,260) 8,890
Loss for the year ERNBE (135,374) (114,521)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 HZ=ZT—/\FANA=1HILFE

2018 2017
—E-\% —T—+%
Note HK$000 HK$ 000
P TER TEX
(restated)
ER)
Other comprehensive income: E2ERE:
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: EJEE CENSEERR
EE:
Net movement in available-for-sale B LEeREETMH
investment reserve in respect of JAHHERE R
available-for-sale financial assets: JEHEE:
Net changes in fair value of AN ESREEY
available-for-sale financial assets RYEZHFE (39,827) (88,565)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts BFNEARERE
transferred to profit or loss: Bame®:
Impairment loss RERR 23,849 89,643
Realised loss upon disposal/redemption HE/EEaHLESH
of available-for-sale financial assets EEBACEEER 18,986 6,571
42,835 96,214
Release of translation reserve upon REEHBARKEERE
disposal of subsidiary & 34 (29)
Currency translation differences ERKEESR 182 41
Other comprehensive income FRHEMZENRS NRBEE
cfortheyear metoftax . 8224  .......186)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ER2EEEAR (132,150) (106,860
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of KRAEBEAELE(ER),/
the Company: A
— from continuing operations -REBERLELE (76,024) (127,293)
- from discontinued operation -REERIEESH (59,260) 12,965
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARREBEAEEERNER
the Company (135,284) (114,328)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests:  3F i3 R B & FE{E 5 48
— from continuing operations -RERBREEH (90) (193)
- from discontinued operation -RBDRIEEEER = -
Loss for the year attributable to FEREREEENEE
non-controlling interests (90) (193)
Total comprehensive loss for the year LDTEHEER2EEEAE:
attributable to: ~
Owners of the Company ARAERA (132,060 (106,667)
Non-controlling interests FERER (90) (193)
(132,150) (106,860)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable A2 T HEHE AL 2
to owners of the Company arises from: 2E(EE)/ WEBERA
Continuing operations BELEER (72,800) (119,632)
Discontinued operation EREEEEH (59,260) 12,965
(132,060) (106,667)
Loss per share attributable to owners of FERADAERAEL (restated)
the Company for the year SREBUB IR festate
(expressed in HKS): - (E751)
From continuing and discontinued REBERCALEE
operations %
- basic -EX 44(a) (0.152) 0.211)
- diluted -%E 44(b) (0.152) (0.211)
From continuing operations REGEREEE
- basic -£X 44(a) (0.086) 0.234)
- diluted -#E 44(b) (0.086) (0.234)
The notes on pages 115 to 318 are an integral part of these & % %1155\ ZEIBEZM TR U FL
consolidated financial statements. e GmEk s —Hn o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERZER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 EHZE_—F—NENA=1+HIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ERAEEAER
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves losses) Total interests equity
(Note 27(a))
RERA/
kx  KO%E EtEE (REER) i FERER  SE&
([ 3£ 27(a)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
(i3 TEn ThRL TEn TEn Thn TEr  TiEn
Balance at 1st July 2016 R-E-RELA-AZER 1778 532910 67,301 151,162 753,151 (1,20 751,921
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FRER - - - (114328 (114,328) (193 (114,521)
Other comprehensive loss HEt2EER
Net changes in fair value of TREESHEEZATE
available-for-sale financial assets 256 16 - - (88,565 - (88,565 - (88,565)
Reclassification acjustments ENAEABERAZERD
for amounts transferred to 28
profit or loss:
Impairment loss HEER - - 89,643 - 89,643 - 89,643
Realised loss upon redemption EOAHLECREARNRM
of available-for-sale financial BERER
assets - - 6,571 - 6,571 - 6,571
Currency translation differences ERREER - - 4 - I - 4
Release of translation reserve REEHEAARBOAE
upon disposal of subsidiary Fa 47 - - 29) - (29) - (29)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ Ht2EEBLE - - 7,661 - 7,661 - 7,661
Total comprehensive loss for EN2EFELE
the year - - 7,661 (114,328) (106,667) (193)  (106,860)
Transactions with owners HEBAZRAE
Issue of new ordinary shares from ~ RERERAHEER
placing 25 3,200 162,870 - - 166,070 - 166,070
Transaction costs attributable REERTNERRERLL
to issue of new ordinary REME
shares from placing 26 - (5,808) - - 5,808) - (5,808)
Rights issue of shares HERETRR 2% 3555 209,773 - - 213,328 - 213328
Transaction costs attributable to ERETHEBREL
issue of new ordinary shares RHHAE
from rights issue 25 - (6,400) - - 6,400) - 6,400)
Share option scheme ERiETE
- Lapse of share options -EREXM - - (7,095 7,095 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest hE-HRBARENMER
ina subsidiary - - - (315) (315) 315 -
Capital injection from a non- FEREERRTE
controlling interest shareholder - - - - - 100 100
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHERA 4 - - - - - 1,176 1176
Total contributions by and FAAREARERAALT
distribution to owners of BEADRZAE BER
the Company, recognised BEMEA
directly in equity 6,755 360,435 (7,095) 6,780 366,875 1591 368,466
Balance at 30th June 2017 and RIE-tEXRAZTHER
1st July 2017 “E-tEtB-HzEH 8,533 893,345 67,867 43,614 1,013,359 168 1,013,527
Comprehensive Loss 2AEE
Loss for the Year FRER - - - (135284 (135,284) (90)  (135,374)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #HZ=

—E-NN\FAA=THILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ERAEEAER
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves losses) Total interests equity
(Note 27(a))
RERA/
kx  RGEE HbRE (RHER B FERER LEE
(/i 3£ 27(a))
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
(i3 TEn ThL ThEL TEn Thn TEr  TiEn
Other comprehensive loss E2EEE
Net changes in fair value of TREESHEEZATE
available-for sale financial assets 2Y5E 16 - - (39,827) - (39,827) - (39827)
Reclassification acjustments for ENARHARERZREY
amounts transferred to profit £8:
or loss
Impairment loss FHEER - - 23,849 - 23,849 - 23849
Realised loss upon disposal of LETREESBAERR
available-for-sale financial BERER
assets - - 18,986 - 18,986 - 18,986
Currency translation difference EHHEEER - - 182 - 182 - 182
Release of translation reserve REERBRAARERSR
upon disposal of subsidiary Ea - - 34 - 34 - 3
Total other comprehensive loss ~ Ht2EFBLE - - 3204 - 3204 - 3204
Total comprehensive loss EN2ERELE
for the Year - - 3,224 (135,284) (132,060) (900 (132,150)
Transactions with owners REGAZRAE
Share option scheme BREHE
- Grant of share options -RUBRE - - 10,481 - 10,481 - 10481
- Lapse of share options -EREAK - - 3,576) 3,576 - - -
Shares issued under share option ~~ REBRE T 2B THRG
scheme 25 533 35,013 (10,481) - 25,065 - 25,065
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAF - - 50 - 50 - 50
Total contributions by and EAAREARERAALT
distribution to owners of BEARRZAE EER
the company, recognised BETRA
directly in equity 533 35,013 (3,526) 3,576 35,596 - 35,596
Balance at 30th June 2018 -NEXAZTH
k% 9,066 928,358 67,565 (88,094) 916,8% 78 916973
The notes on pages 115 to 318 are an integral part of these %ﬁ REVSEZEEISHEHZHN T AU EFL
consolidated financial statements. eaMBHErRz—HD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 HZE_—F—NENA=+HIFFE

2018 2017
S ZE—LF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T FAET
Cash flows from operating EEITEH2HESRE
activities
Net cash generated from/ EETETBEL(FTA)
(used in) operating activities ZERE 46 225,629 (105,458)
Cash flows from investing REZTBH2RERE
activities
Investment in associates RBERARZRE - (1,859)
Purchase of property, BAME #RENX
plant and equipment B 6 (5,769) (1,358)
Purchase of other intangible BAEMEBREEE
assets 8 - (9,500)
Decrease in film related deposits ?'-ai FHBFTE 2R 3,375 1,640
Increase in film related deposits B EBEFT e 2EMm (7,972) (15,332)
Payments for film rights and B REEERZ
films in progress ER-ZNEN 10 (44,879) (10,138)
Investment in available-for-sale AIHEHEesmEE
financial assets % E - (149,246)
Proceeds from disposal/ HEERaHEE
redemption of available-for- ERMEEZE
sale financial asset KIA 49,984 5,929
Proceeds from capital return Attt EeMEEZ
from available-for-sale - NEl #I?z Fr 1% 518
financial assets = 6,199
Proceeds from disposal of HEME KRR
property, plant and equipment HE 2B RIE 46(a) 1,053 278
Proceeds from disposal of HE H b m g F 7z
other intangible assets Fr 15 # 18 16,290 -
Receipt of the remaining I =) ﬁgETAB Sl
portion of the proceeds from BEEEZERE
disposal of film library 10 76,927 -
Loan receivable granted to By —RE=
a third party 7 E W E = 21(a) (947) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on HEWNBARZR®
disposal of subsidiaries A G ) FEE 47 294 (1,359)
Interest received 2 F 8 228 63
Dividends received from Bl — g A A
an associate & 2 12(a) - 4,753
Net cash generated from/(used BREZEEL (FTH)
in) investing activities ZERE 88,584 (169,930)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #Z_=%F

—NFEXA=+HIEFE

2018 2017
—N£E ZE—LF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FAET
Cash flows from financing METH2EERE
activities
Proceeds from shares issued 1T (50 BE R RE RS B 1T
upon exercise of share options S 7 Fr8 =g 25,065 -
Proceeds from placing of new fid & 31 8K Z
ordinary shares Fr 15 5K 78 - 166,070
Payments for transaction costs A B E & LT
attributable to issue of new MEBEREN
ordinary shares from placing 23X 5 KA - (5,808)
Proceeds from rights issue AR TR (D
of shares Fr 15 5K 78 - 213,328
Payment for transaction costs XA E Hx 1T
attributable to issue of T BREN
new ordinary shares from 25K
rights issue - (6,400)
Proceeds from borrowings BEEZEREA - 53,063
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (53,063) (9,200)
Capital element of finance leases AR ENZK 2
payments =N 46(a) (28) (35)
Loan from a director —REEETEX 47 10,571
Interest paid 2B (2,694) (6,091)
Capital injection from —EWBRARESE
non-controlling interest arising ZHEETRERTE
from a subsidiary = 100
Net cash (used in)/generated BmEEH (A
... from financing activities ... BEZRRE i 2 405,027,
Net increase in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents Z RN 294,064 129,639
Currency translation differences EmE xR (1) 71
Cash and cash equivalents REVHREMAES
at beginning of the year £BY 228,222 98,512
Cash and cash equivalents REXRBERES
at end of the year ZE8Y 522,285 228,222
Analysis of cash and ReRASEEYD
cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents BEEESEZEED 24 522,285 228,222

The notes on pages 115 to 318 are an integral part of these N E 1168 £ F 3188 2 M i & It F 4=
A E N A
consolidated financial statements. = Eﬁﬁ*& k-85
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights, money lending, leasing of investment
properties, entertainment business, securities
investment, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products, watches and jewellery products. The Group
ceased the business of China Jianxin Financial Services
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, which was principally engaged in the business
of securities brokerage and margin financing (“Securities
Brokerage Business”) with effect from 30th June 2018.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 28th September 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets, contingent consideration
receivable, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, contingent consideration payable
and investment properties, which are carried at
fair value.

Disposal group held for sale are stated at the lower

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
(Note 2.28).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The actual results may differ
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these impact on the
accounting policies of the Group. However,
additional disclosure has been included in
note 46(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments
to HKAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative, which require entities
to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

e R R M

2 BEEESTHEREZE®

2.1 #m B E A )
RGO E SIS RS &
BANBREESERETH
REHEE - ENEEEEE
EEBASE @ KEBE
FERAHE - TEAENE
ERRMEEH - BRESH
ETEEE LTk B
BREGEHHLZEARER
ZBESOBE - RN 4
WE

EHRERDRES

(i) JEFHE] 2 A&155] & &
B %R EER
EXECHMACCBEHZ
EEBYBHREEN 2B
AR AEEE R g H
ME AR - ZSELE
MY RBAEEBH SR
EEMEE A &I
¥ 55 2 &0 I sk 46(0) LA m
REBGIERNETIRUE
AR HeREX: KE
AEELNTEERTE -
ZEIABRERRMHEE
BEN FEUHBHEERER
BREATERETHE L
ZEEEE BEBEER
EELECZEHRIERSE
@Jo

7 8 B 3 4 3R 4 1 4E
B R R A 3
STEAIR R

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii) New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st
July 2017 and have not been early adopted:

2

EEETHERREm@m

2.1

@

& E X (@)

SRR EHREE @

(ii)

IR 2 BT E A R
A 2T A

THFET g &R
ST R B R 2 RIER
T tELA-BMEHK
B B T 4E B BB 46 1B o4
MK B IR AR -

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTBEHR
ZERBRN
FERBEN

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

ERUBHREENEI0% R
BB ENFE28H(EFA)
Amendments to HKFRS 2

ERUBREENE LR
CHES
Amendments to HKAS 19

e B EREACHES)
Amendments to HKAS 28

S ERLEYCEACHES
Amendments to HKAS 28

FE R EAEBE(BTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 9

EREMBREENEIR(EBFR)
Amendments to HKAS 40
BB g EAH405(EFTA)
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

REEREBEDAHEGEAH
LEZEEHETTE

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

UWRODBERIRARRHZHE
Rit &

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

SEEET mAKEE

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

EREEMBRERI_T-—NFE
ZE-RERMZEEYE

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Berrkad b RBER

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

REBREZRAERER

Transfers of Investment Property

BRNEDE

a date to be determined

~

BEEE

1st January 2018
—“E-\%-A-H
Tst January 2019

—E-N¥-A—H
1st January 2018

—2-N\5-A-H
1st January 2019

—E-N¥-A—H
1st January 2019

—E-N¥-A—H
1st January 2018
—ZE-NF¥-A—-H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®
ACCOUNTlNG POLlClES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 #m B A )

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

New Standards and amendments to (ii)
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

SR REH R HE @

[ 7K R 2 #F 5T 2 Rl &
2R 2 15 5T A ()

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RUATABH
ZERBN
EEHEEN
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 1st January 2019
FEMEEE CE-hEE_T+ERHEE —E-NE-A—-H
g3
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2018
ERUMBRELENEIT SRIA -N§¥—HA—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Tst January 2018
Customers and the related
Amendments
ERMBRELRE IR BEPHEONAREBABS] -N§¥—HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1st January 2019
ERMBRELLE16R HE —n¥—HA—8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 1st January 2018

Advance Consideration

EEERMEREREZES) IHIBRXHZREMKE

-REE2%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments
EBERABEREREZES) RS R S A el i
-REELR

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards are expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

—-NE—A—H
1st January 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

EEETHERREm@m

h=]]12

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 BB~ A & IE 1 R

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®
ACCOUNTlNG POLlClES (Continued)

2.2 BB~ A & IE 1 R

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company's balance sheet, an investmentin a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2.12), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Incomes Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 23 B e H®

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non- current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition- date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TR E @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 23 B EH®

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by- transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®
ACCOUNTlNG POLlClES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 23 B e H®

The subsequent accounting for contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (that is, the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint

ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have a joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint

2.5

ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Asset
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in
a joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any

liabilities incurred jointly;

e R R M

2 BEEESTHEREZE®

A Bkk A N
24 REEERNFREZENR

2.5

A) 2 & & ()
WREBERNRZIEERBRE
““Tz&ﬁ K2 TR AR
BEGITSEFETTE M
REBZEREZHIEEIR-
REABEMBILT  NEBH—
gm%i;—f ”M’\TE’JEKE/’
NHEEE R AR LR T
- Rlg E@%ﬁﬁg&ﬁ%
FRREBEE - REHBZE R
AIMNEARTENREAEE QA
B 2k R 45 IR R BE R B Bk
EERAMNEEEHARBRERE
ZATFEERLEMEREZME
MEMZEERBEZ-

WARBERRHLELERAZE
EDBERFKELE  AMERE
BEMBHRELENELR[F51E
HEZHERDEERSKRIER
BEBIAKR-

BEXRGED
ABEBIERS LR HEY
EH=E
# 71
o

BEZZFHENEE

AN

(=)
=

ENMEBEEEN—

WaER

B

KEBERA S LB B %R
TaeE:

N

=111

s HEE BREHEEMGEM

AKAKAZEE:
e HEFE BEHEEMGEW

Rz BE:

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group’s interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Chairman of the Company
(the chief operating decision maker) for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to
changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 BEEESTHEREZE®

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TR E @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment 28 Mx - HBENEE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of useful life
or lease term

Machinery and equipment  3-5 years

Others 5 years

Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.12).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2.10) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties
is accounted for as described in Note 2.27(d).
When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease (see Note 2.10), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are
accounted for as described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHHERBE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Leased assets 210 EEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a MAEEBRE —BLHEAEER
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the EHBRANBBIT —Fk—
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a RIREMESERE—HFTE
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed BE(ZEBEEE)ZERN A
period of time in return for a payment or a series of Bz - —RIX
payments. Such a determination is made based on SEK)REESXEHEHERE -
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement ZREDBRBZLZHEZEERN
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes DAL ML - T LB
the legal form of a lease. EAEBEHEZEZEZEAX -
(a) Classification of assets leased to the (a) HEFAEEBEEZ
Group palk]
Assets held by the Group under leases which RAEELAEREMNE
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks EmME WHEFEMAE
and rewards of ownership are classified as B 48 K #8 5 [ B AN O] 3R 4
being held under finance leases. Leases BEXAEE ABEBEE
which do not transfer substantially all the DER J«A MEBEERFH
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group WMAEL T ~GEMEED
are classified as operating leases, with the 4B K ’ﬁ [2, &2 0 [B] 3R 88 %%
following exceptions: EAREHEBIHE 7% 1
BEHETIIE R
- property held under operating leases that - MNUKEREHERBEAER
would otherwise meet the definition of Hth T EAREHRE
an investment property is classified as MEFTENME &
an investment property on a property- BEEMEEENSE
by-property basis and, if classified as BEREME -WHE
investment property, is accounted for as BIEEME EAR
if held under a finance lease (see Note FREMEREEME
2.9); and ERB—HK(RKFE
29): &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group (Continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
Note 2.8. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 2.12. Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(c) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see Note 2.9).

2.11 Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value
at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities

(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out in Note 2.27(f) and 2.27(e).

Investments in securities which do not fall into the
above category are classified as available for sale
financial assets. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the available-for-sale investment reserve. As an
exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose
fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the balance sheet at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2.12). Dividend
income from equity securities is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 2.27(f).

When the investments are derecognised or
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets

(a) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the

fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and

joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 2.4),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with Note 2.12(b). The
impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
Note 2.12(b).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at

cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

For accounts receivable, loans
receivable and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(that is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

For available-for-sale securities which
are stated at fair value, when a decline
in the fair value has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and there
is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive
income shall be reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment even though the financial
asset has not been derecognised. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of customers included within accounts
receivable, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the customers directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

goodwill;

other intangible assets;

film related deposits;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company's
balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash-inflows independently
(that is, a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(c)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see Notes
2.12(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-
sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and not profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit or group of cash
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If
some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-
generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period,
that unit shall be tested for impairment before
the end of the current annual period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash- generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or group of
cash generating units.

On the disposal of the relevant cash
generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually and
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 7.5 years of the brand
name.

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange
are classified as intangible assets. Trading
rights acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Trading rights have an indefinite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The trading rights have
no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the Group can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the trading rights
are considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life
because they are expected to contribute
to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading
rights will not be amortised until their useful
lives are determined to be finite. Instead they
will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange
(Continued)

The useful life of the trading rights is
reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trading rights held in The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

The trading rights held in The Chinese
Gold & Silver Exchange Society have an
indefinite useful lives and are recognised as
intangible assets in the consolidated balance
sheet. The trading rights are carried at cost
less impairment losses and are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that the trading rights may
be impaired by comparing their recoverable
amounts with their carrying amounts. The
trading rights have no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the Group can use to
generate net cash flows. As aresult, the trading
rights are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life because they are expected to contribute
to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading
rights will not be amortised until their useful
lives are determined to be finite.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®
ACCOUNTlNG POLlClES (Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments 214 Bt T B 3K iH

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

(c)

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their useful lives, with reference to projected
revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films
is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that
assets included in film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

= 5.

B HER &

EXHHEIcERRBEEY
RESXNzZIIEERERRA

2.17 Film related deposits 2.17

Film related deposits comprise deposits paid for

the acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artists and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for the acquisition and production of
film rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision
for film related deposits is made based on future
revenue generated for the Group and the carrying
value of film related deposits.

2.18 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see Note 2.12), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see Note 2.12).

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If the collection
of loans receivable is expected to be one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2.12).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TR E @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents 200 e NBEEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly
liguid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

2.21 Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

2.22 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

@ Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

2.21

2.22

RehReTBYERERTR
FERE ROTEAHERRFE
ERMBERs UREHS
MBUERE  ZREREAG
=18 A W2 H B AR %K
EHMBBEz2REeMEESRE
REERR REEHRERE
KRME BARERKEERAX
AEEBRSTERZ —HOoHR
TEXNERAERREEE
A N

FE A5 B X R B A
K I

e BR AR R E A B SR IB A
AR ERER  ERIREHENX
KIER BRIFMBAZTEBE
W AR ZBERT HRR AR
BE o

ArEEE
AEEENZIRATFERENL
RHGRAER VT HERIEK
AHEEERBHEKATK M
ME R LR EECEERD
E 1 = B OE R AE [ BN H B
RERAIRBEEHARAUNERN
FKEEBEEANER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®
ACCOUNTlNG POLlClES (Continued)

2.23 Borrowing costs 22318 B K A

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

2.24 Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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by S B S

EEE

h=]]12

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TR E @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Income Tax (Continued) 2.24 BT 15§ ()

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
loses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RR M
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEESTHEREZE®
ACCOUNTlNG POLlClES (Continued)

2.24 Income Tax (Continued) 2.24 BT 15§ ()

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 2.9, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale.
In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TR E @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Income Tax (Continued) 2.24 BT 15§ ()

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

o the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

DIREREEENBEIAEHRN
R HBERE®ETHE

G

ST EAREELCHALER
EREZFHE DR 5K M &M
K- ARBHAAEEREAR
BEABNHERANAEERE
HHEEEETUEBE LTSN
TH&EEENBERT  THE
HHRBEEERESREBERAE
A RIEETH I E E RELEH A
BEFELEE:

- HEMNEEENREMEM

SRV LEEY Y LY
RREEEEE AR
BAEERREEAMN:

[=]

il

1

=2

- BEEHEEENEMEM
EORERR-—BRBER
AT HE BT S B AT
EL:

e RA-—ERHER:

e TRERHER M
ZEERFIERK
BEEAEENRLE
MERABEAEEENL
BEXREEHBEE
A] A Y B B9 B R 0 A
SFRRE S E A
BEERBEEEHMR
HEBEXRE R E
BREE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares.
When share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations
at the date of acquisition are initially
recognised at fair value, provided the fair
value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with Note 2.26(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not
present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with Note 2.26(ii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described
below.

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Income from licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights

Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised upon the delivery
of the pre-recorded audio visual products and
the materials for video features including the
master tapes to the customers, in accordance
with the terms of the underlying contracts.

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised when
the film is shown and the right to receive
payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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by S B S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

(a)

(h)

(i)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Income from provision of training and
coaching services

Income from provision of training and
coaching services is recognised when training
and coaching services are rendered.

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed.

Underwriting commission income,
sub-underwriting income and brokerage
income from initial public offering and
placing shares

Underwriting commission income, sub-
underwriting income and brokerage income
from initial public offering and placing shares
are recognised as income in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreement or deal
mandate when the relevant significant act has
been completed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a
group of assets to be disposed of together as
a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale
(Continued)

Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group's business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the statement of comprehensive
income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Related parties

(@) A person, oraclose member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEESBRBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.29 Related parties (Continued) 229784 N )

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) i & & T 5 F ] 545 J

following conditions applies: (Continued) ZEBEAEEFH@EE

(&)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly (vi) E 8 X(a) P & Bl A
controlled by a person identified in (a). T sk % KR E
i o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R@OMmENALTSH
influence over the entity or is a member ERBEAFE L
of the key management personnel of BZER(HNZE®
the entity (or of a parent of the entity). W AR)EEZERE
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group (vii) BB EBEMKE
of which it is a part, provides key AEl(Am—&29)MA
management personnel services to the REEAE IZ
Group or to the Group's parent. RARHBIEEEA
8RB
Close members of the family of a person are EATZERRERZERR
those family members who may be expected to SHEHRAZEZALTHETZ
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their ALTREZREKE -

dealings with the entity.
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by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The policies for managing
these risks are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, that is, a currency
other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is primarily
Renminbi (“"RMB") (2017: RMB).

The following table details the
Group's exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

e R R M

B 7% R e E 1B |
3.0 Rk EZE®

™ 35 & ke ()
(i) &%= k(&
i) FEEZ S
218 (%)

Exposure to foreign
currencies (expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)

P& 2 2 HNE B B
(A% T % R)
2018 2017
—B-N\E —Tt%
Renminbi Renminbi
AR AR
‘000 ‘000
F 5 F T
Bank balances and cash R 1748 NIR &
— trust accounts -E7ERFP 64 10
Cash and cash ReRBRSEEY
equivalents 394 22
Accounts receivable & Y& BR 3K 14,831 19,900
Financial assets included 3t A2 3574 -
in “deposits paid, FEAREREM
prepayments and FEWHIE] 2 & &
other receivables” ‘E 42,758 54,522
Accounts payable JE < BR 3K (64) (10)
Other payables and H fth fE T 3B R
accrued charges FE 5 S7 - (45)
57,983 74,399
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 31 7% [ B & 32 (@)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) Cy N RS )
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T % & B2 (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) B @k (E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) &R E 537

The following table indicates
the instantaneous change in the
Group's loss after tax (and retained
earnings) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming
all other risk variables remained

TR &R ®
EHMRAEHE

[ETN A N
B SN [ (B X R

Z B HREF
(BEMAE EM

R b 2 BRE
\“)ﬂZlK‘EEI
br Bl e BE(R
1%‘”7”%)?&

constant.
& B B g
2018 2017
—E-N\f el o3
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in loss in loss
after tax and after tax and
Increase/ (increase)/ Increase/ (increase)/
(decrease) decrease (decrease) decrease
in foreign in retained in foreign in retained
exchange rates earnings exchange rates earnings
BRBi % 5 B bR iE B E
/(AP B/ Cf )
INE [E & RREEF I EE fE = RRE BN
ERATR) (&M RS LAHTE) (En)/ R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT
RMB AR 5% (2,899) 5% (3,720)
(5%) 2,899 (5%) 3,720
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

3 HEREE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

(1i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ loss/profit after
tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong Dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2017.

o %5 B e A & ()
(a) T i3 B ()

(i)
(ii)

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @

£ 3 5 ()

8 125 /B 73 1T (48)

EERFAIERE
DM RARR
ﬁxglA
% MHE DB

M#ﬁl&
& 83 Ky [E =
wmE AE T
"2 AN
Br 1% 518 %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed
rate loans receivable (see Note 21) from
money lending business and fixed rate
borrowings (Note 28). The management
considered that the risk is insignificant
as the amounts are carried at amortised
cost. As at 30th June 2017, the Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate
accounts receivable from securities
brokerage and margin financing
business such as cash clients, margin
clients and variable rate borrowings
(see Note 20 and 28 respectively).
Bank balances are excluded from the
interest rate sensitivity analysis as
they are insignificantly sensitive to the
change in market interest rates. During
the year ended 30th June 2018, the
Group ceased its business in securities
brokerage and margin financing and
repaid all the variable rate borrowings.
Therefore, the management considered
that the interest rate risk is insignificant.
As a result, no sensitivity analysis for
the year ended 30th June 2018 was
disclosed.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for the financial
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year and all other variables were held
constant throughout the respective year.
For the year ended 30th June 2017, a
100 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year
ended 30th June 2017 would increase/

decrease by HK$1,537,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 31 7% [ B & 12 ()
3.0 IRk EE®
(a) T35 E K (@)

(iii) AR 18 JE B

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from changes in the prices
of listed securities, unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited partnership.
The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

The Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and certain
available-for-sale financial assets are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that
of the Hang Seng Index and Index of
the Growth Enterprise Market on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and other industry indicators, as well
as the Group's liquidity needs. Listed
investments held in the available-for-
sale portfolio have been chosen based
on their long term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance
against expectation.

For the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, the
board of directors manages the exposure
to equity price risk by maintaining a
portfolio of investments funds with
different risk and return profiles.

AEBEKRRELDE
F FLTEREES
EFETHERAED
EMEENBKEZS
Bk BHEARED
1 2 AR % B [ bR &Y BX
ERBRET -

AEBEZEBRBRGER
RFEARZERE
ERETAHLESR
MEEIRETBHA
X MABERRDAL
M- BAHBEHER S
EHFIREDERS
18 5 & 75 & A8 £ 5 &
REABERSHMA
R A AIGEM¥E & K&
HTREREZRR
B RER AEAK
SEzRBELS

e o Al E
REMAKAENLT
REERNRHRERE
NEBE THEEX
AeEtNa®EB-

o BEAHRLES
MEEZFLTMEE
ESRIFLETHERAE
BLEMSE EFE
BEBFA AR RER
LREHWREESHA
AEEKERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

B 7% R e E I |

3.0 IRk EE®
15 B K (@)
(iii) A% 18 2 B ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a)
(iii)  Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2018, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2017:
3%) in the fair value of the Group's
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with all other variables
held constant would have decreased/
increased the Group's loss after tax (and
increased/decreased retained earnings)
by HK$4,121,000 (2017: decreased/
increased the Group's loss after tax (and
increased/decreased retained earnings)
by HK$5,827,000).

At 30th June 2018, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2017:
3%) in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets with all other
variables held constant would have
increased/decreased in the Group’s
available-for-sale investment reserve
by HK$6,483,000 (2017: increased/
decreased in the Group’'s available-
for-sale investment reserve by
HK$3,009,000) and decreased/
increased the Group's loss after tax (and
increased/decreased retained earnings)
by HK$105,000 (2017: HK$1,662,000).
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3 BIHERERE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
default.

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products, watches and jewellery
products, in order to minimize the credit
risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Receivables
due from customers are due within the
settlement period commonly adopted by
the relevant market convention, which is
usually within 0-90 days from the trade date.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from its customers.

3.0 IRk EE®

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights business, in order to minimise the credit
risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Sales of
videogram products are with credit terms of
7-60 days from the trade date. Sales from
film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights are on open account terms. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from its customers.

In respect of loan receivables (including loan
to an associate) from customers, the objective
of the Group’s measures to manage credit
risk is to control the potential exposure to
recoverability problem. The Group manages
and analyses the credit risk for each of their
new and existing customers before payment
terms and conditions are concluded by
assessing the credit quality of the customer,
taking into account its financial position, past
settlement experience and other factors.
Loan receivables balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis, management reviews the
recoverable amount of loan receivables at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, management
considers that the Group’'s credit risk is
significantly reduced. Interest income are
usually billed on quarterly basis.
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3 BIHERERE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to manage the credit risk in the
accounts receivable due from clients arising
from securities brokerage and margin
financing business, individual credit evaluation
are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Accounts receivable
from cash clients relate to a wide range of
customers who generally settle the accounts
receivable within two days after trade date
and are secured by the portfolio of securities
of the cash clients’ credit risk arising from
the accounts receivable due from cash
clients is therefore considered minimal. For
margin clients, the Group normally obtains
liquid securities as collateral based on the
customers’ margin requirements. The margin
requirement is closely monitored on a daily
basis by the designated team. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the credit risk
is significantly reduced. Market conditions
and adequacy of securities collateral and
margin deposits of each margin account are
monitored by management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.

In respect of accounts receivable from
brokers and clearing houses, credit risks are
considered to be low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and
clearing houses which are registered with
regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, 53% and
92% of the total amounts receivable due from
clients arising from securities brokerage and
margin financing business was due from
the largest counterparty and the five largest
counterparties respectively. (2017: The Group
has no significant concentration of credit
risk in respect of the securities brokerage
and margin financing business as credits are
granted to a large population of clients.)

In respect of businesses other than the
securities brokerage and margin financing
business, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each debtor and customer.
The default risk of the industry in which
debtors or customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as for 100%
(2017: 100%) of the loan receivables are due
from the Group's eight (2017: eight) debtors
in money lending segment. The Group had
no concentration of credit risk in respect of
accounts receivable from trading, wholesaling
and retailing of optical products, watches and
jewellery products and video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights business,
with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

For other receivables, credit checks are part
of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal
with overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amounts of other
receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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3 UHEREE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has certain concentrations of credit
risk of 54% (2017: 66%) of the total other
receivables was due from the Group's largest
debtor and 93% (2017: 94%) of the total
other receivables due from the Group's four
largest debtors of the total other receivables
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to the parent company’'s board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 30th June 2018

B 7% R e E I |
3.0 Rk EZE®

(c)

RBE R R
R-ZZE-NFXA=1H

More than More than Total
Tyearbut  2vyearshbut  contractual
Within 1 year less than less than undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
-ER —ENE MENL  BHRER
FHEX EELL TENR RERELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Tén
Accounts payable ERES 8,518 - - 8,518 8,518
Financial liabiities included St A [HHERHE

in “other payables and RE: S

accrued charges” and RIEWH 2]

" deposits received” LEBEE 111,045 - - 111,045 111,045
Obligations under finance lease B4 7 & # 18 7 - 25 25
Contingent consideration ERSNAR

payable 20,400 - - 20,400 20,400

139,981 1 - 139,988 139,988

As at 30th June 2017 RZE—+tFRXA=+TH

More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual

Within 1 year less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying

or on demand 2 years b years cash flows amount
—ER —EHE AENE  AHORER

JEEX AELNR RENR ReNE4E SEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThEL ThEL ThL ThL ThL

Accounts payable ERER 92,447 - - 92,447 92,447

Financial iabilties included ~ 5f A T2 fr 8 505

in “other payables and RfEs %

accrued charges” and RIE%T 2]

" deposits received" LEBAE 124,593 - - 124,593 124,593
Borrowings g 44,574 10,016 - 54,590 53,063
Obligations under finance lease  FE & 1 & & & 35 19 9 63 63
Contingent consideration ERFAARE

payable 20,400 - - 20,400 19,568

282,049 10,035 9 292,093 289,734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In addition, a subsidiary
of the Group licensed by the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") is obliged to meet
the regulatory liquid capital requirements under
the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (“FRR") at all times. For the subsidiary of
the Group licensed by The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society, the subsidiary is obliged to meet
the regulatory liquid capital requirements imposed
by The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society at
all times. The Group obtained waiver on the liquid
capital requirements from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society since the Group acquired
the trading rights on 19th June 2017 and had not
commenced the business on trading of gold and
silver during the years ended 30th June 2017 and
30th June 2018 and the trading rights have been
disposed by the Group during the year ended 30th
June 2018.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets. For the subsidiary
licensed by the SFC, the Group ensures this licensed
subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level adequate
to support the level of activities with sufficient
buffer to accommodate for increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the
level of business activities. During the year ended
30th June 2018, the licensed subsidiary ceased its
business. This licensed subsidiary complied with
the liquid capital requirements under FRR at all
times during the year ended 30th June 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings and obligation under finance
lease) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as 'equity’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt, where
applicable.

For the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group's
strategy, which was unchanged from 2017, was
to maintain a low gearing ratio. The gearing ratios
as at 30th June 2018 and 30th June 2017 were
as follows:

MEMBE K XEENRE
ERBELXEREREANE
o R ERFABERABE
AFE-FREREER(RBRE
EERBMEESAE)RER
ERECFEVHAE-BREX
BIERAEERBRME 2
smIMEFEBEURNAE)GTHE -

HE-Z-N\FXA=+HL
EE AEENERE T —
EELB BT R A A
B 1 L A B KF o
T E-NFEFXRNAZF+BEK_Z
—+tEXA=+A EARME
=T

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FA T
Borrowings BE 28 - 53,063
Obligations under a finance & & 70 & & #&
lease 29 25 63
Less: Cash and cash B Re kB
equivalents ZEY 24 (522,285) (228,222)
Net cash BEe R (522,260) (175,096)
Total equity B = 916,973 1,013,527
Total capital [N 394,713 838,431
Gearing ratio BEXRBELX N/AFE H N/AR i@ A
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3 BIHERERE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair
value of the Group's financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the team at each annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved
by the directors of the Company. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the
directors and the audit committee is held
once a year, to coincide with the reporting
date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2018 categorised into
RZE-NEAA=TAZAVEHELEA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

B 7 & b B 12 @)
33 AFEFTE®

(i)
EERAEGE®H
ARS-EF4¢ )

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2017 categorised into

BAFEFEZSH

RIE-t¥RAZHAZATEHENEA

Fair value at Fair value at
30th June 30th June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018 Level 1 Level2 Level3 2017
Z2-\% Bt
~EZTH AAZTH
£-8 2o £=8 zA0VE £-4 228 2= IRTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
a7 TER Té7n a7 TéEn Tin Thn TéEn
Recurting fairvalue SEHATE
measurements iR
Assets: BE:
Available for sale AfHESR
financial assets BE
- Listed equity - LWRE
securities EE = = - - 73,461 - - 73461
- Unlisted -ELTRE
investment E%
funds (Note al (B a) = = 1,049 1,049 - - 24,8% 24,8%8
- Unlisted limited -FLITER
partnership aBLE
(Note al GES) = = 64,833 64,833 - - 57334 57,334
Financial assets at fair R AEA T
value through profit ~ EAEZ 4R
or loss (Note d) BEMEd) 39,891 - 9,465 49,356 232,629 - - 232,629
Contingent Eh%ARE
consideration (P 3Eb)
receivable (Note b) - - 3,19 3,196 - - 15,737 15,737
39,891 - 79,143 119,034 306,090 - 97,969 404,059
Liabilities: BfE:
Contingent ERAARE
consideration (F3kc)
payable (Note ¢] - - (20,400) (20,400) - - (19,568) 19,568)
- - (20,400 (20,400) - - (19,568) (19,568)
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3 MEERMRERE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the
Group reclassified one listed equity security,
amounted to HK$9,465,000, from Level 1 to
Level 3 due to suspension of trading. The
listed equity security suspended trading as at
30th June 2018 and was still suspended from
trading up to the date of this consolidated
financial statements. The transfer between
Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
is deemed to have occurred at the end of the
reporting period. Apart from the above, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year ended 30th June 2018.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

Notes:

a) For unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy, the fair
values are determined based on the net asset
values of those investment funds and limited
partnership determined with reference
to third party valuation of underlying
investment portfolio and adjustments of
related expenses. When the net asset
values of the unlisted investment funds
and limited partnership increases/decreases
by 10% (2017: 3%), the fair value will
increase/decrease by HK$6,588,200 (2017:
HK$2,467,000). The higher the net assets
values, the higher the fair value.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BAFEFEZETH
at fair value (Continued) EENREE®@®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEE R (E)
Notes: (Continued) B« (&)
a)  (Continued) a) (%)
The movement during the year in the balance ZEE="RAFEFTE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements CEBRREREHMN
are as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Unlisted investment funds SFATHEES R
included in available-for- EEZzH LM
sale financial assets: REES:
At the beginning of the year REH] 24,898 79,467
Additions NE - 7,992
Total loss included in other st AE A2 E W E
comprehensive income ZEBaE (23,849) (56,632)
Redemption f& [ - (5,929)
At the end of the year REXR 1,049 24,898
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FHET
Unlisted limited partnership i AR HES R
included in available-for- EEZ2LETAER
sale financial assets: EBLE:
At the beginning of the year R F ) 57,334 6,335
Additions b - 53,573
Total income/(loss) A H M 2 =
included in other ZUW A (B E)
comprehensive income 4B A 7,499 (2,574)
At the end of the year N E XK 64,833 57,334

EEHFEF LT AH
HESREEELZR
HHERFEIREM
Z o E R AR
ERERE-

The net unrealised losses arising from the
remeasurement of the unlisted available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in
available-for- sale investment reserve in other
comprehensive income.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b)

The valuation techniques and key inputs used
for contingent consideration receivable in
Level 3 fair value measurement at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

Valuation
techniques

EER *

3 B E ke

e R R M

E I @)

33 R EFE®w
i) BATFENEZSH

EEREBE®®E
AR -EF4¢ )
Bt EE (&)
bl RHEHR UFE=H&
NFEFE 2 B A
REMERZEESE
MEE@m ABBENT
Significant
unobservable input Range
BERFAERE
BARE & E
HK$
BT

Discounted cash
flow approach

Contingent consideration
receivable

AR ARE BEREREE

The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable represented the profit guarantee
in relation to the adjustments to the
consideration from the acquisition of AP
Group Investment Holdings Limited (“AP
Group”) as detailed in Note 22.

Expected net loss (2017:
Probability-weighted
profit)

EHFER(CE -+ F:

AT B2 1 R )

Discount rate
B K

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF

Expected loss of
HK$1,875,845
(2017: Loss of
HK$401,000 - Profit of
HK$482,000)
185 /E5181,875,845 8 1T
(ZE—+%F:
&5 18401,0007 T -
% 482,000 7T)
40.0% (2017: 29.0%)
40.0% (Z 22—+t F:
29.0%)

EERARENRTE
BEYWEE I £ E
ERBERDB(EHE
BDOREREFBN
w AR R EE22 5
it o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
b) (Continued)

As at 30th June 2018, the contingent
consideration receivable is determined by
reference to the financial statements of
AP Group and its subsidiaries for the years
ended 31st December 2016 and 2017, in
which the consolidated results showed a net
loss position. As at 30th June 2018, it was
estimated that a 5% increase or decrease
in the expected net loss of AP Group while
holding all other variables constant would not
significantly affect the value of contingent
consideration receivable.

As at 30th June 2017, the increase in
probability-weighted profit used would result
in a decrease in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration receivable
while the increase in the discount rate
used would also result in a decrease in the
fair value measurement of the contingent
consideration receivable, and vice versa.

As at 30th June 2018, it was estimated that
a 5% increase or decrease in the discount
rate used while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the
carrying amount of contingent consideration
receivable by HK$260,000 or HK$283,000
(as at 30th June 2017: HK$175,000 or
HK$179,000) respectively.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
b) (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017, it was estimated
that a 5% increase or decrease in the
probability-weighted profit while holding all
other variables constant would decrease or
increase the carrying amount of contingent
consideration receivable by HK$31,000 or
HK$31,000 respectively.

e R R M

3 %Ak ERE®@®
33 R EFE®w

(i) ?22’&$E#%2$Eﬁ

F&E{E(nq
/-\_\/—Lﬁﬁ'ﬂ na
Bt EE (&)
by (#)
)\J’A*” +tFRA=T
Tﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁf—fﬁﬁ“g’ﬁ
T\iT R K7 i

7l 12 ﬂu jﬁz 6% fl &t
& B RRE
ZAREE D 5RO
A131,0003% 7T 531,000

BT ©
The movement during the year in the balance ZEB =R FEHNE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements ZRBENFRAEF D
are as follows: Lk
2018 2017
—N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHE T
Contingent consideration Bl RNE:
receivable:
At the beginning of the year F 4 %]] 15,737 10,930
Total (loss)/gain included in 5t Az 2 (1),
profit or loss I & 48 58 (11,941) 4,807
At the end of the year RER 3,796 15,737
2018 2017
—E2-NF —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Total (loss)/gain included in RRBERREFRZ
profit or loss for assets BEFABRZZ
held at the end of the (B8B),/ W B e
reporting period (11,941) 4,807

—N\FFEH EFERESRZERERDF
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o s L
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 31 7% [ B & 32 (@)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 A EFTE®@
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured (i BEAFEFEzEH
at fair value (Continued) EEREE@E
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) nFEERGE
Notes: (Continued) B« (88)
c)  The valuation techniques and key inputs used o) RBEHR EMNXA
for contingent consideration payable in Level REE=ZHRATEFE
3 fair value measurement at the end of the FERZEETERE
reporting period are as follows: ZAHBOT
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable input Range
EAFTTEE
fEE A& BARE & E
HKS
T
Contingent consideration  Discounted cash Expected net loss (2017: Expected loss of
payable flow approach Probability-weighted HK$1,875,845
profit) (2017: Loss of
HK$401,000 - Profit of
HK$482,000)
e AR AE BRRREREE TEHH@J*?TE(_Y + & FHEEE1,8758458 T

The fair value of the contingent consideration
payable represented the profit guarantee
in relation to the adjustments to the
consideration from the disposal of AP Group
as detailed in Note 33.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

c) (Continued)

As at 30th June 2018, the contingent
consideration payable is determined by

e R R M

B 7 & b B 12 @)

33 AFEFATE®W
i) BATFESEZSH

reference to the financial statements of
AP Group and its subsidiaries for the years
ended 31st December 2016 and 2017, in
which the consolidated results showed a net
loss position. As at 30th June 2018, it was
estimated that a 5% increase or decrease
in the expected net loss of AP Group while
holding all other variables constant would not
significantly affect the value of contingent
consideration payable. The amount would
become payable once the actual results of
AP Group is finalized and no discount factor
is applied to the amount. As a result, no
sensitivity analysis for the year ended 30th
June 2018 was disclosed for the impact of
changes in expected net loss and discount
rate.

As at 30th June 2017, the increase in
probability-weighted profit used would result
in a decrease in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration payable
while the increase in the discount rate
used would also result in a decrease in the
fair value measurement of the contingent
consideration payable, and vice versa.

As at 30th June 2017, it was estimated
that a 5% increase or decrease in the
probability-weighted profit while holding all
other variables constant would decrease or
increase the carrying amount of contingent
consideration payable by HK$38,000 or
HK$38,000 respectively.

As at 30th June 2017, it was estimated that
a 5% increase or decrease in the discount
rate used while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the
carrying amount of contingent consideration
payable by HK$35,000 or HK$35,000
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i)

Financial assets and liahilities measured

B % [F e
33 AFEFTE®

(i)

Parlax

E IE (@)

BAFEFEZSH

at fair value (Continued) EEREEBE@E
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AR FEFAC)
Notes: (Continued) B 5E - (58D
c)  (Continued) c) (&)
The movement during the year in the balance ZEE=ZMDF I AHE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements ZHEBERFREZH M
are as follows: K
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T -+ F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FE T
Contingent consideration FEFHARNKE
payable:
At the beginning of the year REH (19,568) -
Additions 0 - (10,930)
Total loss included in profit SFAERZEBE
or loss fERE (832) (8,638)
At the end of the year RER (20,400) (19,568)
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ZE—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Total loss included in profit or mHEHEAREREZ
loss for liabilities held at the BEFAER
end of the reporting period ZEERE (832) (8,638)
d)  The financial assets at fair value through d PDERQAFEIFEER
profit or loss classified under Level 3 of the F-METEBRERE
fair value measurement hierarchy represent AFEARZESREE
investment in a listed equity security R —IB EmRAES
suspended from trading. (BEEEEE)ZHRE -
The fair value of those equity instruments is ZEER LA ZRATE
valued based on Guideline Publicly Traded TR ESI AR S A A
Company (the “GPTC") method whereas the EHETHE ERAE
key inputs to the valuation models include T HERN T EH
the market multiples, share prices of similar ABBEBRBEELARAMIES
companies that are traded in a public market ETRGZEERAZ
and discount of lack of marketability. The MGBEH - RE R H R
discount of lack of marketability used are T HMBERIEZITE
unobservable input. As at 30th June 2018, TRz E = mis e
if any of the significant unobservable input EZMBERTAIBRE
above was 5% higher/lower while all the other ABEBE-RZT—N\F
variables were held constant, the changes in NAZ=Z+8 fWLEuE
fair value of the listed equity security would fA] & KT Al B 8 A &
not be significant to the Group. BiRE B IK5%Mm A
EEMEEHFTITE
Al EmlEAESRZAF
BEEHHAEEME L
FEKX-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

B 7 & b B 12 @)

. . AN = B /=
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEEFE®
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured ) ZDPEFEZER
at fair value (Continued) EEREBE®@
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ARS ¥ A¢ )
Notes: (Continued) B & ()
d)  (Continued) d (&)
The movement during the year in the balance ZE=BR ¥ Bt 24
of these Level 3 fair value measurements BRFANZEEBHWT
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Listed equity security suspended W& A & A
from trading (BEEEEE)
At the beginning of the year R E 1 -
Transfer from Level 1 EEBHE R 9,465
At the end of the year KN 9,465 -
2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Total loss included in profit or AR RS H R
loss for assets held at the BEEEBR®Z
end of the reporting period EiEesE (79,035) -
(i) Financial assets and liabilities at other (i) EEUARFEIEZ
than fair value TREEREE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial AN B 4R B 3 3 K R
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost ARZEBTAZEEE
are not materially different from their fair BER-_Z-NER=F
values as at 30th June 2018 and 2017. —+tFSNA=ZFTHZRAF
BERTRK-
Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 HiEeMEE K2 &
liabilities BE
The disclosures set out in the tables below NERPT# BB A5
include financial assets and financial liabilities HITHRFEGE LR EN
that are subject to an enforceable master netting e T ENBELUBGEMARR
arrangement or similar agreement that covers LERMEERSRAE H:
similar financial instruments that are either:
- offset in the Group's consolidated balance - RASERSGEERER
sheet; or = =1
- not offset in the consolidated balance sheet - N o IR EH AR 2R M I R
as the offsetting criteria are not met. REEEEABERANEE -
Under the agreement of continuous net settlement REAEEREFIMEL 2
made between the Group and the clearing house, BEELEE Tﬁ%/ﬁ% CAKEER
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set & VA AT 58 i #1,17 %8 7| LA 1H
off the money obligations receivable and payable fE B E K E AT R R R
with the clearing house on the same settlement MHBEAEE BAKEAEES
date and the Group intends to settle on a net basis. FEEREEH
“E-N\FER BETFEREREZERBRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continues) 3 54 5 B B2 ' 32 ()
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 BHiEemEENRE®

liabilities (Continued) a T%(,E)
In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable BLoh - REE %A S A A&
right to set off the accounts receivable and payable BMITRANEENF -2 EEE
arising from securities brokerage and margin THEENBSFELRARED
business clients that are due to be settled on the EPELMEREENZE
same date and the Group intends to settle these BEREEREERFAELERE -
balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on BRE—ZHEBEETHEEBR

the same date which are being offset, amounts due Wi 2B WARRMER A

from/to the clearing house and accounts receivable HYUNEE R TEMNEH

and payable arising from securities brokerage and FIRIERBEFBLERARER
margin business clients that are not to be settled TP E A R N RIE

on the same date, financial collateral including cash TREMAD(EFAEEE K

and securities received by the Group and deposits RBelki#rn) RIFRRES R

placed with the clearing house do not meet the CHEEUWTHEREEEESRA

criteria for offsetting in the consolidated balance BEXRANEBEHZBRE REARDS
sheet since the right of set-off of the recognised ReBE I AHEENENEE
amounts is only enforceable following an event BROFEMHRAIEHRIT

of default.

(a) Financial assets subject to offsetting, (a) é% 54 5‘;@ ;fﬁ ‘ij,_ggr&ﬁ” #
enforceable master netting arrangements 17 ﬁ%' e ?E BEZ EE G
or similar agreements BUHENEREE
As at 30th June 2018 R=F-NERA=TH

Related amounts not
set off in consolidated
balance sheet
TARGEREESERR
BENERSE
Gross
amounts of Net amounts
recognised of financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities  presented
amounts of set off in the in the
recognised consolidated consolidated
financial balance balance  Financial  Collateral Net
assets sheet sheet instruments received* amount
RESEE
BERN RGREE
BB BEN  BERRA
SHEE CRILR ZMed
8% HBAE EEFE 4RI cWEAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER Tén Tén TER Tén Tén
Financial assets SREE
Accounts receivable arising  EXEEFBLR
from securities brokerage FEREER,
and margin financing ERER
business 20,126 (1,966) 18,160 - - 18,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.4 OQffsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)
(a)

Financial assets subject to offsetting,

enforceable master netting arrangements
or similar agreements (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017

B 7% = B B I m)
34 HiESmMEENE R

=R=1C )

(a)

W R 8 - A5 B
TRIFRGEZEDS
BUMBENEREE
()
W-E—+EAA=+H

Related amounts not
set off in consolidated
balance sheet
TARGREERRRR
BROEELE
Gross
amounts of ~ Net amounts
recognised  of financia
financial assets
Gross liabilities  presented
amounts of  set off in the inthe
recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial halance balance Financial Collateral Net
assets sheet sheet instruments  received* amount
NGREE
BEAN REREE
E#R Bl BRER
SHEE CERRSE 2ined
JBE  BBEE  AERE  RIE EWEAR FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL Thx T TERL TERL TExL
Financial assets SHEE
Accounts receivable arising  EH BEABLR
from securities brokerage ~~ HEREEH 2
and margin financing BERER
business 411,503 (144,659) 266,844 - (165,264) 101,580
* The item “collateral received” represents * [BEWERR]IERPE

the securities pledged in the client’s account
which are not recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The amounts are capped at
the lower of the market value of securities
and the net receivable amounts on a client

by client basis.

—E-N\FFR

FPHRERANES %%
EHXVEREEEER
ERER - ZFT2BRL
tRAFESFTEHERE
18 & P & 2 5 9 fE Wk
HFHEMBESE-

ETERERZERERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 31 7% [ B & 32 (@)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 BiemEERES®
liabilities (Continued) aEwm
(b) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (b) ¥ RIKEH - 7R S
enforceable master netting arrangements THRIFEEEZRYED
or similar agreements HUthzmnemad
As at 30th June 2018 R-ZB-NFRA=TH
Related amounts not
set off in consolidated
balance sheet
TARGREESRRA
EENEBLE
Gross

amounts of Net amounts
recognised of financial

financial  liabilities
Gross assets  presented
amounts of set off in the in the
recognised consolidated consolidated
financial balance balance  Financial  Collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
REREE

AREN RESKE
BRR  EEH  REEA
THAR ORISR 25NER BEMZ
BB RESE ARFE  SRIR  £RE 8
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TR TR TRR  TER  TER

Financial liabilities tRER
Accounts payable EERRFALR
arising from securities ARBEZH L
brokerage and margin ERER
financing business 7831 (1,966) 5,865 = - 5,865
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 31 7% [ B & 32 ()

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 BiemEERES®
liabilities (Continued) B 1E W
(b) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (b) W RIKEE - 7R H H
enforceable master netting arrangements THRIFEEEZRYED
or similar agreements (Continued) HUmEnmsmas
(48&)
As at 30th June 2017 RZTE—+FXA=+TH
Related amounts not
set off in consolidated
balance sheet
TARGREERRRR
BEEnREeE
Gross

amounts of ~Net amounts
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
Gross assets  presented
amounts of  set off in the in the
recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial halance balance Financial Collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  instruments pledged amount
NGREE

BREAAN REREE
oEZ  BEG  AEEA
ERAR CEDRR 2TNEA BE#z
ZB8  REEE  ARFE  2RIE  £fm F8
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
ter  TEr  fEr  FEr  TEnr  TEx

Financial liabilities tHAR
Accounts payable EEXRRHALR
arising from securities ARBEZHZ
brokerage and margin ERER
financing business 226279 (144,659) 81,620 - - 81,620

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 31 7% [ B & 32 (@)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 BiemEERES®
liabilities (Continued) ERELE )

(c) The tables below reconcile the “net (c) TRBLMITHREZEEE
amounts of financial assets and financial EEEREYHNEH
liabilities presented in the consolidated EEREmMEBEFE]
balance sheet”, as set out above, to HaeEERABEXRE
the accounts receivable and accounts 5 9 FE UN BR :X K FE A
payable presented in the consolidated RRHEER:

balance sheet:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FA T
Net amount of financial assets FHAREEED
after offsetting as stated above & gt & & % 58 18,160 266,844
Financial assets not within the TE K B 3% 7R 0 1R
scope of offsetting disclosure AH LR EE 36,290 77,627
Impairment losses B & 1B (23,515) (10,612)
30,935 333,859
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA T
Net amount of financial liabilities = it 7 3K $4 14 &9
after offsetting as stated above £ i & & F %8 5,865 81,620
Financial liabilities not within the I~ & & §4 #% & &0 I
scope of offsetting disclosure AW EEaE 2,653 10,827
8,518 92,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(i)  Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits

The Group assesses annually whether there
is any indication for impairment on the film
rights, films in progress and film related
deposits and further assess if they have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2. Such
annual assessment is performed specifically
for each film and film related deposit at each
balance sheet date with reference to the
cast or scale of each film, current market
conditions and each film related deposit
recipient’s reputation, trade history and
current financial position. According to the
management’s updated cash inflow forecast
in respect of each film title and realisation
of each film related deposit and revised
delay on production timetable of certain
films, an impairment loss of film rights of
approximately HK$4,903,000 (2017: nil),
an impairment loss of film related deposits
of approximately HK$6,949,000 (2017: nil)
and no impairment loss of films in progress
(2017: nil) were recognised respectively in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income to reduce the carrying amounts of
certain film rights, films in progress and film
related deposits to their recoverable amounts.
If projected cash inflow from these films
were to deteriorate, additional provision for
impairment may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

As at 30th June 2018, the aggregate carrying
amount of film rights, films in progress and film
related deposits amounted to approximately
HK$116,296,000 (2017: HK$90,957,000).

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

The provision policy for accounts receivable
of the Group is based on the evaluation
of recoverability of those receivables and
management’s judgement. A considerable
judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the collaterals amount, the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history and repayment pattern of each
customer. During the year, impairment
loss (net of reversal of impairment) of
HK$12,903,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (2017: HK$10,470,000). If the
financial conditions of these customers
were to deteriorate, additional provision
for impairment may be required. As at 30th
June 2018, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable amounted to approximately
HK$30,935,000 (2017: HK$333,859,000).

Estimated valuation of investment
properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on property valuation techniques which
involve, inter alia, certain estimates including
comparable sales in the relevant market,
appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
condition. As at 30th June 2018, the carrying
amount of investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$29,360,000 (2017:
HK$25,560,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)

(iv)

Estimation of fair value and impairment
assessment of equity investments
classified as available- for-sale financial
assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets that are not traded in an active market
is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could have a material effect on the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst
other factors, the duration and extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of equity investments classified as
available-for- sale financial assets below its
cost is an objective evidence of impairment.
In assessing whether it is significant,
the decline in the fair value is evaluated
against the original cost of the asset at
initial recognition. In assessing whether it is
prolonged, the decline is evaluated against
the continuous period in which the fair value
of the asset has been below its original cost
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Estimation of fair value and impairment
assessment of equity investments
classified as available- for-sale financial
assets (Continued)

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the
management determined the investment in
available-for-sale financial assets is impaired
and an impairment loss of HK$23,849,000
(2017: HK$89,643,000) was reclassified
from equity to consolidated profit or loss.
During the year, a decrease in fair value
of HK$39,827,000 (2017: HK$88,565,000)
was recognised in the consolidated other
comprehensive income. As at 30th June
2018, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets amounted to approximately
HK$65,882,000 (2017: HK$155,693,000).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised, and is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred tax
assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax
rate for each entity within the Group at each
tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each
entity, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these
estimates and the actual outcome will
impact the Group's result in the period in
which the actual outcome is determined. As
at 30th June 2018, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$274,000
(2017: HK$6,447,000) and HK$440,000 (2017:
HK$13,413,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(vi)

Impairment of loans receivables and other
receivables

The Group assesses the provision for
impairment of loans and other receivables
based on the estimate of the recoverability
of these receivables. Provisions are applied
to loans and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of loans and other
receivables requires the use of estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of receivables and the
provision for impairment losses in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.
As at 30th June 2018, the carrying amount
of loans receivable, loan to an associate
and financial assets included in deposits
paid, prepayments and other receivables
amounted to approximately HK$58,045,000
(2017: HK$75,900,000), HK$6,840,000
(2017: HK$7,940,000) and HK$164,937,000
respectively (2017: HK$97,138,000).
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by S B S

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND 4 B S5 E R ¥

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and a) AREREHHELRER
assumptions (Continued) (#8)
(il Hft B EE 2 7 &

(vii) Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its other intangible
assets with a finite useful life on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives reflect management’s
estimate of the period that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the other intangible assets. At 30th
June 2018, the carrying amount of other
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$2,535,000 (2017: HK$23,583,000).

(viii) Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’s management reviews the
inventory ageing analysis periodically, and
makes allowance on an annual basis for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer marketable.
The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of
each reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving items through
management'’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving
items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At 30th
June 2018, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately HK$8,028,000
(2017: HK$10,066,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)

(ix)

(x)

Fair value of contingent consideration
receivable and payable

The fair value of contingent consideration
receivable and payable was determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group's
management uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions,
including the discount rates and estimation of
future performance. Changes in assumptions
used could materially affect the fair value of
the balances and as a result affect the Group's
financial condition and results of operation.
At 30th June 2018, the carrying amount
of contingent consideration receivable and
contingent consideration payable amounted
to approximately HK$3,796,000 (2017:
HK$15,737,000) and HK$20,400,000 (2017:
HK$19,568,000) respectively.

Impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates
are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the associates and
joint ventures. Recoverable amount is the
greater of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Management evaluates the
recovery of the investments based on such
estimates and is confident that the allowance
for impairment, where necessary, is adequate.
During the year ended 30th June 2018,
impairment losses of HK$16,045,000 (2017:
HK$3,227,000) were recognised in respect
of interests in associates. As at 30th June
2018, the carrying amount of the interests
in associates amounted to approximately
HK$2,875,000 (2017: HK$19,393,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgement in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements
to produce and distribute television series and
films. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2017: from 5% to 90%)
in these joint arrangements. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as, under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group's joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the
assets contributed to the joint arrangement
and dedicated to the purposes of each joint
arrangement for the benefits of the venturers.
Each venturer may take a share of the output from
the assets and each bears an agreed share of the
expenses incurred. These joint arrangements do
not involve the establishment of a corporation,
partnership or other entity, or a financial structure
that is separate from the venturers themselves.
Therefore, these arrangements are classified as
joint operations of the Group. The determination
of the relevant activities under joint operations
requires management’s significant judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Chairman of the Company,
being the Group's chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group
ceased its business in securities brokerage and margin
financing which are classified as discontinued operations
for the year ended 30th June 2018. Further details of
the cessation of the business in securities brokerage
and margin financing are set out in the note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

Continuing operations

- Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products, watches and jewellery products

- Leasing of investment properties
- Securities investments
- Money lending

- Entertainment business
Discontinued operation

- Securities brokerage and margin financing
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2 E R @

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations. The profit/(loss)
before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations except that
fair value change of contingent consideration
receivable, fair value change of contingent
consideration payable, impairment loss of interest
in an associate, impairment loss of available-for-
sale financial assets, impairment loss of other
receivable, finance income, finance costs, share
of profit/loss of associates, share of loss of and
loss on deregistration of a joint venture, realised
loss upon disposal/redemption of available-for-sale
financial assets, gain on disposal of trading right
in Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society, gain/
(loss) on disposal or deregistration of subsidiaries
and unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other
intangible assets, interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures, available-for-sale financial
assets, unallocated cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, loan receivable from a joint
venture, loan to an associate, amount due from an
associate, contingent consideration receivable, tax
recoverable and other unallocated corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, unallocated
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, contingent
consideration payable and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(a) oo &R U =
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued) 5

(a) KB CEE

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable BHE_Z-NFR-_ZT—+tF
segments as provided to the Group’'s CODM for the NA=+BIEFE- ?E AN
purposes of resources allocation and assessment SEFZLERKEEREER
of segment performance for the years ended 30th DM ERR G2 AN EE
June 2018 and 2017 is set out below: AE®ROBERDT :
2018
—%-0§
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RRBEER BRIEEEEE
Video Trading,
distribution,  wholesaling,
film  and retailing
distribution of optical
and exhibition, products, Securities
licensingand ~ watchesand  Leasing of Total for  brokerage Total for
sub-licensing jewellery investment  Securities Money  Entertainment continuing  and margin discontinued
of film rights products  properties investments lending business  Elimination operations financing ~ Elimination operations Total
AEER
L EOR #HR
EFRAR KEER
BB RER 285" g KEBE BEEER BALEE
BREYRE HERBE  RENE  EERE HE RERH £8 ZBSE FREE it | ES R ait
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TiEn TiEn T TiEn T T T TEn T TEn
Segment revenue AHuE
External revenue MK 41,016 28218 1,01 - .2Nn 9,091 - 86,673 8,930 - 8,930 95,603
Inter-segment sales PEEEE - - - - - - - - 622 (622) - -
41,016 28218 1,01 - .2n 9,091 - 86,673 9,552 (622) 8,930 95,603
Segment results 128,972 (12,422) 4,694 (108,353) 6,040 2,923 622 22,476 (59,693) - (59,693)  (37,217)
Fair value change of
contingent consideration
receivable (11,941) - (11,941)
Fair value change of
contingent consideration
payable (832) - (832)
Gainon disposal of trading ~ HERELHEES
rights held in the Chingse BRAENNS
Gold & Silver Exchange
Society 6,790 - 6,790
Impairment loss of interest
inan associate (16,045) - (16,045)
Impairment loss of available-
for-sale financial assets (23,849) - (23,849)
Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries %9 - 249
Finance income 104 - 104
Finance costs (3,078) - (3,078)
Realised loss upon disposal
of available-for-sale
financial assets (18,987) - (18,987)
Share of losses of associates (473) - (473)
Share of losses of  joint
venture (31) - (31)
Loss on deregistration of a
subsidiary (35) - (35)
Unallocated corporate x5 EEA £RX
expenses (34,048) - (34,048)
Loss before tax BB (79,700 (59,693)  (139,393)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

liabilities (Continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5 o EEE @

(a) oo &b =

INE=RERC )

BE

2018
—2-0\§
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
FEEERR EL e
Video Trading,
distribution,  wholesaling,
film  and retailing
distribution of optical
and exhibition, products, Securities
licensingand ~ watchesand  Leasing of Total for  brokerage
sub-licensing jewellery investment  Securities Money Entertainment  continuing  and margin
of film rights products  properties  investments lending business  operations financing Total
rEER:
BERA #ER
BYRTR HRUER
HRRER 285" HE KEBE BHEER
EREYRE HERRE  RENE  EERE HE REXE  RBEE  AREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TER  TER TR TR FER  FER  FER R
Assets
Segment assets 292,428 18,297 29439 49,356 60,009 12,150 461,679 73,380 535,059
Interests in associates 2,875 = 2,875
Available-for-sale financial
assets 65,882 = 65,882
Contingent consideration
receivable 3,796 - 3,796
Deferred tax assets & 274 - 24
Loan to an associate &3
Z 4,340 - 4,340
Amount due from El-F
an associate wE 8 - 89
Unallocated other AAREBER
intangible assets EE 1,858 - 1,858
Unallocated loan receivables RAREY 947 - 947
Unallocated cash and
cash equivalents 460,083 - 460,083
Unallocated corporate
assets 6,240 - 6,240
Total consolidated assets 1,008,063 73380 1,081,443
Liabilities
Segment ligbilities 104,239 1,308 252 - - 13,757 119,556 6,632 126,188
Taxation payable 7,188 983 817
Deferred tax liabilities 440 - 440
Contingent consideration
payable 20,400 - 20,400
Unallocated corporate
liabilities 921 - 921
Total consolidated liabilities BAEELE 156,855 17,615 164,470
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2 E R @

SR 2 M gE | m
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and a) DW= -¥XBE - BE
o =,
liabilities (Continued) & afEuwm
018
SN
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B4t
FREEER BEER

Video Trading,
distribution,  wholesaling,
film  and retailing

distribution of optical
and exhibition, products, Securities
licensingand ~ watchesand  Leasing of Total for  brokerage
sub-licensing jewellery investment  Securities Money Entertainment  continuing  and margin

of film rights products  properties  investments lending business  operations financing Total

%2EE:

TTLTN S8R

BYRTR HRUER
HRRER 285" HE KEBE BHEER

BRBYME HBRTE  RENE  E3RE HE  REXE  REAE  AREE ait
HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TiEn TiEx TiEn TEx  TER TER TER Tén  TEn

Other information

Additions of property,

plant and equipment 14 2,318 51 - 1,154 1 3544 - 3,544
Additions of unallocated

property, plant and

equipment 2,225 2,225
Total additions of property,

plant and equipment 5,769 - 5,769
Additions of film rights and

films in progress 44,879 - - - - - 44,879 - 44,879
Additions of film related

deposits 19712 - - - - - 1912 - 19712
Depreciation ik 651 751 13 - 404 17 1,836 140 1,976
Unallocated depreciation FIEHE 650 > 650
Amortisation of film rights BYMELES 4,002 - - - = = 4,002 = 4,002
Amortisation of brand name REERIES - 148 - - - - 148 - 148
Total depreciation and HERBHEE

amortisation 6,636 140 6,776
Written off of goodwill - - - - - - - 28,064 28,064

Written off of other intangible assets
Impairment loss of

= = = = = = = 11,400 11,400

accounts receivable (net) - 3,863 - - - - 3,863 9,040 12,903
Impairment loss of film rights 4,903 - - - - - 4,903 - 4,903
Impairment loss of film related deposits 6,949 - - - - - 6,949 - 6,949
(Gain on disposal of film library LEBYEMNE (182,050) - - - - - (182,050) - (182,050)
Increase in fair value of RENEATEEM

investment property - - (3,800) - - - (3,800) - (3,800)
Fair value change of

financial assets at

fair value through

profit of loss - - - 108,598 - - 108,598 - 108,598
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

liabilities (Continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5 o

(a)

2017 (restated)

=& B om)

7 85 U

N2

LN

INE=RERC )

—E-LE(E))
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
it BRLERER
Trading,
Video wholesaling,
distribution,  and retailing
film distribution of optical
and exhibition, products, Securities
licensingand ~ watches and Leasing of Total for brokerage Total for
subrlicensing jewellery  investment Securities Money  Entertainment continuing ~ and margin discontinued
of film rights products properties  investments lending business  Elimination ~ operations financing ~ Elimination operation Total
rEER:
#5HR
KEER
8% REEE 35
HERTE HERENE  EFRE it REEH BB 2BEE A it 5 Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 00! HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THT AR TER TR TER TR TR TR TER  TER  TER
Segment revenue SH8kE
External revenue g 138,806 46,607 1,088 - 5,859 3,388 - 195,717 35,927 - 35,927 231,644
Intersegment sales HHRHE - - - - 1,890 - [1,890) - 7 ) - -
138,806 46,607 1,088 - 7,749 3,388 1.890) 195,717 35,934 7 35,927 231,644
Segment results 31,315 (27,768) 877 11,985 322 (1,984) - 14,747 9,679 - 9,679 24,426
Fair value change of
contingent consideration
receivable 4,807 - 4,807
Fair value change of
contingent consideration
payable 8638) - 8,638)
Impairment loss of interest
in an associate (3,227) - (3,227)
Impairment loss of available-
for-sale financial assets (89,643) - (89,643)
Impairment loss of other
receivables 1,632) - (1,632)
Finance income HERA 288 [ 204
Finance costs SBRA 6,061) (30) (6,091)
Realised loss upon ROAfLESE
redemption of avallablefor- ~ EEEHELE
sale financial assets FR 6,571) - (6,571)
Share of losses of essociates A EBEDAEE (216) - (216)
Share of losses of a joint AME-HAEATA
venture EE (231) - (231)
Loss on deregistration of 8~ HH—HAERAZ
joint venture EE (24) - (24)
Unallocated corporate FARLERR
expenses (25,031) - (25,031)
Loss before tax BRIER (121,332) 9,655 (111,677)
— ————

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018



5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

liabilities (Continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5

e R R M

7 E B oE)

(a) 7 2B W =
INE=RERC )

KB CEE

2017 (restated)
ZE-+F(85)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation

BEEEER
Trading,
Video  wholesaling,
distribution, and retailing
film distribution of optical
and exhibition, products, Securities
licensingand ~ watches and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sublicensing jewellery  investment Securities Money  Entertainment ~ continuing ~ and margin
of film rights products properties  investments lending business  operations financing Total
rEER:
EER
REER
8% RREE EHEER
HERTE HERENE  EFRA HE REXK  2BEE  HRHE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FiER FiER FiER T TER TR TER TR TR
Assets
Segment assets 235,633 24276 25,59 233,064 81,832 14,063 614,663 482,685 1,097,348
Interests in associates NSVa: 19,393 - 19,393
Interests in joint ventures RABNRIZER 251 - 251
Availablefor-sale financial TREESREE
assets 155,693 - 155,693
Contingent consideration ERIARE
receivable 15,737 - 15,737
Deferred tax assets 6,447 - 6,447
Tax recoverable 93 - 93
Loan receivable from
ajoint venture 85% - 8,595
Loan to an associate
2,940 - 2,940
Amount due from
an associate 964 - 964
Unallocated other
intangible assets | 11,358 - 11,358
Unallocated cash and AAERERALE
cash equivalents & 129574 - 129574
Unallocated corporate ROBLREE
assets 8,541 - 8,541
Total consolidated assets 974,249 482,685 1,456,934
Liabilities
Segment ligbilities 239,99 7145 249 15,163 - 8,295 270,848 83,826 354,673
Taxation payable 6,88 763 7,648
Unallocated horrowings 37,900 - 37,900
Deferred tax liabilities 13413 - 13413
Contingent consideration
payable 19,568 - 19,568
Unallocated corporate AARGEEE
liabilities 10,205 - 10,205
Total consolidated liabilties GARRLE 358,819 84,588 43,407
“E-N\FER RFERESRERBRLR @
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2 E R @

aNEvi Ll e % Zi iéq =
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and a) Eh=m %5 - BE
. Cpee =, =
liabilities (Continued) M E\ 8 (&)
2017 (restated)
st
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEEEER

Trading,
Video  wholesaling,
distribution, and retailing
film distribution of optical

and exhibition, products, Securities

licensingand ~ watches and Leasing of Total for brokerage

sublicensing jewellery  investment Securities Money  Entertainment ~ continuing ~ and margin

of film rights products properties  investments lending business  operations financing Total

rEER:
EER
REER

285 GEEL 3
5 HRREE LRRANE  B5RA HE  OREEE  FHAE  7RRE &3t
HK$ 000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
TR FiEn TR TEr TR TER TEn TiEn TiEn

Other information

Additions of property,

plant and equipment - 37 30 - - - 67 106 173
Additions of unallocated

property, plant and

equipment 1,185 - 1,185
Total additions of property,

plant and equipment 1,262 106 1,358
Additions of film rights and

films in progress ) 10,138 - - - - - 10,138 - 10,138
Additions of film related EYRATLEN

deposits 15,332 - - - - - 15,332 - 15,332
Depreciation g 786 583 5 - 400 25 1,799 466 2,265
Unallocated depreciation FIEHE 686 - 686
Amortisation of film rights EYmEz ES 23343 - - - - - 23,343 - 23,343
Amortisation of brand name RRERIES - 148 - - - - 148 - 148
Total depreciation and HERBHEE

amortisation 25,976 466 26,442
Impairment loss of goodwill - 22,980 - - - - 22,980 - 22,980
Impairment loss of

accounts receivable 116 1,394 - - - - 1510 8,960 10,470
Fair value change of

financial assets at

fair value through

profit of loss - - - (12,679) - - (12,679) - (12,679)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Geographical information

e R R M

5 o EEE @

(b)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The
Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong

Kong and PRC.

The revenue information below is based on the

location of the operations.

Hh 15 &
AAFCRE S  AEB 2 %
BEBRRNEBRTHE-

AT mERTIAEETE
REAE

2018
—B-N\%&
Non-current
assets (other
than financial

instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
EREBEE
(TrE#Ee®
TEREZ
W = BHEEE)
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BFERKEER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (P i) 29,519 154,428
PRC and other Asian countries A R E s 58O B K
(other than Hong Kong) (BEBIN) 56,520 2,223
North America 3k =M 335 =
Europe &M 250 =
Others H 49 =
86,673 156,651
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREEEL
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB i) 8,930 120
Total @t 95,603 156,771
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2 E R @
(b) Geographical information (Continued) (b) ik & ¥ @)

2017 (restated)
—E—LF(EF)

Non-current
assets (other
than financial

instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
ERBEE
(TEIES M
TH RIEE
U 25 HIBEBEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BFEREEL
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &7 (BT 72 #b) 49,580 144,382
Macau JE P 21 251
PRC and other Asian countries A K E b 35N B R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (& & &2 FIBR M) 144,191 2,744
North America 1k £ M 779 -
Europe EW 982 -
Others H i 164 -
195,717 147,377
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ERIEEEEK
Hong Kong (place of domicile) ERCAGIRE: ) 35,927 39,724
Total st 231,644 187,101
. . AN =] > NIN
(c) Information about major customers ) FEEAFEXPZER
For the years ended 30th June 2018 and 2017, REBEEZFT-N\FRZZF—+t
there is no single customer contributed 10% or FRNAZ+tHLEFE HEES
more of the Group's revenue. —BPERAEEz ==

10% 8k A F o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 Mx -HBERRME
Leasehold Machinery Furniture Motor Office

improvements and equipment  and fixtures Vehicles  equipment Total

HENZRE HERRE HARRE RE  BAZRE By

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TAL TAL TAL TAL

Costs A
At 1t July 2016 RZIE-RE
tA-H 9,603 25,781 2,636 2,184 9,254 49,458
Additions NE 839 - 214 - 305 1,358
Disposals & (1,249) (7) (87) (413) - (1,756
Exchange realignment EHEE (182) - (32) 3) (10 (227)
At 30th June 2017 and R-E-+%
st July 2017 ~AZTHER
e
tA-H 9,0M 25,774 2,731 1,768 9,549 48,833
Additions NE 2,29 2 668 1,966 839 5,769
Disposals il (1,350 (30) (726) - (142) (2,248)
Exchange realignment fERE 330 - 53 5 N 409
At 30th June 2018 RZE-NE
~AZTH 10,285 25,746 2,726 3,739 10,267 52,763
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE
At 1t July 2016 RIE-RE
tA-H 6,981 26,725 2,124 984 7420 43,234
Depreciation charge nEER 1,296 16 298 401 940 2,951
Disposals & (650) 7 (82) (118) - (857)
Exchange realignment EHEE (161) - (30) 3 (3) (197)
At 30th June 2017 and RZE-t%
st July 2017 ~AZTHER
“E-tf
tA-H 7,466 25,734 2,310 1,264 8,367 45,131
Depreciation charges MEER 1,011 15 229 584 787 2,626
Disposals & (464) (30) (454) - (127) (1,075)
Exchange realignment A% 301 - 52 5 18 376
At 30th June 2018 RZE-NE
~EZTH 8,314 25,7119 2,137 1,853 9,035 47,058
Net carrying amount BERE
At 30th June 2018 RZE-N\&
~NAZTH 1971 i 589 1,886 1,232 5,705
At 30th June 2017 RZE—t&
~AZTH 1,545 40 N 504 1192 3,702

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME -ERERRE@®
(Continued)
As at 30th June 2018, the carrying amount of machinery RZE-NFEXA=Z+H X%
and equipment held by the Group under finance leases REREHERAIERILREZ
is approximately HK$27,000 (2017: HK$62,000). BREELN A27,0008 T (=T —+F:
62,0008 7T) °
Depreciation of approximately HK$10,000 (2017: #r & 410,000/ (= & — + F:
HK$10,000) has been charged to “cost of revenue” 10,000 T)ERGE2EKRA KX Z
and approximately HK$2,616,000 (2017: HK$2,941,000) [z B 725 | A 40 BR - 1 492,616,000
has been charged to “administrative expenses” in the BHL(ZF — 1 F:2941,000% 7T)
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. ERFmAatERERZITTHRE A
B e
7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1 REWE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T FHE T
At fair value BAFE
At the beginning of the year RE 25,560 25,560
Fair value change nEEE 3,800 -
At the end of the year W E R 29,360 25,560
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment
Properties

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

e R R M

ra-E/EAC )
REWMEZAFETE

(a)

DFEER
TREIRBESHRRERE
HEGE YREBMBERS
ERIFIBE A FETEIPA
TEN=ZFRATESELASE
MASERENERFE B
HAFEAENFERZ2EMLE
FOERATER B ARE KA
RUENMEEMEBEEW

FIRHEE EERFIRE A
BEFENQFE AIRAHE
R ERmETHRAEEXER
BEOREHEBERE

F2REE: EAE2RH AR
B EWAFE IAFEE
TR BRGABE kT
EREAATBEENEG AR
Be MR B R B ABIEEER
TS BBEESNE ARE

FIR|MEE: NEXRTAEHE
M ABIEFENAFE

Fair value measurements at

30th June 2018 categorised into
RZB-NFAAZ+HATFEHERER

Fair value at Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
30th June 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZB-N\F
~A=1A
AN ERF 28 £33
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Recurring fair value mEtATAE
measurement tE
Investment properties: REME:
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-FF 29,360 - - 29,360

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

ra-E/EAC )
REWEZAFETE®

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 1

Fair Value Measurement of Investment
Properties (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) XEEZEHE

Fair value measurements at
30th June 2017 categorised into

RZE—+tF A=-+HRTEHEREA
Fair value at Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
30th June 2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—+t&F
NAZTH
ZRVE ER EE E3[
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET THT TER
Recurring fair value mEHATE
measurement e
Investment properties: REME:
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-FE 25,560 - - 25,560

During the year ended 30th June 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group were
revalued as at 30th June 2018. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, who have
amongst their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued.
The management of the Group has discussions with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each annual reporting date.

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment
Properties (Continued)

(b)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

Valuation
techniques

CREWR

e R R M

17 REYFEum
REWEZAFET=E®

(b) BEEEIRAFEHFAEZ

a8
Unobservable Range of
inputs unobservable inputs
FABEZEA TUBEBAHE
" ) ]

Investment properties REBZREYWE
in Hong Kong
— Residential properties Direct comparison
approach

-EEWE BEEREBX

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using direct comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a premium or discount specific
to the quality of the Group's properties compared
to recent sales of comparable transactions. Higher
discount for lower quality properties will result in
a lower fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance

Discount on quality  9%-16% (2017:
of properties 1%-15%)
MELEETZE 9%16%(ZFT— £ F:
1%-15% )

NREEZREMEZRTFE
DEREELEEEE AL
2EAHRLEBMEZRE TR
BREEAEZOHEE B
ERASENXEEZ FHE R
BEXRFTE(EOCHFEEISH L
EMBIFLRAE - REERY
X2 TEeERREZA
FEFERE-

FRAFEIRATEFELEHRD

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as e
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FE T
Investment properties REYE
- Residential - Hong Kong -FTE-FB
At the beginning of the year N E A 25,560 25,560
Fair value change NS 3,800 -
At the end of the year RE KR 29,360 25,560

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

4 >
8 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HMtMEFEEE
Trading
rights
held in
The Chinese
Trading Gold &
rights Silver
heldin  Exchange
the Stock Society Brand Club
Exchange  (“CGSE") name  membership Total
BEER#
BEERM E5% m i
R5E R 2 &g ag
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER ThEL  Thx TEL ThHn
Cost B &
At 1st July 2016 A\ZE-RE+A-H 11,400 - 1,108 1,858 14,366
Additions during the year (Note a) FARE(NiTa) - 9,500 - - 9500
At 30th June 2017 and Tt July 2017 RIB-tERAZTAR
“E-+ELf-H 11,400 9,500 1,108 1,858 23,866
Disposal during the year (Note a) FRHE(Ma) - 9,500) - - (9,500)
Write-off during the year (Note 42) EME (M 42) (11,400) - - - (11,400)
At 30th June 2018 R-E-\EXA=TH - - 1,108 1,858 2,966
Accumulated amortisation LS ¥
At 1st July 2016 A\_Z-REtA-H - - 135 - 135
Amortisation for the year EREH - - 148 - 148
At 30th June 2017 and 1st July 2017 RZIE-—tE/A=THR
“2-+E+f-H - - 283 - 283
Amortisation for the year FREE - - 148 - 148
At 30th June 2018 RZF-\EXA=tH - - 431 - 431
Carrying amount RE{E
At 30th June 2018 R-E-N\EXA=TH - - 677 1,858 2,535
At 30th June 2017 R-F-+& A=1H 11,400 9,500 825 1,858 23,583
Note: B 5
(a)  During the year ended 30th June 2017, the Group acquired (@ HEZZEZ—+tFNA=Z+HLHF
the trading rights that confer eligibility of the Group to g A& E LA E 9,500,000 T B
trade on The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society BYE=ZF7REEHETAEERER
("Trading Rights”) from an independent third party at a ReREEZEFBEE IR EF
consideration of HK$9,500,000. (I 5 #]) -
During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group HE-_Z—-\FXNA=Z+HLHF
disposed of the Trading Rights to an independent third ErAEBUAR 1@ 16,290,000/ 7T
party at a consideration of HK$16,290,000 and recognised MBIE=ZFLEXFZE TER
a gain on disposal of Trading Rights of HK$6,790,000. HE RS2 6,790,000 7T °
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e R R M

9 GOODWILL 9 BWE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 24N
At 1st July 2016 RZE—-—RFtLtH—H 89,370
Disposal of AP Group (Note 47) LEEHEERMEL7) (13,971)
At 30th June 2017, 1st July 2017 RZE—tEFRA=THEK
—E—tF+tH—H 75,399
Write-off upon cessation of securities brokerage K IFEFARLLEEKRAFREME
and margin financing business (Note 42) ¥ 5% 2 Wi (1 7 42) (28,064)
At 30th June 2018 RZE—-NFARA=TH 47,335
Accumulated impairment losses EFREEBR
At 1st July 2016 R-_E—XRFE+LA—H 29,923
Disposal of AP Group (Note 47) HEEHEERMT47) (5,568)
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 22,980
At 30th June 2017, 1st July 2017 and RZE—tEFXXA=+H"
30th June 2018 —E—+tFtA—HBXK
—E-NFARA=TH 47,335
Carrying amount BREE
At 30th June 2018 RZE-—NFARA=TH -
At 30th June 2017 RZE—tEFAA="TH 28,064

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following CGUs.

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products (“Division A")

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches and
jewellery products (“Division B")

- Securities brokerage and margin financing business
(“Division C")

- Training and coaching business (" Division D")

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 30th June 2017 are allocated
to Division C.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below.

Division A

As at 30th June 2017, the recoverable amount of CGU
of trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products,
which is included in the segment of trading, wholesaling,
and retailing of optical products, watches and jewellery
products, of HK$Nil was determined based on value
in use calculations. Those calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a period of 5 years. Cash flows
beyond 5 years were extrapolated by assuming a
growth rate of 3% and discount rates of approximately
19.8%. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant CGU. Another key
assumption for the value in use calculations was the
budgeted gross margin, which was determined based
on the CGU's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. The Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$1,314,000 on the
goodwill due to deterioration of operating results for the
year ended 30th June 2017 and the goodwill of Division
A was fully impaired as at 30th June 2018 and 2017 .
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[EESICD)

BEERAEENABNT D EE N
THREELEM-

- KRBEREZ HERZTE(S
#BAL

- BERMREERES HER
ZEXRBUDEBL

- RBEREEARBEEB(S
#Bcl)

- BilkwmEXHKTHED))
R_E-—tLtHEFRA=+H BEZ
EREEGFIERRABEBR) DEE

D EC e

tReELEEL 2 KB 2E 2
AERATEHEBARIBADT -

73 BB A
KR-FE—tFXxA=+A x2BE

mES WERTEZREELEE
VA RE BB TGIAXEE
mERMAKBEEREBE S HER
TENEERFEAEEFEET It
ZHEFTARABERKCEREEMNE
JHEFHBRBE 2 RS MERENA
FE O MAFHEZRAESAE DK
3% BRIER K N #419.8% 8515 X i
HoPTAABE R AR ATELIR = W
RMEEHEAREELASENER 2R
EFRkE - FTEEAEBEECS —BEE
EZREAEHEENE MBEBEEF
RDBREReELEENZBARR
LEEEYMBSEREHEE-
AEEBREEZE-_ZT—tF A=+
BIEFELEXEEEMERD B
SR E B5 481,314,00078 JT - M 2 2BA
ZEERZE-NEFER_FT—+tF
ANAZTHERERE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (Continued)

Division B
For the impairment testing, goodwill arising from
acquisition of Winston and brand name classified as

“other intangible assets” are allocated to the Group's
CGU B.

As at 30th June 2017, the recoverable amount of the
CGU of trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches
and jewellery products business, which is included in
the segment of trading, wholesaling, and retailing of
optical products, watches and jewellery products, of
HK$1,615,000 was based on its value in use and was
determined with the assistance of Royson Valuation
Advisory Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The calculations
used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a period of 5 years,
and at a discount rate of approximately 19.9%. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU. Cash flows beyond 5 years
were extrapolated by assuming a 3% growth rate taking
into consideration the economic condition of the market.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculations
was the budgeted gross margin, which was determined
based on CGU’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. The Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$21,666,000 on
the goodwill for the year ended 30th June 2017 due
to the further deterioration of operating results and
financial performance, and the unfavourable changes in
the market circumstance and the goodwill of Division B
was fully impaired as at 30th June 2018 and 2017.

e R R M

[EESICD)

o BB

BBEANRAME  2EAIEMER
BE|lZWEWinston T 1582 & &
Hﬁ%?ﬁ%& REAEBE2RESESE

RZE—+FEXA=Z+TH AKX
BEER ERRUBEERE S it
%&2 NEHMEHKRKEEME

CHEBERTEEXEB RS ELEE
ﬁZﬂ%@@%mmwm%ﬁﬂm
ETREE YHEERTGHEBE

NR(BEAEETEBEZBLE
XA5ERGHEM 2B T EE
FoWhidETARBERKCERE
Ttt/&ZﬂiHH ﬁ?fﬂ( ,\#Ziﬁi/mi
TE OB K 3% Bh 3R X 4919.9% & B o AT
AR R B A ALIR X - I fx bR £
HEARESELEENEBE 2T TRRE -
FFHEESRENKLEZEEMS
REER 3% EREHE -5+ E
FREBECES " HEZBRRARBEE
EME - AERBERESELEEM 2B
ARBLEEBEYMEBEER 2BH
ET AKSERBEEZ_ZF—tF A~
A=THILEFERKEXERVB X
RE—PEENETFTRESM
R 7 2R E &5 18 21,666,000 7 7T
MAaABZEHER_ZT—N\FR=
Z—+FNA=ZTBHEBERE-
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GOODWILL (Continued)

Division C
For the impairment testing, goodwill arising from the
acquisition of CJFS and trading rights held in the Stock

Exchange classified as “other intangible assets” are
allocated to the Group’'s CGU C.

As at 30th June 2017, the recoverable amount of the
CGU of securities brokerage and margin financing
business was based on its value in use and was
determined with the assistance of Royson Valuation
Advisory Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The calculation
used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a period of 5
years, and at a discount rate of 16.3%. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU. Cash flows beyond 5 years were
extrapolated by assuming a 3% growth rate, take into
consideration the economic condition of the market. The
cash flow projection and the growth rate of the margin
financing business has already taken into consideration
of the instruction from the SFC to CJFS to refrain from
providing further margin lending or other form of financial
accommodation to customers until it has fully complied
with the applicable Code of Conduct requirements, and
CJFS board of director’'s assessment of the timing of
the implementing measures required by the SFC to
satisfactorily address the identified deficiencies and risk
concerns and thus not resulting in the SFC taking further
action which may include the imposition of conditions
on the CJFS’s licence.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group ceased
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing
due to deterioration of operating results and financial
performance during the year. The Group has written
off the goodwill of Division C and recognised a loss of
HK$28,064,000 (Note 42).

Division D
On 1st July 2016, the Group disposed of its 51% equity

interest in a subsidiary, AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited (Note 47).
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[EESICD)
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10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS 10 E=

e R R M

,-?/ ERREPZ

EE 5"/
Film Films in
rights progress Total
B
EX IR ZE¥ B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHL TAT FHEL
Cost D%
At 1st July 2016 RZE—R"E+HA—H 902,394 51,480 953,874
Additions NE 4,951 5,187 10,138
Transfers 2 21,797 (21,797 -
Write-off of DVD preproduction cost WY SR R
N € (429) - (429)
Write-off of expired film rights 3R E AR A 2 M (4,049) - (4,049)
At 30th June 2017 and 1st July 2017 750 —tE~A=tHR
—t%tH—H 924,664 34,870 959,534
Additions = 97 44,782 44,879
Transfers from film related ERAETHEBT S
deposits 7,239 - 7,239
Disposals & (846,434) - (846,434)
Write-off of expired film rights 2 ERE 5 AR 2 8 (9,096) - (9,096)
At 30th June 2018 R-ZE-NEXA=+A 76,470 79,652 156,122
Accumulated amortisation and B BERRE
impairment
At 1st July 2016 RZE-—R"ELtA—H 899,596 - 899,596
Amortisation for the year (Note 34) F N8 (HE34) 23,343 - 23,343
Write-off of DVD preproduction cost WIET SR ERE
7R 2 i8R (429) - (429)
Write-off of expired film rights BEESATFE §: (4,049) - (4,049)
At 30th June 2017 and 1st July 2017 RZZE—tF~A=1THEK
-t tH—H 918,461 - 918,461
Amortisation for the year (Note 34) F A (M FE34) 4,002 - 4,002
Impairment i E 4,903 - 4,903
Derecognised upon disposal HEEYMEZIEER (842,751) - (842,751)
Write-off of expired film rights BEER PE §; (9,096) - (9,096)
L. A30thJune2018 L BREECNESASLA L B e 5519,
Carrying amount EEEE
At 30th June 2018 AZE-NEFERA=Z1+H 951 79,652 80,603
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+FERXA=TH 6,203 34,870 41,073

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Amortisation of approximately HK$4,002,000 (2017:
HK$23,343,000) is included in the cost of revenue in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment test for film rights and films in
progress

The Group observes whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
segment are subject to any impairment indication, in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
2 of these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the cast
or scale of each films, current market condition, the trade
history, current financial position and popularity of film
outline stories. Management has further performed an
assessment on the recoverable amount of the film rights
and film in progress based on each film sales forecast.
An impairment of approximately HK$4,903,000 has been
made for the year ended 30th June 2018 (2017: nil) on
the film rights and no impairment (2017: nil) has been
made on films in progress for video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights segment in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Disposal of Film Library

On 9th January 2017, Universe Films Distribution Company
Limited (“UFD"), a subsidiary, and an independent
third party purchaser entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“Film Library Disposal Agreement”) to
dispose of 202 feature films (“Film Library”) conditionally
at a consideration of approximately RMB178,895,000.
As at 30th June 2017, UFD has received part of the
consideration of approximately HK$108,806,000, after
deducting withholding tax, which was included in other
payables and accrued charges (Note 32). During the
year, UFD has received the remaining portion of the
consideration of approximately HK$76,927,000. The cost
of the Film Library has been almost fully amortised in
previous years and the carrying value of the Film Library
is approximately HK$3,683,000 as at 21st September
2017 (date of disposal). Upon the disposal, after taking
into account of all relevant expenses and exchange
differences, the Group realised an one-off gain of
approximately HK$182,050,000 from the disposal. This
transaction was completed on 21st September 2017.
Gain on disposal of the Film Library was recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

10
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11

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES N EEZHWE QA
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at LMTITBR_ZTE-N\FRA=ZF+RHZ
30th June 2018. FTEMBERAIEE -
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
:EL
Bl HERE BEER
BRAABE KE BEBEW
ARAL/RILE LRk WEER EER
£R REGRREN BRATRAHE IEERRERNE A% A% A
Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in 100% - -
Limited* limited liahility Hong Kong
company
iBRAES: ERRBTI002T  RERR FE
ERELAR
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Sub-licensing of film - 100% -
Company Limited liability company rights and television
series, film exhibition
and leasing of investment
properties in Hong Kong
EFPRENARAR BR RREELT  ERRRAER EREYMERSHE.
EYNBNRLERE
nE &
Unique Model Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
FR BREALT  EARRM00ET 0 BRRAR FE
Universe Digital Entertainment — Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 5%  Distribution of films in - 100% -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 various videogram
formats in Hong Kong
EYEFLARLT B5AREEAT  EBRRAONOET WTREEHAES
S%ELRRA EE AL
10,0003 7
Universe Management Services  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Provision of management - 100% -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group
in Hong Kong
EFLEERARAT FE ERRALE  EBRREA000ET WASEREERRE:
5% EL R R A BE
10,0003 7T
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11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1N FEHE 2 A
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
i3]
ERm  HERE BEERR
BRAKE KE BEEAW
AR/ RIS TER HMEER LER
£ REEEREN BRARAES IRERREENY A% A% A%
Universe Entertainment Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US§2 Investment in films - 100% -
limited liability production and licensing
company of film rights in
Hong Kong
STREARAA £BRTES ERRBRA2ET RASYHERRLEY
EREMERA W B
Universe (China) Development  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited liability company Kong and investment in
television series
production in the
People's Republic of
China (“PRC")
SRRE)RRARAA FR BREALT  EARRAER RERR FR RERE
HESREEM"
mEARAAE(HE])
Globalink Advertising Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Advertising agent for the - 100% -
liability company Group in Hong Kong
FR BREALT  EARRAMER REEZEERE FR
Universe International Technology ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Purchasing agent for the - 100% -
Limited liability company Group in Hong Kong
EFABMEARAA FE EREELR  LRRRA2ER AREZRERE FR
Universe Artiste Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 Management of contracted - 100% -
Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
EFEAEEERAT ER BREELT  EARRKI0ET EEGNEA FH
Films Station Production Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Films production in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
FR BREALT  EARRAMER EF A FiR
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by S B S

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1N ETEWE 2 [ w@
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
3

Egm  HHRE HEER
BLARKR bR BEEAN

AR/ RIS TER HMEER LER
£ REEEREN BRARAES IRERREENY BA) A% HB(%)
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Licensing and sub-licensing - 100% -

liability company of music programme and
investment in concert in
Hong Kong
STERARAA BE RRAMLT  ERRRAERL RAERERIEHAME
NRREE%E EE
Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Sub-licensing of film rights - 100% -
Limited* liability company in Hong Kong
FR BREALT  ERRRAVER EREYME B
Wide Avenue Holdings Limited*  The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in the 100% - -
limited liahility British Virgin Islands
company
ABRNES ERRRAIET REER EERAHE
ERELAR
Universe Martix Films Investment  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 Investment in films - 100% -
Limited liability company production

RTUREYREABRAA  FR ARAMLA  ERERBRAER RESYRE

%W’M@ﬁﬁ EYERILR)  PRC, limited liability RMB1,000,000 Distribution of films in - 100% -
AR company the PRC
hE BREMLT  AKRH1,0000007 LY 1 H
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in the 100% - -
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
BIREX(BRIERRA RERXES ERRBA00%2T  REABR EBRIFE
BREMELA
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11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1N FEHE 2 A
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
HER
ERm  HERE BEERR
BRAKE KE BEEAW
AR/ RIS TER HMEER LER
£ REEEREN BRARAES IRERREENY A% EBI% A%
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100% -
limited liahility
company
KEERERRA £BRTEE: ERRBRRMET FrRE
EREMRLA
Fragrant River Finance Group The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
BIMBEEARAA £BRITEE ERRRA00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Fragrant River Asia Investment — The British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
BITNREARAR £BRITEE ERRRA00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Urban King Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BOERERAE £BRIEE ERREAI00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Precise Reach Group Limited The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BESEARAA £BRITEE ERREAI00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Valiant Power Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BHARERRA £BRITEE ERREA00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
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11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1N FEHE 2 A
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
i3]
ERm  HERE BEERR
BRAKE KE BEEAW
BRAL/ ALY LER  HEER  HER
48 REEEMEN  BRGRAE  GEEEREESE A% A% A%
Great Harbour Enterprises Limited  The British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
TECEERAT £BRITEE ERRRA00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Gold Summit International Limited - The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BRARERAA £BRITEE ERRRA00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Rising Fame International Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
RAERERRE £BRITEE ERRRA00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Galaxy View Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong, British Virgin
company Islands and the PRC
SFEEERRA £BRIEE ERRREIET RERR &H:
ERELAR AERAEERTE
Honest Novel Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US§100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
FIERERRE £BRITEE ERREAI00ET  REER B
EREMRLA
Universe International Holdings ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Limited liability company Hong Kong
EFEREREBAF BR BREALR  ERREK00ET 0 REER FR
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Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
i 3
ERm  HERE BEERR
BRAKE KE BEEAW
AR/ RIS TER HMEER LER
£ REEEREN BRARAES IRERREENY A% EBI% A%
China Jianxin Credit Services Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Money lending in - 100% -
Limited liability company Hong Kong
TEREEEARAA BR RREELT  ERREM00ET  ME FR
Formex Financial Press Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Financial printing services - 100% -
(formerly " Fragrant River liability company in Hong Kong
Culture Investment Limited”)
FANEHRERAR GRS EF ERERLA  ERRBIw00ET  HEDRRE R
[BIXREERAA]
Fragrant River Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Investment Limited liability company Hong Kong
EIREREARAT B BREMLT  LRRERK00AT  REAR FA
Rising Fame Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$3,000,000  Securities investments - 100% -
liability company
RARAERRA FE EREAELT  EBRRRA EHRE
3,000,000 1T
Fine Ocean Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$5,000,001  Optical shops - 90% 10%
liability company
BHARRA FE ERRALE  ERRRA BEE
5,000,001 1T
Winston Asia Limited* The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$3,319 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong and the PRC
company
£BRTEE" ERRRASIOET  REER FERRE
ERELAR
Universe Watch and Jewellery — Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$73,944,225  Investment holding in - 100% -
Group Co Ltd liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
STEEKESERRLAT  FR RREMLT  ERRER REER FERTHE
7394420578 70

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @
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11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1N FEHE 2 A
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares held by shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly other group by non-
establishment and kind  Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
i3]
ERm  HERE BEERR
BRAKE KE BEEAW
AR/ RIS TER HMEER LER
£ REEEREN BRARAES IRERREENY A% EBI% A%
A THEERERA R PRC, limited liability Ordinary RMB27,500,000 Wholesale and retail of - 100% -
company watches in the PRC
PECEREALE  EBRRRA BENSEES 76
AR 275000007
ERE5(HERAT PRC, limited liability Ordinary HK$9,000,000  Wholesale and retail of - 100% -
company watches in the PRC
nE EREALE  LARRA HENTEES 7HE
9,000,000 1T
Garona (HK) Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$300,000  Wholesale and retail of - 100% -
liability company watches in Hong Kong
ER BREMLT  LBRRA0000ET HENTEER FA
Garona Worldwide Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 Investment holding in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
FE EREALT  EBRRA000ET REER B
World Time (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100,000 Investment holding in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
ERtAERAA FE EREALE  EBRRZT00000ET REER FH
China Jianxin Financial Services  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$282,100,000 Securities brokerage and - 100% -
Limited liability company margin financing
TERFERBEERAR  FA AREMLD  ERRER ERALRARREE
282,100,000/ 7T
China Jianxin Precious Metal Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$5,500,000  Holding the trading rights - 100% -
Company Limited liability company held in The Chinese Gold
& Silver Exchange
Society
HERERELRARLR FE EREMALT  EBRERX FREREESHARHE
5,500,000 1T
* No registered Chinese name for the companies * ZERPRTEZLREE
# No registered English name for the companies # ZERPRAVEZLEXNEH
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12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT 12

DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
(a)

Interests in associates

REERNT 2R

e R R M

J& IR

LT PP

(a)

Cost of investments in associates,

unlisted

Share of post-acquisition profits
Less: Accumulated impairment

loss
Less: Dividend received

BREBERAZRA
LM

& 165 1 8 120 A

B R ETRE B 1R

BB WA B

REtZNal 2R
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FA T
42,314 42,314
3,007 3,480
(37,693) (21,648)
(4,753) (4,753)
2,875 19,393

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

RBEEHRANEEZHZ QA
ZEBMT

Place of Principal place  Proportion of registered
Name of entity incorporation of business  capital held by the Group Principal activity Note
rEEREL
BERAR ERAILE ITEERY ERERL A TEEER it
2018 2017
ZE-\E “3-tF
Glory International British Virgin Hong Kong 49% 49%  Advertising, promotion, provision (i)

Entertainment Limited Islands (“BVI") of public relations services,

(“Glory International ") holding and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film
production and other cultural
events

VEERREERAA EERAES B BERE KB RULE

([FRER]) BE% BERIHELEL
g%e EYHERAL
XtEs

Hong Kong Optical Company  Hong Kong Hong Kong 28% 28%  Trading, wholesaling and (ii

Limited ("HK Optical”) retailing of optical products

EAKEREBRAA B B £ HERTERZER
(IXERE)

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @
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12 REBEQAT 2rkE TR
—EBE QT 2 RE @

(a) Interests in associates (Continued) (a) REE2E QA2 HE =
Notes: B & -

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT
DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

l}ﬂ]

Glory International operates in Hong Kong and is
a strategic partner for the Group in developing the
business of advertising, promotion, provision of
public relations services, holding and sponsoring
stage performance, concerts, film production and
other cultural events.

No impairment is made for the year ended 30th
June 2017.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, in view of
the financial performance of Glory International,
the Group performed an impairment assessment
on its investments in Glory International whereby
the recoverable amount of HK$2,875,000 of Glory
International was determined based on value in use
calculations, with reference to the estimated cash
flows in the coming five years. Cash flows beyond
5 years were extrapolated by assuming a 2.5%
growth rate using a pre-tax discount rate of 19.5%.
Following the impairment assessment, amount of
HK$16,045,000 was recognised as impairment
loss in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the year ended 30th June 2018.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, in view
of the financial performance of HK Optical, the
Group performed an impairment assessment on its
investment in HK Optical whereby the recoverable
amount of HK Optical was determined to be nil
based on value in use calculations, with reference
to the estimated cash flows in the coming five
years. Cash flows beyond 5 years were extrapolated
by assuming a 3% growth rate using a pre-tax
discount rate of 16.4%. Following the impairment
assessment, an amount of HK$3,227,000 was
recognised as impairment loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
year ended 30th June 2017.

No impairment is made for the year ended 30th
June 2018.
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ii)

%K%ﬁ@%@ﬁ%%%&f’ﬁ

HE EHABERS A8k
ITHEABEL BELE BY
BIERAEMXILESDES L
ZEHEEERE -
HE-_ZT—+ttH&#~A=+H
IEFEB BT RAE-
E@@E:%*)\E/\_\HE
THIEFE ZRFERER

2 W% RR ZIS%IQEM/
BB 2R E TR ER
e ERERZAKE S EHE
2,875,000 T 7y B & F A
BEL2EZREAHE X
19.5% 5 & 2 K K B F 14 &
BeREaBRIEERBA
2% MHEE AFEB &R
EMEBET -RREFGHE B
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12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT 12 REE QA zif””‘ FE UK

DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued) — [E B & A 8] 2 FRIE @)

(a) Interests in associates (Continued) (a) 7§ D\ A) Z T & ()
Summarised financial information of material FEBE QA 2T BER
associates BE
Summarised financial information of the material RETBRELNANERMED
associate, adjusted for any differences in AE WERGEEHBRER
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying MERELETASN EER S
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, NEPBEERBERENT

are disclosed below:

Glory International F 12 B ¥

2018 2017
AE: —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross amounts of the associate’s RN FH T FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,319 2,443
Current assets RBEE 13,123 13,223
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = -
Current liabilities mEBE (11,748) (11,006)

Dividend received from the FRAEWEEDFH
associate during the year % & = 4,753
Revenue W 25 12,479 20,448
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) & F (966) 2,641

Other comprehensive income for FREMEERE

the year = -

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for F R 2 & (E18) W%
the year # 5 (966) 2,641

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF
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12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT 12 RtE R Rl 2w W
DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued) - Fﬁ H &N Al Z FRIE @)
(a) Interests in associates (Continued) (a) 70 B E\ 2 TE = ()
Summarised financial information of material FEBEQNRZUBER
associates (Continued) = @)
Glory International (Continued) F A B BR (1)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial ExXBz B EREREES
information to the carrying amount of the interest MHEREABERONE S QA %E
in the associate recognised in the consolidated w2 R E A H R

financial statements:

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Net assets of Glory International ¥ REKR 2 & EFE 3,694 4,660
Proportion of the Group's Z’S EERTRBRERZ
ownership interest in 75 W 2 L
Glory International 49% 49%
1,810 2,283
Goodwill SRS 35,531 35,5631
37,341 37,814
Impairment Loss VRN Sk (34,466) (18,421)
Carrying amount of the Group's AEERERER
interest in Glory International BERZEEDE 2,875 19,393
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12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT
DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Interests in associates (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are
not individually material

e R R M

12 REBE R 2R R

~HBEATZRE@®

(a) MEEE QB 2

ﬂEIBHFEjt & N a2 E
mER

2018 2017
—NfF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
The Group's share of loss and AEBEZEMEBER X
total comprehensive income el (840) (1,510)
Aggregate carrying amount of NEBRZSHE QA
the Group's interests in these ZHEDZEEBERRE

associates

All of the associates are accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  Amount due from an associate

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
approximate to their fair value.

REAMBHRERN BB E
NE AR IETI R

b) B —HBE QA Z
K IR

FE U — BB R R 2 BB B R
BAR - it 8 RARERMEE -
SR T EREE A
FEEE -

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF
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Al zEmE U

13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/LOAN 13 REE
EENTFZER

RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT VENTURE —E

T \>>

- . . AY A ')\_)\| f— \—H— \/\
(a) Interests in joint ventures a) RELERAIZES
2018 2017
—N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TE T FA T
Cost of investments in joint KEAZERNR ZHA
ventures, unlisted JE L™ 1,147 1,147
Share of post-acquisition losses JE G W BE 12 B 18 (927) (896)
Derecognition upon disposal of SIS B R R
DPP (Note ii) #% 1 B R (M =T (220) -
- 251
Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the RMERARAEEZEE QA
end of the reporting period are as follows: ZHEBWT
Place of Principal place  Proportion of registered
Name of entity incorporation of business  capital held by the Group Principal activity
HE IE rEEREZ
ERZR RIHH EEnY FMERL A TEER
2018 2017
ZE-\E —“F-+%
Sun Billion Property Macau Macau - 40%  Investment of land and property
Limited (Note ii} in Macau
BAEXERAT P R REMREMZTHRNE
(B 3Ei)
Topworld Victory Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong - - Deregistered
(Note i)
TIBRARME) Bk Bk B

Note: B & -

(i) On 7th April 2017, Topworld Victory Limited, a i) RZE—ttFWMAEHE'RK
former joint venture of the Group, was successfully & @ —HRAE @ ﬂ i< ]
deregistered. Upon deregistration, the Group RAIKIN T - ReEH%
recorded a loss on deregistration of joint venture $ SESHSEIHEHEERAE
of approximately HK$24,000. 18 4924,00078 7T ©
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13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/LOAN
RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

(a)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(ii) The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Digital Programme Production Limited (“"DPP")
held 40% equity interest in Sun Billion Property
Limited (“Sun Billion”). On 15th August 2017,
the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in
DPP to Mr. Lam Shiu Ming Daneil, the Chairman
and an executive Director, at a consideration of
HK$294,000 and Sun Billion ceased to be a joint
venture of the Company. Details of the disposal of
DPP are set out in Note 47.

All joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are
not individually material:

e R R M

13 REERA 2R W

—BEeE A" ZE R

(a)

REERNEZERE
M5 (4B)

(il ARBFBEZENB QT
HIWE BRIEBR LA
WEHERIENFBEHRE %
BRAR(FER])40% I HE -
WZZE—tFNA+HRAB "
AEBHEHTBHERIER
R AE TN E(ER R
HITESE) - R (B 5294,000#
L MBRAIBAARRRZ
AEAA - BEHELEHBE
BEEZFBHNRMFE47 -

FTERERAYURBRANE
EHMBRERAR-

EEERGLAAZERA
%

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT T T
The Group's share of loss and REBZEEERR
total comprehensive income el (31) (231)
Aggregate carrying amount of the RNEBRZEAHE A T
Group's interests in these joint JHEmCERBERE
ventures - 251

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

\eERAlZzER IR
13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/LOAN 13 BNE
RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT VENTURE —BeERAZER@
(Continued)
(b) Loan receivable from a joint venture b) E—HEEEAA2Z
= =%
I=RN
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Loan receivable from a joint ER—BE&egraz
venture BEX
At the beginning of the year R E A 8,595 8,364
Accretion income for the period Rz Z2EIKA 31 231
Derecognition upon disposal of N ESEE B & e
DPP (Note 47) & 1F R (Bt 1 47) (8,626) -
At the end of the year RE R - 8,595
The loan receivable from a joint venture is YW —HEERRIZERAE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in 5 years B 2B REAERZ EI HY B
from the date of agreement. SERNEE -
The loan receivable from a joint venture was RZF-—EtFXA=1TH8 &
neither past due nor impaired as at 30th June 2017. W—MeaE8RRZERLKE
The management of the Group believed that no B3 75 AR OR ﬁ/\ ALBER % A
a poy n s
impairment allowance was necessary in respect & B R & ‘:'* ERAZEEE ;é\
of this balance as there had not been a significant ? WAmEREE B R Z
EHRIEDRERE-

change in credit quality on the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

e R R M

14 s - FENRERE

tbs FE W K 18

2018 2017
—NE —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current portion E IR
Rental deposit Hesl= 1,396 191
At 30th June WA<A=1+H 1,396 191
Current portion B HA &5 53‘
Prepayments T8 33 7,048 4,214
Interest receivable & U 7 B 411 566
Advance payment to joint operation X fN&EH 28R
partners 85,754 4,218
Rental deposits and other deposits fﬂ%ﬁﬂ/i\&ﬁﬁﬁ Hikn 11,793 9,469
Other receivables H b & U 50T 65,583 82,207
At 30th June BRAXA=1+H 170,589 100,674

The amount of the Group’s deposits paid expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense after more than
one year is HK$1,396,000 (2017: HK$191,000). All of the
other deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

The other receivables mainly relate to a number of
independent debtors that have good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

AEBEHEBER —Fg KA
ﬁEm%BﬂEZEﬁEHE & me s
41,396,000/ w( = =
191,000/ 7T) ° ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁé
EMNFEREMERZTEBEHEBHRL
—FRKE R RS -

HiBWAKBETBZHETERNAE
BAEARNTALBZBILEHKA
ER-REEEER ENEEE
EYBEANES MERKTIDKE
SAAUZHKE HEEEMEEHME
FERRTERFELRERE -
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15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

15 ZBRBEERLOFEAR
CEMEE

2018 2017
—NE —ET—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Listed equity securities — held for TR AEFESF-BEEE
trading 49,356 232,629
Market value of listed securities EWEHzmE 49,356 232,629

As at 30th June 2017, the listed equity securities with a
total carrying amount of HK$59,566,000 were pledged
to a securities brokerage firm to secure margin loans
obtained during the year (Note 28).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within ‘operating activities’ as part of changes
in working capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows (Note 46).

Except for a listed equity security suspended from
trading with carrying amount of HK$9,465,000, the fair
value of the remaining equity securities is based on their
closing prices as at 30th June 2018 in an active market.
The fair value of the listed equity suspended from trading
is determined based on valuation techniques and inputs
as stated in note 3.3(i)(d).
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R-_E—+tHFXA=+H TR
RN 5 IR ™ 4 B 559,566,000 T
B P & &40 N 7 LA IR BT E
BHFRE KM E28) -

EARLEESEHN Ao FA
BHEBRAFEARZERMEEN A
BRABRSRERAZILEEH] (K
FT46) o

B — 78 BE ™ 1 49,465,000 ;T 2 +
TRABH(EEEFER)N BT
BABEZAFEDNREER T
—N\FRXNA= +Eltmﬂx$’%%‘<7?
ERERmENKmES o R AR
FHEBPEEEBE)ZA %@Bm#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

e R R M

16 AHEESMEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$000 HK$'000

FE T T T

Listed equity securities, at fair value FHiRAZB S - IR A FE - 73,461

Unlisted investment funds, FFEFTERERES

at fair value BRAFYE 1,049 24,898
Unlisted limited partnership, FETMBRERDE

at fair value %A FEE 64,833 57,334

65,882 155,693

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the net loss in fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets recognised
in the consolidated other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$39,827,000 (2017: HK$88,565,000).
During the year, there was a significant decline in fair
value of certain unlisted investment funds and the
directors consider that such decline indicates that
these unlisted investment funds have been impaired
and an impairment loss of HK$23,849,000 (2017:
HK$89,643,000) was reclassified from equity to the profit
or loss during the year.

As at 30th June 2017, the listed equity securities with
a total carrying in the amount of HK$73,461,000 were
pledged to a securities brokerage firm to secure margin
loans obtained during the year (Note 28).

\}“

HE_Z£Z-N\FAAA=+TBLtHF
E e Etm2m bR ERDY
ATHTESsREEATFENFEE
18 539,827,000 (= T — + F -
88,565,000 ;L) F AN+ & T I £
TREESHNAFEKRETR &
ERAEBEEATHREBZSEIELET
REECORE YRFEFRNGERE
/55 1823,849,0008 (=T — £ F:
89,643,000)t Em BN N LB -

R—_EBE—t&FXA=Z+H 0K
M & BR T 42 {573,461,0008 T B
B FEHFLL R AERTEE
RFREE R E28) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 17 ¥R E o2 ®m I A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REEPR SEBRTENER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period BWAT:

are as follows:

As at 30th June 2018 RZZE—-—N\NFXXA=TH
Financial assets EWMEE

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
ERBR
RAYE
AEZ
tHEE
Available-for-
sale financial ~ Contingent Held for ~ Loans and
assets consideration trading receivables Total
THNLE ERR
EREE FARE KHEEE ERIE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThERT ThERT TER ThER

Available-for-sale financial assets A/t &S BEE 65,882 - - - 65,882
Financial assets at fair value FREREATEAR
through profit or loss JEREE - - 49,356 - 49,356
Accounts receivable & - - - 30,935 30,935
Amount due from an associate & Ui Bt & 0 R) FUB - - - 89 89
Financial assets included in EPNIEREERS
"deposits paid, prepayments FERE WA
and other receivables” LEREE - - - 164,937 164,937
Loans receivahle EWET - - - 58,045 58,045
Loan to an associate RY-EBERAZ
EX - - - 6,840 6,840
Contingent consideration ERSEARE
receivable - 3,796 - - 3,796
Bank balances and cash ROEBRRAS
- trust account -EREP - - - 7,157 7,157
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELZEY - - - 522,285 522,285
65,882 3,796 49,356 790,288 909,322
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e R R M

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 17 ¥R E o2 ®m I A

(Continued) (#)
As at 30th June 2018 (Continued) RZZE—N\NFRXA=ZTH
(%)
Financial Liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
AFEAR
ZEMAE
Financial
liabilities at
Contingent amortised
consideration cost Total
8§08
I BR 2
FREME eRER By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TERT
Accounts payable E R X - 8,518 8,518
Financial liabilities included in SPATH M ER B
“other payables and accrued charges” MR it
and “deposits received” RIEWET 2]
JEmaE - 111,045 111,045
Obligations under finance lease BMEHERIE - 25 25
Contingent consideration payable B R ANRE 20,400 - 20,400
20,400 119,588 139,988

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 17

(Continued) (#&)

As at 30th June 2017

Financial assets

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
BRTE
N w4
TREE
Available-for-
sale financial Contingent Held for ~ Loans and
assets  consideration trading  receivables Total
e B3I R
tREE AARE  BIEEE EKFE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THEL THL THIL FHT
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S BEE 155,693 - - - 155,693
Financial assets at fair value FREREATEAR
through profit or loss LEREE - - 232,629 - 232,629
Accounts receivable e R 3 - - - 333,859 333,859
Amount due from an associate  JE U — i % A A&
o5 - - - 964 964
Financial assets included in TATERT S BR
“deposits paid, prepayments TB R E A fE W B
and other receivables” LEBEE - - - 97,138 97,138
Loans receivable ERER - - - 75,900 75,900
Loan to an associate BET-MBEEAF2
B - - - 7,940 7,940
Loan receivable from a joint Elh—HAERRER
venture - - - 8,595 8,595
Contingent consideration Bl AKE
receivable - 15,737 - - 15,737
Bank balances and cash ROEBERSE
- trust account -=FKP - - - 93,014 93,014
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBE5EY - - - 228,222 228,222
155,693 15,737 232,629 845,632 1,249,691
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e R R M

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 17 ¥R E o2 ®m I A

(Continued) (#)
As at 30th June 2017 (Continued) R—_E—ttF~A=FH
(&)
Financial Liabilities EMER
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
BBBEER
2FEAR
HNeraE
Financial
liabilities
Contingent  at amortised
consideration cost Total
JA 2 85 AR
S8R 2
FARE *RAE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FTHEL TEL
Accounts payable JE BR X - 92,447 92,447
Financial liabilities included in SPATH M ER KB
“other payables and accrued charges” MR it
and “deposits received” RIEWET 2]
ZERMBE - 124,593 124,593
Borrowings R - 53,063 53,063
Obligations under finance lease BERE&KE - 63 63
Contingent consideration payable A RANRE 19,568 - 19,568
19,568 270,166 289,734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute four television
series (2017: four) and thirteen films (2017: sixteen)
respectively. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2017: from 5% to 90%)
in these joint operations. As at 30th June 2018, the
aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements relating to the
Group's interests in these joint operation arrangements

18 EEEKER

AEBBTUBTALEB B
LA 5> Bl B4 1E K B 17 0O 3F E 1R E E B
(Z2E—+tF WK+ =ZPEF
(ZE—+F: + 18  KREBRZ
EEEEBTHEANTE5%Z0% (=
T+ F 5%FE0%) )22 EREHE -
RZZE—NFRNA=Z+H BBEAXK
EERABEAEEBLTEZERZ R
ERBREVEBRETERZEERK

are as follows:

BEAEBET:

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Assets BE
Film rights and films in progress EYMERBEEFZ
87 80,182 26,094
Film related deposits BB - 10,012
Accounts receivable and other JE U BR B K E Ath fE UL
receivables E Q| 34,519 70,181
114,701 106,287
Liabilities =R
Accounts payable and other JE B8R 3R K B b fE
payables IE 450 566
Deposits received BUWE] & 1,581 4,486
2,031 5,052
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHE T
Revenue Wz 34,012 116,418
Expenses = (19,667) (60,364)
Profit after income tax I T 15 B 18 % 7 14,345 56,054
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e R R M

Fi—
19 INVENTORIES 19 78
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Raw materials & 222 202
Finished goods RUBK 7,806 9,864
8,028 10,066
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAEAIRTAGAEZANER
an expense and included in consolidated statement of AZBEERBZTHT :
comprehensive income is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA T
Carrying amount of inventories sold B &7F & 7 E&EME 20,358 31,507
Write down of inventories 7 & MR 2,407 1,501
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & #f J& # & (M 3% 1)
(Note i) (1,062) (508)
21,703 32,500
Note i: The amount resulted from the utilisation of obsolete Mexi: BB REBBRAERBAESF
inventories that were written down in prior years. EMRHORETE-

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @



20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

20 FE U BR X

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Accounts receivable arising from HEHELELRFTFERE
securities brokerage and margin EBRELECEWRERIR:
financing business:
— Clearing house, brokers and -HER KR
cash clients WeERP 160 69,560
Less: Impairment loss (Note c) B Rk B & 18 (MY FEc) - (827)
Net (Note a) F R (M 7Fa) 160 68,733
— Margin clients = 18,000 197,284
Less: Impairment loss (Note ¢) B OB EE B (B FEe) (18,000) (8,133)
Net (Note b) F 78 (Pt 7Eb) - 189,151
160 257,884
Accounts receivable arising from HttEBEL >
other businesses: FE UK BR X
Accounts receivable — others FEUBR I — H Aty 36,290 77,627
Less: Impairment loss (Note ¢) B EE 18 (MY sEe) (5,515) (1,652)
Net (Note d) % 28 (P 52 d) 30,775 75,975
Accounts receivable - net EWERR - F58E 30,935 333,859

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate
their fair values.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and
accounts payable when the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the balances and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the balances
simultaneously. Details are set out in Note 3.4.
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e R R M

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20 FE UK BR FX @)

Notes: M 5
(a)  Accounts receivable arising from clearing house, brokers (a) #HEM KERBESEFPEAZE
and cash clients e BR 3K

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from

ﬁ:’éi&iﬁﬂﬂi CEEHERREZ

clearing house, brokers and cash clients which are past EWEER BERBREEPER
due but not impaired as of the end of the reporting period Z R *ﬁ m
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Neither past due nor impaired \F ok 80 B OR R R B 147 59,500
Less than 1 month past due a HY > 51 E A 1 411
More than 1 month past due o H fE i 1 E A 12 8,822
160 68,733

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
clearing house, brokers and cash clients, which arise from
the securities brokerage and margin financing business,
are within two days after trade date. Accounts receivable
from cash clients are repayable on demand subsequent
to the settlement date.

BEREMAEREEBELE
EWEER SERBESEPER
THEEEHAERSBEMK - EIW
BeBRFEAERLEEBREKEE
KEE-

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide FEURESETFEREZ R AHL
range of customers for whom there was no recent history BENLBEZEFRFA Eg ZERE K

of default. These receivables are secured by their portfolio
of securities. As at 30th June 2018, the total market
value of their portfolios of securities was HK$808,000
(2017: HK$22,036,000). Included in the Group's accounts
receivable are cash clients with a total carrying amount of
HK$13,000 (2017: HK$9,233,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period but for which the Group
has not provided for impairment as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality. The Group believes
that the amounts are still considered recoverable given

ERUREELFHEHA R - R _Z
—/\ix\ﬂf-i-ﬁ*?&%%%%ﬁ
& #7H {E A808,0008 L (=T —+
122,036,000/ 0) - HE& B P&

AXREERBKER  EEEREAS
13,000/ (==& —+£ 4 : 9,233,000
Bm) RBEEKRE @ B R
ASEBETEELRERE RA
ABEEEEZETEHBEERES - M
REZELEHBREEFLTES

the amount is fully secured by the listed securities of the PHEERIATNESERNREH
cash clients or the substantial settlement after the end REER AEEBEGEZE2EMDN
of the reporting period. No accounts receivable due from AR AR E o 4 FE UK B B R
past due cash clients (2017: HK$827,000) which are not EPEMR(ZZT — 4 :827,000
fully secured by the listed securities of the respective BIL)MI KRB B E iﬁ eExP L™
cash clients, are considered impaired as at 30th June BEEBERA-ZE—NFERA

2018. Accounts receivable due from cash clients bear
interest at commercial rates when they become past due.

= +tR®RRBMME- EH&ZL%&%)E'
RRR R REEMNET S -

—N\FFEH EFERESRZERERDF @
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by S B S

20 FE U BR FX (@)
5% ()

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Accounts receivable arising from margin clients

Accounts receivable from margin clients, which arise from
the securities brokerage and margin financing business,
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement
date.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities as
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit facilities
for securities trading. The amount of credit facilities
granted to them is determined by the discounted value
of securities accepted by the Group. Additional funds or
collaterals are required if the outstanding amount exceeds
the discounted value of securities deposited. The listed
securities of the margin clients can be sold at the Group's
discretion to settle any margin call requirements imposed
by their respective securities transactions. The pledged
securities are substantially listed securities in Hong
Kong as at 30th June 2018 and 2017. At 30th June 2018
and 2017, margin loans were current and repayable on
demand. As at 30th June 2018, the total market value
of their portfolios of securities was HK$56,000 (2017:
HK$456,052,000). Accounts receivable from margin
clients bear interest at commercial rates.

As at 30June 2017, included in the Group’s accounts
receivable are balances due from margin clients, with
a total carrying amount of HK$189,151,000 (2018: Nil)
for which the Group has not provided for impairment as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality.
The Group believes that the amounts are still considered
recoverable given the amounts are fully secured by the
listed securities of the margin clients or the substantial
settlement after the end of the reporting period.

Accounts receivable due from margin clients of
approximately HK$18,000,000 (2017: HK$8,133,000)
which are not fully secured by the listed securities of
the respective margin clients are considered impaired
as at 30th June 2018.

No ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from margin
clients is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of the business in margin
financing.
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(b)

FREFPELX ZEWRER

KEBFRBRERARBEEBH
BRAREFEZANEEARR

ot
EkEE-

FREFARNAESEEREZHIK
HR FOESEARGZEER
B RERER2EFERERE NI
AEBMESZZHESFUBREEETE -
MEMAEELEBATRZES
ZEHBEE AFERINES R
HR- FEEFPHNLELMEFSRA B
AEBBRBELHE UBERESR
BE 5 RSN EMAEB IR E
EER RZBE—NER_FT—+
FRNAZ=Z+TH BEBAEHFERNIED
BEBLTHEEF - R_Z—N\FK
—Z—+tERNAZTH FREXR
AROREEREE- RN
FRAA=TH FEFHEENE
™m1E A56,0008 t(= % — £ F:
456,052,000 L) c EW TR B P
ERIEEMELGTE -

R-_TE—+tFXA=+H Bl
REFHEBTARNEEEKRER
HERm 4 1E A189,151,000/8 jt( =
T-N\F 8) FUEAEBE LT E
EHRERE RRAEFEEZ XL
EHEEREH R ZELEA
FREFLIMEHF2BEERAK
HheBERBRERREERE &
BREZEENER A IKE -

fE W FF B = P AR 50 4718,000,000%8
7T(=Z — 4 :8,133,000/8 7T) I
AEHEBMAEREFRPLTES52E
BER R-_ZTE—NEXA=+8BH
B ERE -

HRARAEERR ERFER
BZERBGMHE KREIDMALESK
HIMEE BMIETERERATREPRP
RN BEEMRE DN -



20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of accounts receivable arising from securities

e R R M

20 FE U BR FX (@)

Bt - (&

) FHERBELARBERXRBELEZ

brokerage and margin financing business i M P SR 1B
Movements in the allowance for impairment are as MEEFEZBHMT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
At the beginning of the year k! 8,960 -
Provision of impairment of accounts & U B8R 5% )l 1& 2 &
receivable
- Clearing house, brokers and cash - % &/ KE RBESEP
clients - 827
- Margin clients -HFRREFP 9,867 8,133
Reversal of impairment of accounts & U BE 2k i3 & & B
receivable -HEEF BERBEEPR
— Clearing house, brokers and cash
clients (827) -
At the end of the year RF R 18,000 8,960

The Group has a policy for determining the allowance
for impairment based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts receivable if applicable
and on management’'s judgement on the current
creditworthiness, collateral and the past collection history
of each client.

AEERITETRERBHORSE
VA & W2 BR SRR T 3 UM K BR Bk )
rABmEERREEEAEAER
F 2z BAEE KM kBTN
B S e ) B A A HE -
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by S B S

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

20 FE U BR FX (@)

(d)  Accounts receivable arising from other businesses

The following is an ageing analysis of accou
arising from other businesses, presented
invoice dates:

nts receivable
based on the

Bt - (%

d HOEXBHELZERER

NTRZEEAH2NZ H
BEL ZERWRRZRE DT

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHE T

1 to 90 days 1E290H 3,331 65,682
91 days to 180 days 91H & 180H 4,372 1,926
Over 180 days 180 A LA == 23,072 8,367
30,775 75,975

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from other

businesses, which are past due but not im

paired, are as

ERHERREZEMERES
ZRRERZEREINOT

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHEx FE T
Neither past due nor impaired I oK &8 B 78 RO (B 2,551 57,541

Past due but not impaired SRR RE R
Less than 1 month past due BE D W1EA 575 7,073
1 to 3 months past due mHE1 =318 A 281 419
3 months to 1 year past due BHEI3E A E1EF 26,832 9,637
Over 1 year past due BB F 536 1,305
28,224 18,434
30,775 75,975

In respect of accounts receivable from other businesses,
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate

to a wide range of customers for whom

there was no

recent history of default. Receivables that were past
due but not impaired relate to a number of independent

customers that have a good track record w

ith the Group.

Based on past experience, management believes that no

impairment allowance is necessary in res

pect of these

balances as there has not been a significant change in

credit quality and the balances are still co
recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Accounts receivable arising from other businesses
(Continued)

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7
days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and
sub- licensing of film rights are on open account terms.
Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via major
credit cards. The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out
in Note 3.1(b).

Impairment of accounts receivable arising from other
businesses

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable
arising from other businesses are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable
directly (see Note 2.12).

e R R M

20 FE U BR FX (@)
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HEBRBERZEEHNRTIBE60
AAE BB BHERERE
FMEZHEG ALK A ET -
MEEEFEEOARNBA S AKX
BRTIZERRET AEEEH
THRRBEREREENZERIH
ENDMAERIFERRENER
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15 8 M EE3.1(b) -

HtEBESE 2 BERRZRE

EHEMEXNELAZRRERZ
MEEE T B EERLDE  BIE
RNEBBEUKE ZRENT LM
BIE - RZBAT E@EREERE
5 B R PR UCBR R R B (R M R
2.12)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RERBEZIED
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At the beginning of the year R E 1,652 142
Impairment of accounts receivable FE U BR FOR(E 4,098 1,510
Reversal of impairment B, (B # [0 (235) -
At the end of the year NE X 5,515 1,652

Impairment of accounts receivable arising from other
businesses of approximately HK$4,098,000 (2017:
HK$1,510,000) was recognised by the Group due to long
outstanding receivable from debtors, and no impairment
(2017: Nil) was written off from the allowance account
during the year ended 30th June 2018.

HE-_ZTZ-NFAA=ZTHLEF
R A o T GRAE 7 A BOR B B
AEEMEREBERELLE
it B 2 5L AL 4,098,000 7£.( =
T — £ F:1,510,000% 7T) - i
WE(CT—£F m)REEER
84 -
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by S B S

145 £H
21 LOANS RECEIVABLE 21 ERER
. . . A — o S 1
(a) Loans receivable from third parties (a) BIRE=ZTER
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Loans to third parties BRY¥YE=AZER 58,045 75,900
As at 30th June 2018 and 2017, RZZE-NER
the maturity profile of the loans “E—+tFRA=+H"
receivable, based on the maturity BIEINHE 25 2 EK
date is as follows: EREFEBBLIOT
- Non-current - JEBN AR 1,447 45,500
- Current - BN ER 56,598 30,400
58,045 75,900
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable BWEFNEEEZITOT
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T T T
Neither past due nor impaired I 7K #61 B =XO0R (B
- Unsecured loans -EERAER 40,145 59,400
- Secured loans -EEEER 17,900 16,500
58,045 75,900
Except for unsecured loans receivable of B FE i A 4 3 B 30946,640%8 T
HK$946,640 which are denominated in Renminbi, KMARBHE 2ERIKRESE
interest-free and repayable with fixed terms agreed —HFHBEMEEFHMEEREIN
with a third party, all remaining loans receivable FTESRTZERE=ZFAEPFPE
are due from third party customers, which arose F(BEENBNEEBEE)D
from the money lending business in Hong Kong, B TTHE FFREREHRP
and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, interest WERETEFHERE-
bearing and repayable with fixed terms agreed with
the customers.
The secured loans receivable of HK$16,500,000 FE U A K # 5 $016,500,000%8
(2017: HK$16,500,000) and HK$1,400,000 L (ZZ — + F : 16,500,000 5
(2017: Nil) are secured by unconditional personal 7t) }% 1,400,000/ T (= & — +
guarantees and a share mortgage respectively FE\) DR BAEGEEEAER

KB AN 1RABE 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b)

Loans to an associate

As at 30th June 2018, the loan to an associate,
HK Optical, in the amount of HK$2,500,000 is
unsecured, bearing interest at 7% per annum
and repayable on 24th September 2018. The loan
was granted to the associate through its normal
money lending business of the Group during the
year ended 30th June 2018.

As at 30th June 2017, the loan to an associate in
the amount of HK$5,000,000 is unsecured, bearing
interest at 7% per annum and repayable on 23rd
March 2017. The loan was granted to the associate
through its normal money lending business of the
Group during the year ended 30th June 2016. On
13th March 2017, the Group signed a supplemental
loan agreement with HK Optical to extend the
repayment date of the loan to 23rd March 2018.

Another loan to an associate, HK Optical, in the
amount of HK$4,340,000 (2017: HK$2,940,000) is
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term
of repayment.

The loans receivable are neither impaired nor
overdue as at 30th June 2018 (2017: same).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each balance
sheet date is the carrying amount of the loans receivable.

All the loans receivable are entered with contractual
maturity within 1 to 2 years. The Group seeks to maintain
tight control over its loans receivable in order to minimise
credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’
financial positions.

Loans receivable are bearing interest at rates ranging
from 3% to 20% per annum (2017: 7% to 20% per
annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$7,264,000 (2017:
HK$5,859,000) has been recognised in ‘revenue’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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FE R E K@)
m)§$—%ﬁMQEZ
féf /T)\

RZE-—NFXA=+H &
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X A 202,500,000 T A £ K
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E-NFLAZTHBAEREZ-
ZEERDIREBE_ZE—NF
NAZTHIEFESBAASEE
MEEXEBHNRTFTZBE QR -
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R-ZE—-—+FA=Z+H
B ¥ — B %QEZEfx
5,000,000 T & EEH - L F
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KEBHE-_ZT—XNFANA=
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FHBEE NG - R T —+F
—AT=ZH AEEHKER
BRIV A ER G BEX
BREAMBE_ET—-—NEFE=A
—+t=R-

mM—HBEERAAIXERERT
23— F B R A #4,340,000%
(= T — + 4 : 2,940,000
T)EEER T ERERET
B

RZE—NFNA=Z+H E
WERTRBESBH(ZF
—tF:HRA)-

REBEEABRAMKRANEER
BRRERERZE@EE-

FTERKERMITAENIHBN T
1Z2FRN -AEEB N EBERG
RAKERAG BN & 7FYH
ERERBEERZES  BREEE
EWM/W:I:E’{E_&"

JEUWE FIZN F3%ZE20% 2 F A &
FE(CZE—+F BFEI%E20%) °

A B U A 47,264,000 T ( —Z T —
+ 4 5,859,000 L) E N EETE
WmERzWzm| AFER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

22 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the acquisition
of AP Group during the year ended 30th June 2016 as
detailed in Note (i) below. Contingent consideration
receivable is measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The movement of the fair value of
contingent consideration receivable is as follows:

22 B RRKE

EWIAREBZRAFEEERES

- =

=

—RNFANA=1TRHLEFEKE

EREECREZAERER 204G A
EREFENTXHMED) - Bl A

RE

RBEPREAFEFE-E

WHARBRAFEZEZHUOT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
At fair value: BAFETE:
At beginning of the year »F ¥ 15,737 10,930
Fair value change NFEEE (11,941) 4,807
At end of the year RF R 3,796 15,737
Note: B 5
() Adjustment to the consideration i REzZHAE

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered in
relation to the acquisition of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, the vendors shall, and the
guarantors shall procure the vendors to, pay to the Group
the adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in
accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS;
and

“NP" means the net profit for the period from 1st January

2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

BERTKBEEHEETLZES
HEMEHERA T —RNF—
A—HRzZ2z-_Z—+tF+=-A=
+—BILHEZEERGRABRI
% i #) 4 # 16,000,000 T B &
FERERAEBERESES FRET
MARAAEESTFAESBE(H

=t DI
A '=20,400,0007% 7T ~ (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
B

[AlEBABTHEZRAESBE LR
B: R

NPl E—F—AE—A—A &
E-T-—t&T-A=+-AL
BRI 2 FOFE - MAFIFEAR
{8+ U2 IR 5 R AR T ¢



22

23

24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE (continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
as at 30th June 2018 are based on the valuation
performed by the director of the Company (2017: Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent professional
valuer not connected with the Group). Details of fair
value measurement are set out in Note 3.3.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH -
TRUST ACCOUNTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its
normal course of business. These clients’ monies are
maintained in one or more trust accounts. The Group has
recognised the corresponding amount in accounts payable
to the respective customers in current liabilities section
as the Group is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed to use the
clients’ monies to settle its own obligations. The trust
accounts bank balances are restricted and governed by
the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22

23

e R R M

FE U =R R KB )

ERFIARBER-_ZT—-NFRA=
TEHZAFEREARRER(ZFT—
tF BAKEVYEREZBILE
XAEMERFEZANERAFE
THEERE - RFEAEFEH
KK EE3.3°

RITERRRE -
kP

AEERFRBITHARBILELER
F-UFEREBEXHBRTELE
MEPRE - ZEEPHRERFN
Rl N EEERP BARAE
BEHEPRBAEXBRINEIRA
MAREET RERZEEEPE
REENENER - AKETEE
BEFPREABEEAFER F5
RPHRTESBRIXBEESNRE
GOETEZRME(EPRE)R
AR R ZHERE -

2 REekRBAEEY

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FA T

Cash at bank R 1T 17 K 522,157 227,536

Cash held with custodians AEARERS - 435

Cash in hand FEEAS 128 251
Cash and cash equivalents and HeReRERZEAS

consolidated statement of LIRS EEY
cash flows 522,285 228,222

Included in the cash and bank balances at 30th June 2018
was a total sum being the equivalent of HK$86,089,000
(2017: HK$29,315,000 ) which was maintained in
mainland China and is subject to foreign exchange
control regulations.

—E-NFRNA=ZTHZEE KR
17 4 88 15 42 %8 M2 E 7286,089,000/%
(= Z —+ 4 : 29,315,000 7T)
REBE FERPBEKRE ZINEE
il 5 51 BT BR o
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by S B S

L
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 KRR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E -+t F
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
& B HE ®BHEE [ERE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR TAER F i FHEL
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of FR00TBTZ
HK$0.01 each R 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR:
Ordinary shares of FR001TETLZ
HK$0.01 each TR 906,632 9,066 853,302 8,533
Movements in the issued share capital of the Company KRARREBE_ZT—-—N\FEk=
during the years ended 30th June 2018 and 2017 are tHFSA="1H Jti& o) ?’éﬁ [
as follows: ZEMT
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
LZEREE AfE
Note HK$'000
(k53 TEL
At 1st July 2016 RZZE-—R"FLA-H 177,774,092 1,778
Issue of new shares in October 2016 RZE—RNFE+RBETHRNM (a) 355,548,184 3,655
Issue of new shares in February 2017 RZBE—+F_RETHBRR (b) 106,660,000 1,067
Issue of new shares in March 2017 RZE—+tF=FETHERN (c) 213,320,000 2,133
At 30th June 2017 and 1st July 2017 RZE—+ERA=Z+HR
“ET—+F#+A—H 853,302,276 8,633
Issue of new shares upon exercise of RIOTBPEREBRTHRM
share options (d) 53,330,000 533
At 30th June 2018 RZE-NERA=1H 906,632,276 9,066
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 12th
July 2016, the circular of the Company dated 12th August
2016 and the prospectus of the Company dated 9th
September 2016, the Company proposed a rights issue
on the basis of two rights shares for every one existing
share at HK$0.60 per rights share (the “2016 Rights
Issue”). A total of 355,548,184 shares were issued under
the 2016 Rights Issue on 5th October 2016. The gross
proceeds from the 2016 Rights Issue were approximately
HK$213,329,000. The net proceeds after deducting the
underwriting commission and other related expenses
of approximately HK$6,400,000 were approximately
HK$206,929,000.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Gransing Securities Co., Limited, an
independent third party, on 18th January 2017, the
Company issued, on 7th February 2017, an aggregate
of 106,660,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.519 per
placing share to not less than six placees who were
independent of, and not connected to the Group. The
gross proceeds from the said placement amounted to
approximately HK$55,356,000 and the related issue
expense was approximately HK$1,933,000.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Gransing Securities Co., Limited, an
independent third party, on 18th January 2017, the
Company issued, on 29th March 2017, an aggregate
of 213,320,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.519 per
placing share to not less than six placees who were
independent of, and not connected to the Group. The
gross proceeds from the said placement amounted to
approximately HK$110,713,000 and the related issue
expense was approximately HK$3,875,000.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Company
issued 53,330,000 shares of the Company for proceeds of
HK$25,065,000 as a result of the exercise of share options
by grantees. The weighted average exercise price was
approximately HK$0.47 per share. Amongst the proceeds
of HK$25,065,000, HK$533,000 was credited to the share
capital account and the balance of HK$ 24,532,000 was
credited to the share premium account.
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(a)
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A+t-_BHAE ARQABHA-
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HE-_T—-—N\GF~A=1+HLHF
B ARRQAREARAITEBKE
im 2 7753,330,000 f% & 2~ & i 17 -
Ffr 18 3% T8 /25,065,000 7T ° 0 #E
FTHITEEL AT RLTE Lo
R B 15 378 25,065,000 78 7T & F
533,000 JT 5F A B AN BR - i 4 &4
24,532,000 L5t AB& 0 & B AR ©

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

26

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted
on 2nd December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
share option schemes include the Company’s directors,
including non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group or any invested entity, customers
of the Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the
Group or any invested entity, holders of securities of
the Group or any invested entity and persons or entities
providing research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any invested entity. According to
the provision of the Share Option Scheme, share options
granted during the term of the Share Option Scheme
and remaining unexercised immediately prior to the end
thereof shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry of
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and
is settled in gross shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, a share option granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 is subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the directors,
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years
from the dates of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined
by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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by S B S

26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their weighted average exercise prices for the years A
ended 30th June 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

26 BE A% )

RBE-_ZT—NER-_ZT—
S+ BIEFEE MRS RE
B REMEFETEEGZ SN

Tt E R

T
No. of shares
Weighted issuable
average under options
exercise price granted
REE®EH
METY BRETRT
TEE gl 4=
HK$
BT
At 30th June 2016 and R-ZZE—XR"FEXA=1+H
1st July 2016 E=ZZE—-XftH—H 2.518 13,951,899
Lapsed during the year REARNKXK 10.773 (2,100,511)
Adjustment arising from: BLIATEL T
- 2076 Rights Issue - T -RFHK 1,694,068
Outstanding and exercisable R-B—ttHEXA=+H
at 30th June 2017 EZZE—-—t&tH—H
and 1st July 2017 MARTERT FTE 0.930 13,445,456
Granted during the year (Note 1) REAREBEL I 0.470 53,330,000
Lapsed during the year RERKMK 0.930 (13,445,456)
Exercised during the year (Note 2) REFE R TT B F2) 0.470 (53,330,000)
Outstanding and exercisable R-ZE-NEAXAB=T+H
at 30th June 2018 MARITERET FITHE - -
Notes: B 5
1. The share options are exercisable at any time during the 1.

period from 9th October 2017 until 8th October 2020 (both
days inclusive). The exercise price of the share option is
HK$0.47. The closing price of shares immediately before
the date on which the share options were granted was

HK$0.47.

2. The weighted average closing price of the shares 2.
immediate before the date of exercise are HK$0.81,
HK$0.82, HK$0.80 and HK$0.82 respectively regarding
the options exercised by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr.
Lam Kit Sun, other employees and a business partner.

3. As at 30th June 2017, the weighted average remaining 3.
contractual life of the outstanding share options is 0.6
years.

4. All share options are immediately vested from the date 4.
of grant.
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26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 26 BE PR )
Share options outstanding as at 30th June 2017 have the RZE—+tFRNA=ZTHHRITRE
following expiry dates and exercise prices: BhEnEmB B RITEENT
As at 30th June 2017 RZZE—tFRA=TH

Outstanding
Adjusted options as at

exercise price 30th June
per share 2017
R=-B—-—+t#HF
~NA=1+H
KB B i R AT E
BRITEE - 4%
HK$
T
Exercisable period TERR
30th September 2015 to 29th ZE-—ARAFNA=+H
September 2017 (Note i) E_T—-—LtFNA
—+ A B HEED 1.489 2,351,799
4th March 2016 to 3rd March —TE-R"FE=ZAWAEZE
2018 (Note i) —E-NF=H=H
(M 5% 1) 0.811 11,093,657
13,445,456
Notes: B 5
(i) The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2017 has ) RZE—+tFESNA=+HBE&K
been adjusted taking into effect the 2016 Rights Issue FEEXER-_Z—X"F+ARHB
on 5th October 2016 and 2016 Share Consolidation on ETZZZE—RFHEBRERZZZ
18th March 2016. Further details are set out in Note 25 —~"F=ZATNBETZ=F—
to the consolidated financial statements. NEBRMDEFHZEETHAE - #
— S HBHNEGEE VB WKW
25 e
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26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

(i)

Share options granted on 30th September 2015

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme granted
on 30th September 2015 were estimated by
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers, using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The fair value of the equity-settled
share options granted on 30th September 2015 in
the amount of HK$1,327,000 was recognised as
share option expense during the year ended 30th
June 2016. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Share price on the date of grant* HK$0.1610
Exercise price* HK$0.1690
Risk-free interest rate 0.953%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 78.99%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

— granted to employees HK$0.0640
* Before adjustment of 2016 Share Consolidation and

2016 Rights Issue

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii)

Share options granted on 4th March 2016

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme granted
on 4th March 2016 were estimated by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers, using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The fair value of the equity-settled
share options granted on 4th March 2016 in the
amount of HK$2,249,000 was recognised as share
option expense during the year ended 30th June
2016. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Share price on the date of grant* HK$0.0770
Exercise price* HK$0.0920
Risk-free interest rate 1.104%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 68.07%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to directors HK$0.0230

— granted to employees HK$0.0230
* Before adjustment of 2016 Share Consolidation and

2016 Rights Issue

Expected volatility was determined by using the
annualised standard deviation of historical share
price daily movements of selected comparable
companies in same industry. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

e R R M

26 BE A% )
BRREZ A AFBEUEBR

(%)

(ii)

RZE-RNFE=ZANBE
2 B8R R
R-_ZE-—RNE=ZFNBARERE
fREFE RN 2 RAEE B
B2 AFEDBHBIEEXEGE
BEEMITPETHER A A
KEERDEBERE BRREE
HE - FR_BEABETCER
AETHFTF R T —NF=
ANB®REZERALEEERE
2 A F1{E2,249,0005% ;T & R &
E_ZE—RFERNAZ1+BHLHF
EmRABEBREMZ - TR
TEMNGER 2 EAE:

AEHBHZBRE* 007708 T
TERE® 0.09207% 7T
2 BB R & 1.104%
TEHREREBR 24
78 B 1R 68.07%
B B & TiE
EnERELATE

-BEY¥E=® 0.023078 7T
-ETEE 0.02307 7T

* ARZZE-RERDAHE
—E-RNEHBELRAE

T8 HR R O Y 8 PR A BR AR
ALBARNBEREREH
MELEEEET - EBUE
BRZEONEZYEATE
CER
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26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

Share options granted on 3rd October 2017

The fair value of the equity-settled share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme granted
on 3rd October 2017 were estimated by Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers, using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The fair value of the equity-settled
share options granted on 3rd October 2017 in the
amount of HK$10,481,000 was recognised as share
option expense during the year ended 30th June
2018. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Share price on the date of grant HK$0.470
Exercise price HK$0.470
Risk-free interest rate 1.60%
Expected life of the share options 3 years
Expected volatility 101.10%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to directors HK$0.1965

— granted to employees HK$0.1965

— granted to a business partner HK$0.1965

Expected volatility was determined by using
annualized standard deviation of historical share
price daily movements of selected comparable
companies in same industry. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

RETAINED EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES)

(a)

Group

21 B 1=

(a)

Other reserves

ZN

v
S

S

5 HitEm kR
%E%U/(%Eﬂﬁﬂé)

HEE
Retained
Available- earnings/
Reserves for-sale Share-based (accumulated
Share arising on Translati p i losses)
Premium  consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve  Sub-total Total
GREA THEE B# RERA/
RHER FERE EARE RERE ENGER BHER Mt (RETEE) EE]
(Note i) (Note ii) (Notevi)  (Note iii) (Note iv)
(Wi (W i) (Wavi)  (Wiii) (Wiv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
i THEL TEx TER ThEL i ThEL TEr  FiEx
At 1st July 2016 RZF-75¥tA-H 532,910 821 60,577 (4,028) (740) 10,671 67,301 161,162 751,373
Issue of new ordinary shares from REERTHERR
placing 162,870 - - - - - - - 162,870
Transaction costs attributable to issue R EXTH L BRELL
of new ordinary shares from placing 2 % 5 % & 5,808) - - - - - - - (6:808)
Rights issue of shares HRETRR 209,773 - - - - - - - 209773
Transaction costs attributable to issue Lﬁ Hﬁ?’x‘ﬂ BRERS
of ordinary shares from rights issue LHHA (6,400) - - - - - - - (6,400
Lapse of share options % BEM - - - - - (7,095) (7,095) 7,095 -
Net changes in fair value of available- 7t} £ 4 &
for-sale financial assets (Note 16) ZATEEDF
Jﬁ}ﬂi‘ - - - (88,565) - - (88,565) - (88,565
Reclassification adjustments for fi
amounts transferred to profit or loss:
- Impairment loss - - - 89,643 - - 89,643 - 89,643
- Realised loss upon redemption of ~ -BEARHELBEE
available- for-sale financial assets BENCEBER - - - 6,571 - - 6,571 - 6,571
Currency translation differences EMhEESE - - - - y - M - 0
Acquisition of additional interest in W -k B AR NEN
a subsidiary 13 - - - - - - - (315) (315)
Release of translation reserve upon R ENBAAHRE
disposal of subsidiary BEGR - - - - (29) - (29) - (29)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (114,328)  (114,328)
At 30th June 2017 and 1st July 2017 -t ERAZRR
“T-t5tf-H 893,345 821 60,577 3,621 (728) 3,576 67,867 43,614 1,004,826
Net change in fair value of available-for- & Lﬁ YESBEAEYATHE
sale financial assets (Note 16) B - - - 39,827) - - [39,827) - (39827)
Reclassification adjustments for EFNEAR i%?%ﬁh/
amounts transferred to profit or loss:
- Impairment loss - - - 23,849 - - 23,849 - 23,849
- Realised loss upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets - - - 18,986 - - 18,986 - 18986
Shares issued under share option
scheme 35,013 - - - - (10,481) (10,481) - 24532
Share option scheme DS HE
- Grant of share options -REBRE - - - - - 10,481 10481 - 10481
- Lapse of share options -BRERT - - - - - (3,576) (3,676 3576 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HKHBAF - 50 - - - - 50 - 50
Release of translation reserve upon HEL AR EE
deregistration of a subsidiary hEHEE - - - - 34 - 34 - 34
Currency translation difference EXBEEE - - - - 182 - 182 - 182
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (135,284)  (135,284)
At 30th June 2018 RZZ-N§~A=+A 928,358 871 60,577 6,629 (512) - 67,565 (88,094) 907,829

—N\FFEH EFARSEZERERDF @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVESAND 27 B =B  HMRBFHE KRR

RETAINED EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED BEAMARFABEE @
LOSSES) (Continued)
(b) Company (b) N2 7]
Other reserves
Atbf%
Share-based
Share  Contributed Reorganisation compensation Accumulated
Premium Surplus reserve reserve Sub-total losses Total
B &
REEE EfEY EffG MGG Mt 2HER agE
(Note i) (Note v) (Note ii) (Note iv)

(HH3i) (Hritv) (B i) (K &iv)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TEL TAL TETL TERL TAL TETL

At Tt July 2016 RZIF-R%
tA-H 532,910 51,852 60,577 10,671 123,100 (27,608 628,402

Issue of new ordinary shares RERT

from placing MEBR 162,870 - - - - - 162,870
Transaction costs attributable RERT

to issue of new ordinary HERERER

shares from placing LRHBK (5,808 - - - - - (5,808)
Rights issue of shares #RETRR 209,773 - - - - - 209,773

Transaction costs attributable HRETEER
to issue of ordinary shares BlEZXBHA

from rights issue (6,400) - - - - - 6,400)
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - (7,095 (7,095) 7,095 -
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - (16,127) (16,127)
At 30th June 2017 and RZIZ-+%

Tt July 2017 ~AR=THER

ZE-+E
tA-H 893,345 51,852 60,577 3,676 116,005 (36,640 972,710
Shares issued under share BEERETE

option scheme BRH 35,013 - - (10,481) (10,481) - 24,532
Share option scheme BRETS

- Grant of share options -REERE - - - 10,481 10,481 - 10,481
Lapse of share options BREXM - - - (3,576) (3,576) 3576 -
Loss for the year ERER - - . - - (231,390) (231,390}
At 30th June 2018 RZE-N\&

~NRZTH 928,358 51,862 60,577 - 112,429 (264,454) 776,333
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVESAND 27 B =B  HMREHE R KR

RETAINED EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to
the owners of the Company in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the reduction in share capital
of the Company pursuant to 2015
Capital Reorganisation and 2016 Capital
Reorganisation.

BERN(BFEE) @

(c) FHEZMEE MR

(i)

(ii)

g g =]

B aEBR2ERDZA
RE-—NN—FRAESR
AORFIME - AR A Z K
g BRAIABRAKR
NIERNFARBEE A

ERRRE

rEBZERFEBERE
“E-hERABEENC
T — N F BN E M H R AR
DB ZRRA o

(iii) Translation reserve (i) [E 5 % &
The translation reserve comprises all foreign EHREERIEMBRES
exchange differences arising from the INEBBMEREAEEZE

(iv)

translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2.7.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to directors of the Company,
employees of the Group and all other eligible
participants recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments set out in Note
2.25(ii).

(iv)

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @

HEE - ZHHEBEKZ
27FTE SRR -

IR 10 ¥R BN 1

B 40 3R B 1k 4 4R IR AR Y AE
2.25(ii) 73 7 DA A #E 45 IR
MAERZINKAEAZ
SR BRRERZETAR
RAES - AKEEB LM
BEMAEEBALZRT
R EERXMEHE
ZRFE-
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
RETAINED EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves
(Continued)

(v)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company's shares issued
in exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
on 28th June 1999. Under the Companies
Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributed
to the shareholders if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

()  the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company's
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

BERN(BFEE) @

(c) FHEZMEE MR

(v)

~ (#8)

Al A& # HlUniverse Films
(Holdings) Limited 2 B %
TR MBEITERRARS
ZHEEBSER—LLILER
BZ+ N NBRKEHEBK
BRARIZCEEFEZE
Ho-REBEBRE—NLNA—
FREEEEBRE) BE
E6EEHAMEEEHEET
ER AIEHABTE
DR TR

() AnwERKRIKMY
rENEBEINH A
(RN

(i) ARBzEEREZH
BESRIEMEREA
BEREBHETEREAR
s BRA&E-

accounts.
At Group level, the contributed surplus is RASEmME  EHE&
reclassified into its components of reserves EMIABBEHBLRARZ
of the underlying subsidiaries. RiEHD -
(vi) Available-for-sale investment reserve (vii IHEHERER B

The available-for-sale investment reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets held
at the end of the reporting period.
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I+ A-
28 BORROWINGS 28 5 &
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other borrowings: HiEFh:
Coupon notes, unsecured (Note a) FEEREEIEB(NE) - 25,900
Other borrowing, secured (Note b) Hifgsx AEF(HED) - 12,000
Margin loan payable, secured ENHFRER BHER
(Note c) (Pt 5Ec) - 15,163
- 53,063
The bank borrowings and other borrowings are repayable HITBEREMERBEZEOTKHE
as follows: &
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other borrowings: H &
Within 1 year or on demand —FRREER = 43,063
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREAMFEA - 10,000
- 53,063
- 53,063
Less: Amounts shown under current W:RBBEBETATR
liabilities - = (43,063)
Amounts shown under non-current FRBEBEETHLREE
liabilities - 10,000

“E-N\EER RTERSBERARAF @
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28 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The coupon notes bear fixed interest rate at 6.25% per
annum (2017: 6.25% per annum) and are not secured.

The coupon notes were fully redeemed during the year
ended 30th June 2018.

(b)  On9th March 2017, the Group entered into an agreement
as the borrower for a revolving credit facility up to
HK$12,000,000 with a financial institution as the lender.
The revolving credit facility is secured by the corporate
guarantee executed by the Company and bears interest
at a fixed rate of 10% per annum.

The revolving credit facilities were fully repaid during the
year ended 30th June 2018.

(c) The margin loans payable is repayable on demand if it
is subjected to margin call from the financial institution
and carried a variable interest rate. As at 30th June 2017,
the margin loans payable were secured by the Group's
listed equity investments recognised as available-for-sale
investment and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss in the fair value of HK$73,461,000 as disclosed
in Note 16 and HK$59,566,000 as disclosed in Note 15
respectively.

The margin loans were fully repaid during the year ended.

The Group has no un-utilised borrowing facilities as at
30th June 2018 (2017: HK$63,000,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings as at
30th June 2017 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The fair values of the borrowings approximated their
carrying amounts as at 30th June 2017.
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29 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 29 MMEMERE

Total minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payment
REHASHEE BEEHESNEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E2-NE —T-—ttF ZB-NFE —T—LtF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT TERT FHET
Amounts payable: e & %8
Within one year —F R 18 35 18 35
After 1 year but within —F%AE
2 years W F A 7 19 7 19
After 2 years but within WE%E
5 years HFER - 9 = 9
25 63
Less: Finance charge B E R = -
Present value of finance  EfN@ERE
lease payable /38 (B 25 63
Less: Portion classified as & : 5l {E i &
current liabilities BEDS (18) (35)
Non-current portion FERBHH 7 28
The finance lease obligations are interest-free and mEBEAEARRE HBHALER
secured by the photocopiers of the Group which are RZE—NFAA=Z+HEBHEE
the underlying assets of the lease with a total carrying £27,0008 t(Z & — + F : 62,000
amount of HK$27,000 as at 30th June 2018 (2017: BN EZHRENEENHEEEE)
HK$62,000). No arrangement has been entered into for EER REBEEZE-_ZE—-—NEXA=
contingent rental payment for the year ended 30th June THIEFE BERIABENK
2018 (2017: same). AR ZH( T —1F AR -
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30 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

0 EEHEBEERERE

(a) The movements in deferred tax liabilities (a) RAFER  EER
0 == R S, g
and assets during the year are as follows: BHREEMREECE
m
Deferred tax assets BEEKHIEEE
Tax losses Total
REEER wnE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 T8
At 1st July 2016 R-ZE—R"FLH—H 365 365
Credited to profit or loss REZFP A 9,482 9,482
At 30th June 2017 and R-ZE—+HFXA=1+H
1st July 2017 r—Z—+F+HH—H 9,847 9,847
Charged to profit or loss RiB =R R (9,572) (9,5672)
Derecognition upon disposal of A 1 & &5 & B & {E if
DPP (note 47) % E R (BT 5E47) (1) (1)
At 30th June 2018 RZE-NFERA=TAH 274 274
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Temporary
differences
relating to
unrealised fair
value gains of
financial Amortisation
Accelerated assets at fair of other
tax value through intangible
depreciation  profit or loss assets Total
HEBBSR
Eﬁ%ﬁk%
ZEREER
AERNFE
WEHEEr HUtEKEE
MEHERE ERUEER ZE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL THT THT THT
At 1st July 2016 RZT-XFLA—H (348) - (1,881) (2,229)
Credited/(charged) to R EBHEF st A/ (1K)
profit or loss 156 (14,740) - (14,584)
At 30th June 2017and R -E—+FEA=Z1+H
Tst July 2017 RZT—tFtHA—H (192) (14,740) (1,881) (16,813)
Credited/(charged) to R #EBH B A/ (NK)
profit or loss (248) 14,740 - 14,492
Credited to profitor gt & P B & Z B R
loss of discontinued 482§ s 5+ A
operations - - 1,881 1,881
At30thJune 2018 R=T—\FXA=1H (440) - - (440)
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30 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities
and assets during the year are as follows:
(Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated balance sheet. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

e R R M

0 EEHEBEEEREE®

(a)

RAFENRN &L
HEBEEBEMEEZCEH
PORINERE )
REREMTS ETHELH
HEERABERGABER
EENEN TRABRYBER
wE R TS A A EEE RE
85 9 A

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—LtF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net deferred tax assets RIFEEEBEBEERRN
recognised in the BRHELEHREEE
consolidated balance sheet pEig=C| 274 6,447
Net deferred tax liabilities RIEEEEBERNA
recognised in the BRMWELERIBEEAFE
consolidated balance sheet il (440) (13,413)
(166) (6,966)

Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax
losses carried forward are to be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$242,628,000 (2017: HK$113,392,000) as at
30th June 2018 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the above tax
losses, approximately HK$19,564,000 (2017:
HK$16,979,000) can only be carried forward for a
maximum period of five years. Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

(b)

ERAERPAREABRZE
EHMEEEEERNAREER
M A 5 PR R 4K 3H R ) B IR
BIRZBRT - I WER -

= [ NP | 7 o ) = U= A
EBTABR-_ZE—NENA=
+ B z #1818 £9242,628,000
B (ZE—+14F 113,392,000
BIL)ERELEHIBEEE - Lt
T 7% 18 18 & 4919,564,0007%8 7T
(ZZ —+ 4% :16,979,0005 7T)
BeENsdER LT 2HE-
HibhEiBae R EES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

=k
31 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 31 AR
2018 2017
—N£F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T F& T
Accounts payable arising from BERLERFTREMEEYK
securities brokerage and margin @ E A 2 EF RN
financing business:
- cash clients “BerRFP 5,171 61,928
— margin clients -HREP 694 19,692
5,865 81,620
Accounts payable arising from HtEXELECEMFERRK
other businesses 2,653 10,827
8,518 92,447

The settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients arising from the securities brokerage and margin
financing business are within two days after the trade
date. Accounts payable to cash clients are repayable
on demand subsequent to settlement date. Accounts
payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does
not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.

Accounts payable amounting to HK$7,157,000 as at
30th June 2018 (2017: HK$93,014,000) were payable
to clients in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the ordinary
course of conducting the regulated activities. However,
the Group does not have a currently enforceable right to
offset these payables with the deposits placed.
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BHERERITEREEREEZIE
NESEFREREEHAIFAR
MA-EBENREEFERRELEH
BRERKEE- ENHTFEREFER
RERKEE - HNARREER/
ERAREBHZEG Bk DL
EERBENEE BRI ERER
e D e

RELERETERAEETBRES R
EPWBEEFEBEZERE BRI
R s EA—%—)\E/‘—\H:—?-
B 2 & 8 57,157,000/ (=
—+ F 93,014,000/%7E)J§H$5‘§
Fehm AEBITEUANMTHRZ
FeHEZERENRBEZRETR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

£h .
31 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued) 31 B ERMR@®
As at 30th June 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis R-ZE-NEFR-F—+tFRHA=
of the accounts payable arising from other businesses TH REZAPHENEMERE
based on invoice date is as follows: ECENER BRI AT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T T T
1 to 90 days 1290H 712 513
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 27 34
Over 180 days 180 H LA I 1,914 10,280
2,653 10,827
All of the accounts payable arising from other business FMBEEAEMEBEEMNENKRKYG
are expected to be settled or recognised as income ER—FAENIERABWALE
within one year or are repayable on demand. BEREE-
32 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 32 HittEMREREST X
CHARGES
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Amounts due to joint operators EEERFEHRE 81,174 72,133
Accruals for employee benefits BENZWNETSTEH 3,988 25,787
Other accruals and other payables Hih st 8 A & H b &t
RIE 27,226 27,764
Temporary receipts (Note (i) = AF U BR 30 I8 (M 3 () - 108,876
112,388 234,560
Note (i): At 30th June 2017, the amount of approximately Mzl RZTE—+tFXXA=+H &
HK$108,806,000 represented the partial consideration %5 /& 49108,806,00078 JT A 3K 1A
received from the independent third party purchaser BEEWBYE=ZFESFEHS
in relation to the Film Library Disposal Agreement as FELEEHRENID S REMH
disclosed in Note 10. FE10FTHER) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

33 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 33

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the disposal of AP
Group during the year ended 30th June 2017 as detailed
in Note (i) below. Contingent consideration payable
is measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The movement of the fair value of contingent

consideration payable is as follows:

P HARNKAME

ERNIAREBZRAFERERERE
TE—+FRAZTHRLEFELE
EHEBECREBEZHABBEBAZEN
R T XM RN F ) o &R 3R
RERBEHRRLAFETE-E
NEAREBERAFEZESHW T

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FA T
At fair value: BAFETE:

At beginning of the year ) 19,568 -

Arising from disposal of AP Group LHEEHEEMES
(Note 47) (M 52 47) - 10,930
Fair value change I E & E 832 8,638
At end of the year RER 20,400 19,568
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Continued)

Note:
(i) Adjustment to the consideration

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
in relation to the disposal of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“FRECH"), a subsidiary of
the Group shall, and the Company as the guarantor shall
procure FRECH to, pay to the purchaser the adjustment
amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in accordance with
the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:

"A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS;
and

“NP"” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

The fair values of contingent consideration payable as
at 30th June 2018 and 2017 are based on the valuation
performed by the directors of the Company (2017:
Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
professional valuer not connected with the Group)
Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note 3.3.

rE MR R MR
33 MEAT AR B

GEE
0 REZHE

BERLEEHEETLZES
WE WEHEEAE T —NF—
A—HRE=2-_Z—ttF+=-A=
+—BLHMEZEEZREKEE
A 3 T 4> $416,000,000% 7T - Bl A
EEWE AR BT RE X E(ER)
BRAATETIRE (LD ERK
NAEABERABERE ST RE
XibmBE A XA RE TR ARG
BrHEsBE(AESE]

A =20,400,0007% 7T ~ (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
He

[AlEABLRIECHEBER 2
B R

INPI#EBE -Z—-RF-A—HRE
E_E—tF+A=Z+—HIE
HEZENFR-MENFERA
B BE ADF B ERARIEET -

ENFAREBER-_ZE-NFR-Z
—+tEXNAZF+THZAFENUER
RIBEE(ZE—tF HBAEETE
MEsBYEXEHAEMERTGEZ
MERARETNFEERSE - AF
BEFE2FBHRWEI3-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

34 LOSS BEFORE TAX 34 FR¥AIE IR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) R & Al EE_E BIEMNMEKR/ (5t A) T3
the following: FEEBEL:
2018 2017 (restated)
g-)\E ZE-E(E])
Continuing Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations Total  operations operation Total
K& BAL bt | BRI
Bexr  BEE% @i  GEER BEEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn ThExn ThR ThL ThL
(a)  Staff costs: (a) BIMK:
Salaries, allowances, and other B BHMRER
benefits (including cirectors’ Erl(a%ES
emoluments (Note 36)) i (ft 5% 36)) 69,005 1,157 76,162 61,950 5,518 67,468
Contributions to defined E%WMLW ital
contribution retirement plans s 1,578 191 1,769 1,330 170 1,500
Equity-settled share-based bR T%E RERNDA
payment expenses ERARRX 8,805 - 8,805
79,388 7,348 86,736 63,280 5,688 68,968
(b)  Other items: b) H#EF:
Auditors' remuneration ramme
- audit services -GERE 1,186 570 1,756 3,320 761 4,081
- other services -HEt R 210 - 210 350 - 350
1,456 570 2,026 3,600 781 4431
Amortisation B
~ film rights (Note 10) -EPME
(K& 10) 4,002 - 4,002 23,343 - 23,343
- other intangible assets -EHEVEE
(Note 8) L) 148 - 148 148 - 148
Depreciation for property, plant NE BEREE
and equipment (Note 6) nE (Mﬁ i6) 2,486 140 2,626 2,485 468 2,951
Net foreign exchange (gain)/ NE(KE)/ BB
losses /?% (2,944) 29 (2,915) (756) (6 (762)
Operating lease charges: BERER:
~ minimum lgase payments -5ERENR 8,528 1437 9,965 6,197 1,154 7,351
- contingent rent* - 2,465 - 2,465 32771 - 3277
Cost of inventories Note 19) FERA(H19) 21,703 - 21,703 32,500 - 32,500
Equity-settled share-based REBBAENRE
payment expenses for a EERHAER
business partner WAk 1,676 - 1,676 - - -
Available-for-sale financial AEHESR
assets: EE:
reclassified from equity BERENDE
- on impairment -RAER 23,849 - 23,849 89,643 - 89,643
- on redemption -REEE - - - 6,571 - 6,571
- on disposal -REER 18,986 - 18,986 - - -
Gross rental income from RENERS W\
investment properties less & ’E RERRT
direct outgoings of 02 B
HK$201,102 (ZB-t%:
(2017 HK$186,000) 186,000% 7T) 876 - 876 872 - 872
* The contingent rent of HK$2,465,000 (2017: # sk AT £2,465,0008 T(ZZE —
HK$3,277,000) refers to the operating lease rentals based F 3,277,000 T)IEE R ER
on pre-determined percentages of realised sales less HEMMBEABETADLEHNEEF
minimum lease payment of the respective leases. EfRSRSBHENRERENR -
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34 LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued)

e R R M

34 BRTATE B @

2018 2017 (restated)
“E-)\% ZE-LE(E))
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations Total  operations operations Total
& BAL g B&IE
Bk  LERE B HEEH EEEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TEn TEL TEL TR
(¢) Finance costs () BEHRA
Bank overdrats interest BRAEXHE - - - - 27 27
Interest on borrowings EEFNS 2,965 - 2,965 6,061 6,061
Other interest expenses EBHERX 113 - 13 - 3 3
Total interest expense UkEEBRRR
on financial liabilities not AFEARZ
at fair value through SBAETE
profit or loss EEEL 3,078 - 3,078 6,061 30 6,091

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

R K ET 2
AEBERBEEERGEAE S
GO REELBREEHIRET XE
M B8R — ARG M REEE
(lREE2t8 ) RESAE R —
HRBYXAAETENERBERER
Kitdl-RprEeitd BT
HEEREEBAREEHBRANGS
AR FEEEARBEBRAR
30,000/8 7T » &t | A K AD B5 55 88 ©

AEERTENNBEAREENS
ERPERARINBREERK
BN - ZREWNBARAEF
MR E B 2 LR % R KR R E 83
PSRRI ST ]
MEdlemw -—EERELREHMH

Eo
A °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

36 DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30th June 2018

36 EFM 2

R 8 F B(R A & 1D 383(1) ik B,
ARBEESEMNmERRMDE —
PEBENEEMeOT

BE-E-NEXNA=Z1+HLEE

Salary,
allowances,  Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Name of Directors Fees in kind contributions Sub-Total payments Total
He 2H B IR MR 1 %
EEpg e RENAZ st E MRS gt BEBRZAR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THAR THET TERL THEL
Chairman and FEF
executive director HITEZE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil # /8 % 4 - 24,257 18 24,275 1,677 25,952
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing HEELAE
(Note (i) (HE6) - 300 - 300 - 300
Mr. Lam Kit Sun AL & - 5,131 18 5,149 1,677 6,826
Independent non- BUHEHT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung meHxE 130 - - 130 - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon EXBEAE 130 - - 130 = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing HEsrs
(Note (i) (ML i) 87 - - 87 - 87
Mr. Chong Ki Ming FREEE
(Note (i) =) 57 - - 57 - 57
Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, IBELE
Jason (Note (iv)) (B 55 (iv)) 57 = = 57 = 57
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee BEExL
{Note (v)) (B &) 3 = = 73 = 73
534 29,688 36 30,258 3,354 33,612
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36 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) % EEMEw@
For the year ended 30th June 2017 BHE-_ZT—+tH5~A=1tHILFE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Name of Directors Fees inkind  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
e 24 BN BB B
S e REWHZE SHE Pt ERZAHR an

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TR TET TET TETL

Chairman and FEF

executive director HOTEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil #/)\88 % & - 14,335 18 14,353 - 14,353
Executive directors HTEZE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing HEREAE

(Note (i) UE)) - 130 - 130 - 130
Mr. Lam Kit Sun WEHEE - 1,747 18 1,765 - 1,765
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu gshixnt

(Note (vil (B 5 vi) - 1,663 8 1,671 - 1671
Non-executive director ~ FHTEE
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong BB LA

Stephen (Note (vii)) (B & (vii)) 110 - - 110 - 10
Independent non- BUHEHT

executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung mEH%E 130 - - 130 - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon BxmisE 130 - - 130 - 130
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee gggExt

[Note (v)) GEL) 65 - - 65 - 65
Mr. Lam Wing Tai MK R EE

Note (vii) (B 5 wiii) 65 - - 65 - 65

500 17,875 44 18,419 - 18,419
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by S B S

36 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Hung Cho Sing resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 2nd June 2017 and was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1st October 2017.

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st October
2017.

Mr. Chong Ki Ming was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 21st December
2017.

Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
21st December 2017.

Ms. Cheng Lo Yee was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 30th November
2016 and resigned on 21st December 2017.

Ms. Cheng Hei Yu was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 8th December 2015 and resigned on
7th October 2016. Ms. Cheng Hei Yu was an employee
of the Group after her resignation as an executive director
of the Company on 7th October 2016. Total remuneration
paid to Ms. Cheng Hei Yu for the year ended 30th
June 2017 was approximately HK$3,492,000 of which
HK$1,671,000 shown in the above table represented the
remunerations paid to her before the resignation as an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen retired as a non-executive
director of the Company on 30th November 2016.

Mr. Lam Wing Tai retired as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 30th November 2016.

During the year, no director of the Company has
waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid or payable by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.
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36 EZM 2w

e

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST By
EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included two Directors (2017:
three) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in Note 36 above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2017: two) individuals during the
year are as follows:

M RR M
BEHFAL

REAREBERLELERSHALTERE
ME(CE-—LEF ZR)EF KT
ZHEFBER EXHEI6E5 2
DMARE H#Bp=R(-F—LF:
MEIANTRFRAZBEAMEMT

2018 2017

—E-NEF —ET—+F

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Salaries and other emoluments HekHMBE 16,889 17,068
Contributions to retirement scheme 3B fk =t 2 &£ = 54 27
16,943 17,095

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

The emoluments of the three (2017: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

pEFMAETIISBER

ZHR(CE-—LEF - MBIRSHFA
TZHMETIRER

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AH A#
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 B L=
3,000,000% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 L &
3,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$11,000,000 to HK$11,500,000 11,000,000 7t &
11,500,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 13,500,001/ Tt &=
14,000,000 7T - !
3 2
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38 OTHER INCOME 38 HAblx A
2018 2017 (restated)
-0\ ZE-tE(EF)
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations  operations Total  operations operation Total
K& BRL g BRIE
BEgn BELH @t BExH BexH s
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TéEn TEx TERL ThL ThL
Sponsorship income L0 1,006 - 1,006 2,093 - 2,093
Rental income KON 123 - 123 125 - 125
Screening income EL ST 0N 96 - 96 153 - 153
Dividend income from financial FREGEATEAR
assets at fair value through profit 74 BEZEZRE
or loss O 1397 - 1397 21 - 211
Others i 150 333 483 374 1,569 1,943
2,112 333 3,105 2,956 1,569 4,525
39 OTHER LOSSES — NET 39 HttsHE - F8
2018 2017 (restated)
ZE-)\f ZE-tE(E))
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations Total  operations operation Total
b1 | BRL bt | B&IE
Begy Begy @t BexH BexH s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEx TER TEn TEL TEL AL
Realised loss upon disposal/ HE/ERAEHESR
redemption of available-for-sale BERNEERER
financial assets (18,986) - (18,986) (6,571) - (6,571)
Gain on disposal of trading rights ~~ HERBLBLL 53
held in the CGSE QB 6,790 - 6,790 - - -
Loss on disposal of property, LENE EERZE
plant and equipment LE# (110) = (110) (29) (592) (621)
Waiver of accounts payable HEEFAER 12 = 12 244 - 244
Waiver of over-receipt of accounts e BN ENE S
receivables 2 - 23 - - -
Waiver of other payable ReEMENTE - - - 80 - 80
Recovery of bad debt SENE 235 - 235 24 - 2%
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) B/ (BE)FE 2,944 (29) 2915 756 6 762
Others i 93 - 93 34 - 34
(8,999) (29) (9,028) (5,462) (586] (6,048
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40 INTEREST INCOME 40 A E UL A
2018 2017 (restated)
“3-)\§ Z2-+E(E])
Continuing Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations Total  operations operation Total
K& BAL HE B&LE

HExk HEXR fs  HEXEH  HERH it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
TRT TRET TET AL TAL TRL

Bank interest income RITMEWA 73 - 7 57 8 63
Interest income from a joint venture  EXFAL R AL
HEMA 31 - 31 231 - 21
Finance income included SAGAZENERRA
in consolidated statement of LHBMA
comprehensive income 104 - 104 288 6 294
Loan interest income [included ERMEMAGA
in total revenue in consolidated GAR2ANEEML
statement of comprehensive ahg)
income) 7,264 - 7,264 5,809 - 5,859
Total interest income EV9N 7,368 - 7,368 6,147 6 6,153
41 TAXATION 41 BIE
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement (a) srefEmiiarRANZ
of comprehensive income P15 0
2018 2017 (Restated)
“E-\% ZE-+E(E]])
Continuing Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation Total  operations operation Total
b7 | B&L g B&IE

HExk HEXR fs  HEXE  HERH it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
TRT TET TET AL TAL TRL

Current tax AEnE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERGH
Charge for the year AEERH 963 = 963 618 763 1,381
Under provision inprior year ~ FEEEET R n 1448 1819 334 2 336
PRC Enterprise Income Tax hEGERER - S - 100 - 100
Deferred tax REHE
Origination and reversal of EREZEN
temporary differences ELREM (4,920 (1,881) (6,801) 5,102 - 5,102
Income tax (credit)/expense FER(EE)/ AT (3.586) (433) (4,019) 6,154 765 6919
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by S B S

41

TAXATION (Continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (Continued)

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

For the year ended 30th June 2017, the provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT"”) was
calculated at 10% of the capital gains regarding
transfer in an indirect equity of a PRC subsidiary
following the disposal of AP Group as disclosed in
Note 47 in accordance with the relevant tax rules
and regulations of the PRC. Except for the EIT
arising from the capital gains regarding the disposal
of AP Group, no other provision for EIT has been
made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Group has no assessable profits under EIT
for the year ended 30th June 2017. For the year
ended 30th June 2018, no provision for EIT has
been made in the consolidated financial statements
as the Group has no assessable profits under EIT
for the year.

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30th June 2018
and 2017, respectively.
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41 TAXATION (continued) 41 I8 @)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/ b) FIBOER), /X @&
. . — /\'/T
expenses and accounting (loss)/profit at the HRAMEAEZS qu
applicable tax rates: (B1#8),/ 1w Fl 2z 8k
2018 2017
S —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T F#& T
Loss before income tax Br TS BRI E 18
— from continuing operation -REBEECEER (79,700) (121,332)
— from discontinued operation - REERIELEER (59,693) 9,655
(139,393) (111,677)
Tax calculated at domestic tax £&5 8 BB RN EF
rates applicable to profits NERRERANE M
or losses in the respective MEAENHRIE
countries (23,594) (18,904)
Under-provision in respect of BEFEREETR
prior years 1,819 336
Income not subject to tax |AERH 2 A (1,741) (1,400)
Expenses not deductible for IR =3
tax purpose 22,198 38,921
Tax effect of deductible temporary >k #& 32 7] 1 5 & B—ir 14
difference not recognised ERHIUGEE (4,982) -
Utilisation of previously FRZAIRABER 2B
unrecognised tax losses & 18 (416) (6,226)
Tax losses not recognised RERZHIEEIE 19,942 3,718
Tax effect of previously B IR B RE 3R 5T B R HE AR
unrecognised tax losses now MREBEEED
recognised Mg e - (9,616)
Tax reduction from double EER %R%S%Zf)ﬁﬁ
taxation relief (20,646) -
Others H i 3,401 90
Income tax (credit)/expense FrEf(Re), MxX (4,019) 6,919
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by S B S

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 42 BRIEREER

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group ceased  E_T - \FRA=ZTBHLFE"
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing AEERFALEXERMBRE
due to deterioration of operating results and financial HEMBX LEFAFALLERTERE
performance during the year and write off the goodwill X W EH B KBt B R
and trading rights held in the Stock Exchange in relation R A WX 5 #E 5 528,064,000
to this business of HK$28,064,000 and HK$11,400,000, 7T & 11,400,000 7L - B R IEEE
respectively. The analysis of the results of discontinued XB2EEIIOT

operations is as follows:

2018 2017
—N\F —E -+t F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA T
Revenue W s 8,930 35,927
Cost of revenue W %8 AR A (331) (3,273)
Gross profit £ 7 8,599 32,654
Other income (Note 38) b i A (B 5238) 333 1,569
Other net losses (Note 39) H b 85 18 5 %8 (P 52 39) (29) (586)
Administrative expenses THHEX (20,092) (14,998)
Impairment loss of accounts EWEER 2R EEE
receivable (net) (Note 20) CF 58) (M 52 20) (9,040) (8,960)
Finance income (Note 40) B %5 U A (B 5240) = 6
Finance costs (Note 34) B 75 B AN (B 5234) - (30)
Written off of goodwill (Note 9) i B WsE (P 3% 9) (28,064) -
Written off of other intangible B | E E 2
assets (Note 8) (Fff 3£ 8) (11,400) -
(Loss)/profit before taxation from REERIEKEER Y
discontinued operations TRl (BT 8), 5 (59,693) 9,655
Taxation | 433 (765)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REEKRIEEEERZ
discontinued operation FE(EER), & F (59,260) 8,890
Attributable to: LA AT A
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETE =N (59,260) 8,890
(59,260) 8,890
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42 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 42 B 1E K& E K@)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations are as PRIEREEB RS FRENT ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—NE —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from RS/ (TER)
operating activities Z2ReFHE 40,574 (195,400)
Net cash outflows from investing KEEBEMERZ
activities BEe TR (49,096) (100)
Net cash outflows from financing mEEEMERZ
activities e F5E (25,906) 285,579
Total net cash (outflows)/inflows FHReORL) /WA LE (34,428) 90,079
43 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 13 ERLEREXEBRDE

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

For the year ended 30th June 2017

On 13th June 2016, the Company’ s wholly-owned
subsidiary, FRECH, and Lucky Famous Limited, an
independent purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which FRECH agreed to dispose
to Lucky Famous Limited of its 51% equity interest in
AP Group Investment Holdings Limited. Pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement, the initial consideration
of HK$20,400,000 is subject to a downward adjustment.
In the event that the audited consolidated profit after
tax of AP Group for the period from 1st January 2016
to 31st December 2017 is less than HK$16,000,000,
FRECH shall, and the Company as the guarantor shall
procure FRECH to, pay to Lucky Famous Limited the
adjustment amount in accordance with the formula set
out in Note 33.

The disposal of AP Group was completed on 1st July
2016.

BB RANGTE 2

AFELE 2 HEH

HE_Z—+ttFA=1THIEFE
RNZE— i/\ﬂ+_E| ViNE/N
ZEEWEB T%Jﬁé&iaiXkEﬁi—

% ¥ B 77 Lucky Famous Limited ;.T
Y—EEEmE Bt BIIR%

1t A & M Lucky Famous Limited £ ’%

HREHEBETERABERAF Z51%
BRiE-BEZEEHE THRARE
20,400,000 JT 7] #E 1T T 3 o fiw B 8¢
EER _ZT—XRF—HF—H&2_Z
—+F T+ A=+ HHEZEE
% ER A B B 12 s F 4 516,000,000
B BILBRE X LERARA(E
BERAN)ERMSE S TR LR
Lucky Famous Limited 3z < 18 # Bt 5%
LR o

HEEHEREIR _T—-R"FLA
—EITEBZ
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by S B S

43 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 43 E%%Jt,ﬁgg%ﬁ%&"*
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD AEFHEZHEAR
FOR SALE (continued) (&)

The loss for the year ended 30th June 2017 from the BE_ZT—LtFRA=TRHILFE"
discontinued operation is analysed as follows: KEERIEREER 2 EE DT
T
AP Group
ZHEE
2017
—E—tfF
HK$'000
FAT
Loss after tax for the period Bk iEEE -
Gain on disposal of operation ¥t eEks(BERE
(including HK$29,000 FHEREAXBLEmIR
reclassification of translation BARREBEZHNEFHE
reserve from equity to profit or 29,0007 70) (M 5£47)
loss on disposal of the operation
(Note 47)) 4,075
Profit for the year from discontinued REDKRIEEEEBHREF
operation 4,075
Attributable to: AR & 77 FEAG -
Owners of the Company ViNNISI B SIUN 4,075
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44 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

e R R M

M BREE

(a)

Basic (loss)/profit per ordinary share is calculated
by dividing the loss attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated

BN
FRERREAER) &
TDRRARNAERANEEERE
MERBEBETEBRZNEF
BEATHTAGFEDT

as follows:
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
(restated)
(E3))
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners X2 @l # A A FE 1L
of the Company (HK$'000) (B 8), % M (F &)
- from continuing operations -REBBELEEY (76,024) (127,293)
— from discontinued operation -RBERIEEE
% (59,260) 12,965
- from continuing and -REBERE KL
discontinued operations P S (135,284) (114,328)
Weighted average number of BERTERRKR 2 ME
ordinary shares in issue SE 58 887,832,358 543,123,874
Basic (loss)/profit per ordinary FREEBRER
share (HK$) (B18), % FMCET)
— from continuing and -REFERBEKIL
discontinued operations PR S (0.152) (0.211)
— from continuing operations - REEBEEEETR (0.086) (0.234)
— from discontinued operation —ERIEEEER (0.066) 0.023
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44 1L 0OSS PER SHARE (continued)

(a) Basic (Continued)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

44 7 IR EE @

(a) E A&
=@ IR N RE 19 B A

(Basic)
2018 2017
—NF —tF
Issued ordinary shares REtA—BE#TLAR
at 1st July 853,302,276 177,774,092
Effect of share options exercised & 1T {& ﬁ% Hx Bz HE 34,530,082 -
Effect of rights issue HER - 268,333,015
Effect of shares issued for MEEMBRBETRG 2
placements of new shares T - 97,016,767
Weighted average number TOE AR N B(EK)
of ordinary shares (Basic) 887,832,358 543,123,874
For the years ended 30th June 2017, the weighted HE-ET -t A=THI

average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic loss per ordinary share has been adjusted
for the effect of bonus element of the rights issue
in October 2016 on the basis of two rights share
for every one existing ordinary share.

(b) Diluted

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 30th June 2018 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’'s outstanding share
options during the year ended 30th June 2018
since the exercise are anti-dilutive at loss from
continuing operation level for the year ended 30th
June 2018. The computation of diluted loss per
ordinary share for the year ended 30th June 2017
does not assume the exercise of the Company's
outstanding share options during the year ended
30th June 2017 since their exercise prices are
higher than the average market prices of the
shares during the year. Accordingly, diluted loss
per ordinary share is the same as basic loss per
ordinary share for the year.

45 DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2018 (2017: Nil).
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46 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HtBEEREER
(a) Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash (a) BRI EEEEEE
generated from operations: £ 7B E 7 fj EIE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(restated)
(&75)
Profit/(loss) before tax for the year FR BB AR/ (B#E)
From continuing operations REFBELEET (79,700) (121,332)
From discontinued operation REBRIFEEER
(Note 42) (it 5t 42) (59,693) 9,655
From discontinued operation REDPBEABELNEL
classified as held for sale BRIFEEER
(Note 43) (PHt 5 43) - 4,075
Adjustments for: BT 51 % I8 1 ) FE
- Depreciation of property, plant -ME KERKE
and equipment (Note 6) 2 E(fE6) 2,626 2,951
- Amortisation of film rights - B M 2 B
(Note 10) (K 3E10) 4,002 23,343
- Amortisation of other intangible -HmEBEREECBH
assets (Note 8) (Ht3E8) 148 148
- Fair value change on contingent -EREAREZLRF
consideration receivable B2 8 (I :F22)
(Note 22) 11,941 (4,807)
— Fair value change on contingent -ENEAREBEZRF
consideration payable B2 33)
(Note 33) 832 8,638
- Fair value change on investment -EREMELAFEEZT
properties (Note 7) (M &xE7) (3,800) -
— Impairment losses of interests -R—HBEERRZ
in an associate (Note 12) BanREFSE
(KT3E12) 16,045 3,227
— Impairment losses of film rights -BEMBEREERZ
and films in progress (Note 10) EYZREER
(Pffg 3 10) 4,903 -
— Impairment loss of film related -EXRBT2REBE
deposits 6,949 -
— Impairment losses of goodwill -AEREBEM T
(Note 9) = 22,980
- Impairment loss of deposits paid, -E2 {4 « B KB
prepayments and other N H b jE Uy IR
receivable HEE B = 1,632
- Impairment loss of available-for- - ESRE
sale financial assets (Note 16) RN ] (W?HS) 23,849 89,643
— Impairment loss on accounts - AR OB BB 1B
receivable (Note 20) (M 7 20) 13,965 10,470
~ Recovery of bad debts - fmEE R (1,062) (24)
— Write-down of inventories -GFE 2R (HE19)
(Note 19) 2,407 1,501
— Write-off of goodwill (Note 9) -HE 2 ME () 28,064 -
— Write-off of other intangible -HEMEREE ZMHE
assets (Note 8) (M =x8) 11,400 -
- Reversal of write-down of -BEOWRES
inventories (Note 19) (M &E19) (1,062) (508)
- Share based payment expenses - AERSRHEL
(Note 26) (M 3£ 26) 10,481 -
— Net loss on disposal of property, -HEME - KERRE
plant and equipment (Note 39) 2 B1E %58 (fFE39) 110 621
— Gain on disposal of film library -HEEYERS
(Note 10) (FF5E10) (182,050) -
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by S B S

(Continued)

(a)

N = & |, .
46 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 46 HtEEREER@®
_ A T 24 e 4o s v
Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash (a) BRAGAIES BB & & E
generated from operations: (Continued) EZREZEHEK @
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$\'OOO
TER FHEIL
(restated)
(EH)
- Gain on disposal of trading rights -HEHES2REL 55
held in CGSE Rz W (6,790) -
- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries -HERERQR 2 W=
(Note 47) (K51 47) (249) (4,075)
- Finance income (Note 40) - B 7 W A (P 5E40) (104) (294)
- Finance costs (Note 34(c)) - B % AR (FfT 3£ 34(c)) 3,078 6,091
— Realised loss upon redemption -FEDAfHE SR
of available-for-sale financial EERADER
assets (Note 39) BB (M 5E39) 18,986 6,571
- Waiver of accounts payables - EMNER
(Note 39) (M 7£39) (12) (244)
- Waiver of other payable and -HReEMEMNRER
accrued charges (Note 39) [E5T & A (M 5£39) = (80)
- Waiver of over-receipt of — 2 & B Uk e R BR 3R
accounts receivable (23) -
- Share of losses of associates -E(RE 2 D E BB 473 216
- Share of losses of a joint venture -EE—HEAEE AR
(Note 13(a)) /&5 18 (P 3£ 13(a) 31 231
- Loss on deregistration of -FE BB QA
a subsidiary B8 35 -
- Loss on deregistration of -HHE—HAeERQA
a joint venture (Note 13(a)) Z EBE ([ 5E13() = 24
- Net foreign exchange loss -NEBEF R 149 -
Changes in working capital: BEESEY:
- Inventories -F5 693 3,245
- Accounts receivable - BRI 290,044 (119,566)
- Amount due from an associate - — B E DRI RIE 875 (964)
- Loans receivable -EWE R 18,802 (32,737)
- Loan to an associate S Skl L: /NG
Z B 1,100 (2,940)
- Deposits paid, prepayments -BEfE] & ENFER
and other receivables H b e W e (73,451) (33,768)
- Accounts payable - JER R (83,917) (162,031)
- Amount due to an associate - — QR
Z B - (1,9471)
- Other payables and accrued - HEMENRERES
charges ¥ (13,293) 170,395
- Deposits received -B¥ET e (8,117) (21,168)
- Financial assets at fair value -EPEaERRATE
through profit or loss ARZEeREE 183,273 14,815
— Bank balances and cash -RITEHRERE
— trust accounts -5 EP 85,857 23,653
Cash generated from/(used in) BEELE/(FA)ZRE
operations 227,795 (102,454)
Tax paid B AT (2,166) (3,004)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEHEL/(FTA)Z
operating activities EIH 4 225,629 (105,458)
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46 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a)

generated from operations: (Continued)

Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash

46

(a)

Hitt R &

e R R M

= =

D [v==%

& &)

BRI IE L EE
F 7B e Z2HER @\

2018 2017
—E2-N\f¥ —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
a. Disposal of property, plantand a. HEWE HERRE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) REE(H ) 1,173 899
Wavier of obligation under finance BEHERSREHEZ
lease on the disposed machinery MEREREZRR
and equipment (10) -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEE - HEREE
plant and equipment (Note 39) 2 EEFE(E39) (110) (621)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - HEREE
property, plant and equipment ZFB A 1,053 278
b. Obligations under finance leases b. #%HE &I
At the end of the year RER 25 63
Add: Wavier of obligations under IR =
finance lease upon R BERE
disposal of machinery EEZHRE
and equipment 10 -
Less: At the beginning of the year RN EA (63) (98)
Capital element of finance lease REMENRCER
payments # o (28) (35)
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N = RDY SN\
46 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 6 HMEEREE @
(Continued)
. . . A - =h > N = ==
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) MEEBHELE ZAEE
financing activities: < ¥ ER
Obligation
under Loan from
Borrowings finance lease a director Total
MERE EERT
EE R EX 45t
At 1st July 2017 R-ZZB-tF
+tA—H 53,063 63 - 53,126
Changes from MERERESD !
financing cash flows:
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (53,063) - - (53,063)
Loan from a director EERTEX - - 10,571 10,571
Capital element of BERENTZ
finance leases payment & A5 - (28) - (28)
Interest expenses paid 2 Fl B FH % (2,694) - - (2,694)
Total changes from BEREMELZ
financing cash flows gyumE (55,757) (28) 10,571 (45,214)
Other Changes: Hit 25 :
Termination of R E#ER
finance lease upon HAER 2RI
disposal of machinery BMERE
and equipment - (10) - (10)
Derecognition upon Rt E—RBHE
disposal of a subsidiary A @& LR - - (10,571) (10,571)
Transfer from ERAENTE
interest payable 73 - - 73
Transfer from prepayment & # [ 78 {1 718 (457) - - (457)
Interest expenses FIEH L 3,078 - - 3,078
Total other changes HEhEahmam 2,694 (10) (10,571) (7,887)
At 30th June 2018 RZZE—N\F
~AH=TH - 25 - 25
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47 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47 HEMWE A &

For the year ended 30th June 2018 HE_Z—N\FA=+H
JtEE

On 15th August 2017, the Group disposed of the entire R—_ZE—+FENA+HRHHB A&

equity interest in DPP and the amount due to a director HEHBHERIENDPIRERE

of approximately HK$10,571,000 to Mr. Lam Shiu Ming t — % & % % 18 #£10,571,0007 T

Daneil, the Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company, at a consideration of HK$294,000. The net
liabilities of DPP as at the date of disposal are as follows:

FEFERAQNAPITE
£ KR (B 5294,0007% JT °
BERLERHNEEFEDNT

EMNRE
2S5 T B

Consideration received: 2k E:
HK$000
FE T

Total Consideration ‘RE 294
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEEFHENEERERE

which control was lost: oM
Interests in joint ventures (Note 13(a)) ReE&na zEzm(MWiE13() 220
Loan receivable from a joint venture JEl —E &L AR ER

(Note 13(b)) (B 3% 13¢ b)) 8,626
Deferred tax assets (Note 30) IEIE R A B = (W 5E30) 1
Deposits paid, prepayment and other Effil® 18 ﬁ FIE R

receivables H b & U 1 T 1,719
Amount due to a director B —R%E % (10,571)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHLEBETF Tﬁ (5)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: ﬁ E-RHMBAR ZWH:
Total consideration mRE 294
Net liabilities disposed of EREBEFE 5
Release of reserve arising from acquisition B[O BB e S N B B AR

of DPP EEOREG (50)
Gain on disposal & I = 249
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESRAFE:
Cash consideration received BWEREENRE 294
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47 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 30th June 2017

On 1st July 2016, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in a subsidiary, AP Group Investment Holdings

47 HEMB A 7@
HE_ZE—+tF,A=1H

Ef
—AELA A AEEE
R AW E SR EERAR

’r'_

p%?)ﬂ?%
ol St | |

Limited with the consideration satisfied by the allotment A % Z B KREERE HE
and issue of 40,800,000 shares by GET Holdings Limited B R A A B 8 & % 740,800,000
at a fair value of approximately HK$21,338,000, subject g f 2 ¥ {8 4 /21,338,000
to a downward adjustment in respect of the guarantee AL ARERBHN A THEE
profit. The net assets of AP Group at the date of disposal HEBREEAHNEEFAEOT
were as follows:
Consideration received: ERRE:
HK$'000
F#& T
Fair value of Consideration Shares received BlARERDAFEE 21,338
Contingent consideration payable (Note 33) JE 1 ok 98 1K 1B (M9 5E33) (10,930)
Total consideration wRAE 10,408
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KREERFHENEERAE
control was lost: i
Goodwill RS 8,403
Property, plant and equipment W SRR E 2,134
Accounts receivables JiE Wt BR =X 103
Amounts due from directors fE W E = IR 27
Deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables B 1% - B 318 & H ity
JE W X 18 2,758
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBasEFEYD 1,369
Other payables and accrued charges H b B ROE R EET (1,345)
Deposits received Bz & (7,566)
Taxation payable JE 15 B 1R (687)
Net assets disposed of EREEEFE 5,186
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RBHWBLRAI WS :
Fair value of Consideration Shares REKRHRFEE 21,338
Contingent consideration payable (Note 33) JE 1 3k 98 1K 1B (M9 5E33) (10,930)
Net assets disposed of BEHLEEETFE (5,186)
Non-controlling interest IE 22 A% # 2 (1,176)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of Rk E |3ﬁ B A Bz 1 R
the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified HEZENsBEEERL
from equity to profit or loss on loss on control MBAREEFHBEZRR
of the subsidiary e 5 = %8 29
Gain on disposal & W s 4,075
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZEERE FE:
Cash consideration received BB EKRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEMNRERRESEEDY (1,359)
(1,359)
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48 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17th April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (“UEL"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue of
the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the “Movie").

Pursuant to an Order (the "Order”) made by the
High Court on 21st February 2003, UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the license fee of the Movie received by
UEL from Miramax Films (being the licensee of the
Movie) and which was also part of the sum claimed
by Star. Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable
to pay Star interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and
some of the costs of the application leading to the
making of the Order, all of which have been settled.
As the Order has not disposed of all the claims of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star,
UEL is entitled to continue to defend the claim by
Star for recovering the remaining balance in the sum
of approximately HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799 less
HK$5,495,700).

On 30th April 2002, UEL claimed against Star for
the latter's wrongful exploitation of certain rights in
the Movie co-owned by both parties. UEL claimed
to recover all losses and damages suffered by UEL
as a result of the wrongful exploitation.

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited (“ULV"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, claimed against Star
for the latter’s infringement of the licensed rights
in the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover
all losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result
of the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
said claim made against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group for the year ended
30th June 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

48 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. (“KPE") claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), being
three of the defendants named therein, in respect
of damages arising from alleged infringement of
the patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned
by KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2018.

On 8th January 2010, KPE claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), being
three of the defendants named therein, in respect
of damages arising from the alleged infringement
of the patents regarding Digital Video Disc owned
by KPE.

On 6th June 2012, the action was discontinued
against the Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The claim made against ULV has been
agreed with KPE and settled by ULV and appropriate
legal costs provision was recognised accordingly in
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2018. Based on the consultation
with legal counsel, no further material outflow of
economic benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d)

Universe Artiste Management Limited ("UAM"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, commenced Court of First Instance
Action against Kwong Ling and Oriental Prosperous
Int'l Entertainments Limited (collectively the
“Defendants”) on 30th June 2014 claiming inter
alia for a declaration that UAM is entitled to
extend/renew the term of the Artist Management
Contract of the Defendants with UAM (the "Artist
Management Contract”) for 5 years as from 3rd
May 2014 to 2nd May 2019.

The Defendants filed their defence and
counterclaimed on 29th September 2014. By such
counterclaim, the Defendants claiming against
UAM inter alia for a declaration that the Artist
Management Contract was void and unenforceable,
the Artist Management Contract to be rescinded,
damages for breach of the Artist Management
Contract and for breach of fiduciary duties, a
declaration that UAM is liable to account to the
Defendants and an order for payment of all sums
found to be due by UAM to the Defendants.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
UAM. The Board considers that the amounts of
counterclaim by the Defendants against UAM is
insignificant to the Group as a whole.

On 16th July 2018, Lucky Famous Limited (" Lucky
Famous"”) commenced Court of First Instance
Action claimed against Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”), and
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the Company for inter alia the sum of HK$20.4
million as the adjustment to the consideration (the
“Adjustment Amount”) alleged to be payable under
an agreement dated 13th June 2016 (the “Disposal
Agreement”) pursuant to which Lucky Famous
purchased from Fragrant River 51% of the issued
share capital of AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited.

e R R M

EFEAETEBERQAAIETF
BAEEDRRAEZERIE
MEHEBERRZEERE DAL
BIHEDRA —EFD RE
(A pEEFEAERE#
TR EBEWEHEFEAEG
BIVHMEAETRAHTEA
EEANDHAELHER FH
E-ZE-—WUFRAZHREC
E-AFRA-HIE HAF-

BER_FT-—OFNLA=+
NAFEERRREERBR-
BREEHEARRFR RERET
BAEERREH(EFEE)EA
EIE A QB E N AR H
T REREREAEEGLH B
ERBAEBEARNOEREER
MBARERE TREFTE
ANEERUKEAE L EH
TEFEATBEBXMNEMNESE
H) BT B BOA e

REZEBERANER  RER
BAHETREAETEN LR
BERYBARBRE -EFQ
AR BERETFTEAETRR
HRBEROBBEEAEEER
mEBKgAEE-

RZZE-—NFELA+A~A8"
Lucky Famous Limited ([Lucky
Famous]) M R A J&Z £ ¥/ & )T
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BRABARARARRRBEFLR 2
KEFPBEIIMEMAMERER
BEAHMAE-ZTE—XR"F~NA+=
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Lucky Famous[m & )L & § & Bf
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

48 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(e) (Continued)

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature
to predict the outcome of the said claims made
against Fragrant River and the Company. Without
admitting any liability to Lucky Famous under the
Disposal Agreement, the Adjustment Amount of
HK$20.4 million was recognised as at contingent
consideration payable in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2018, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to
the Directors to be pending against either the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

49 COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating leases commitments

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

48

49

R OR EF A (#@)
(e) (#&)

REZEBRERZER HEBEE
FER S ETRARAM L
REZHRAIBARBBRE - &
BB EREEWE T HLucky
Famous Z XM EEMATIZ T
i % 4 %820,400,0007 7T E
HE-_ZE—N\FXA=+HI1
FERAVYBHREPERAE
e ARE -

BREXFHBEEN RZF—\F
NA=ZTH REEmRM XRF
FEHERMMBARYE@BGERNE
RARRFARLRE -

T IE

(a) EEMHEAIE
R-Z—NEFAAZ+EB &
CERBETTHEZELEHE
T 4% 30 5K 2k 4 2 & (K70 &
R@EMT -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Land and buildings T REF

Not later than one year B —F 9,139 6,274

Later than one year and not later BB —F &K TNHBBERF
than five years 9,616 2,046
18,755 8,320

Certain department store counters and retail
stores include payment obligations with rental
varied with gross revenue. The additional rental
payable (contingent rents) is determined generally
by applying pre-determined percentages to future
revenue less minimum lease payment of the
respective leases.
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Notes to the Consolidate

d Financial Statements

e R R M

49 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 49 EIE @)

(b) Other commitments (b) E b E

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had commitments
contracted but not provided for in these consolidated

RZFE-NFXNA=1tH XK
SECFTHOERRIEEHRE M

financial statements as follows: BmERBEHBEZAEDNT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET
Purchase of film rights and BEEYMEMEY
production of films (Note i) e (FT &) 124,857 73,310
Licence agreement R 155 &% 271 2,586
Note i: Included in the commitment of purchase of film MeaEi RN —N\FXA=Z+H:t

rights and production of films, an amount of
approximately HK$61,422,000 is related to the
joint operation arrangements of film production
as at 30th June 2018 (2017: HK$690,000).

50 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 50
ARRANGEMENTS

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

ABEEBEERERER R
fF 4 % §) & #8 4961,422,000
BT (Z=F — £ 4 : 690,000
BILERFEFZ2AER
HEAE -

AREEHERH

RZE-NERA=1TH X&H
RETAHBEZEERENHRK
Bz xEHERBELBOT

2018 2017

—E-N\E -t F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FAET

Not later than one year B —F 804 1,202
Later than one year and not later than i@ —F M BB L F

five years 48 774

852 1,976
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51 BBEALTZR S
(a) Tenancy Agreements (a) THE W=
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
i) Rental expenses paid to ) RMEFDERERR
Universe Property Investment RA(BEARAR—%
Limited which is wholly-owned EXZ28BAZH
by a director of the Company Z2He A= (KiEa)
(Note a) 2,928 2,928
i) Rental expenses paid to Sam i) M=EBEREMXERAQ
Fung Global Limited which is Al(BARAI—%E
wholly-owned by the spouse of EvEBRBEE2EHR)
a director of the Company TNz
(Note b) (¥ 5EDb) = 323
Note a: B tEa :

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement with Universe Property
Investment Limited (“UPI"”), a company owned by Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil, the executive Director of the Company,
for renting (1) an industrial unit and (2) 5 carparking spaces
of an industrial building for warehouse, ancillary office
and carparking uses in Kwai Chung from 25th February
2017 to 24th February 2018, with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which were
arrived at following arm’s length negotiation between
the Group and UPI with reference to the rental valuation
performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent property valuer, as at 29th September 2016
which reflected the then market rent.

The Tenancy Agreement was renewed for the period
from 25th February 2018 to 24th February 2021, with a
monthly rental of HK$244,000 being arrived at following
arm’s length negotiation between the Group and UPI
with reference to the rental valuation performed by
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent
property valuer, as at 22nd January 2018 which reflected
the then market rent.

@ Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Tenancy Agreements (Continued)
Note a: (Continued)
As at 30th June 2018 and 30th June 2017, the Group

had total future minimum lease payments to UPI under
non- cancellable operating lease falling due as follows:

51

e R R M

BE AT ZXZ @

(a)

HE W=
M ita: (8)

R-2-NFXA=+AR-%
—tEXAZ+ A ARERET
THHCEAEENEFNER
AzARBERENRBEZ D
BRI

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T FTAT
Not later than one year B —F 2,928 1,952
Later than one year and not later than  #38 — {8 ~ 88 1 &£
five years 4,880 -
7,808 1,952
Note b: BT b -

CJFS, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Sam
Fung Global Limited, a company owned by the spouse
of Ms. Cheng Hei Yu, the former executive director of
the Company and an employee of the Group after her
resignation for renting an office unit in Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong from 1st November 2015 to 31st October
2017, with a monthly rental of HK$100,000 (the “CJFS
Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived at the arm’s
length negotiation by the relevant parties with reference
to the market rent. Ms. Cheng Hei Yu ceased to be a
related party of Group following her resignation as an
executive director of the Company on 7th October 2016.

ARRREZEWNB AR ERE
FEARAFNATES REFTR
MEAEEREENEEMAL L Z
EEBEEZAR=ZBEREEIERAD
AgBE-_E-AFE T A2
E_T-tHF+A=FT-BLM
A 2 100,000 ;T H B i R & B
TR AR AETEMTLEES
wE(PEEERERRE])  %ip
FHEBEITOTKE2ETSES
BATHEBREE BRMLEIRZ
E-RETALBHERARAHR
TEFEITBRASEBEAL-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 51 BBEALTZRZ @
(b) Details of key management compensation b) TE2EEEWMM 2
%
Key management personnel are those management TZ2EBABERBEGE &
with responsibility for planning, directing and TAREHAERESH 2 ERE -
controlling the activities of the Group.
2018 2017
-NF —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHES
employee benefits & 7 30,222 18,375
Post-employment benefits & BRIk T 36 44
Share-based compensation B 17 ¥ B 3,354 -
33,612 18,419

(c) Transactions with an associate

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the
Group purchased optical products from HK
Optical for approximately HK$3,891,000 (2017:
HK$5,103,000), and sold optical products to HK
Optical for approximately HK$1,782,000 (2017:
HK$1,413,000). The Group also paid licence and
management fee to HK Optical for approximately
HK$1,313,000 (2017: HK$2,120,000).

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

On 15th August 2017, Universe Film (Holdings)
Limited, direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Universe Films Distribution Company
Limited, indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, disposed of the entire equity interest in
DPP to Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the Chairman
and an executive Director of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$294,000. Details of the net
liabilities of DPP at the date of disposal are set
out in note 47.

(e) Motor Vehicle Acquisition

On 4th December 2017, Universe Property
Investment Limited, a company owned by
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the Chairman and
executive Director of the Company, disposed of
a motor vehicle to Universe Watch & Jewellery
Group Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
HK$1,060,000.

On 25th January 2018, Mr. Alvin Lam, the general
manager of the film production and the film
distribution of the Group and the younger brother
of Mr. Daneil Lam, disposed of a motor vehicle
to Universe Watch & Jewellery Group Company
Limited, at a consideration of HK$118,000.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, no other material
related party transactions have been entered into by
the Group. The transactions were carried out after
negotiations between the Group and the related parties
in the ordinary course of business.

51

e R R M

BE AT ZXZ @

(d HE—FEHBR A
W 2

RZE—-—tFEFNA+HAB
KRAREEZ2ZEMB QA
Universe Film (Holdings) Limited
HARNAHEZEMBRARAE
FERBETARARALE &G
MBRENEHBRETARRA
TERATEEM PR EL
RAE &294,0008 7T - B I &0 B
HERLERHNEEFEF
15 8N M EE47 -

(e) JTEUWE

R-Z—tF+-AMmA " @
A DT E R RITEF AP
RERBAMNAAEFTYE
BEBBRATRAR A M
E2EWBATETHER
B A RA R EE R E A
1,060,0007% JT °

R—ZZE—-—NE—A=-_+HB"
MPEEE(AEBEYEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S B S

52 COMPANY — LEVEL BALANCE SHEET

52 AEIEHEER/BR

2018 2017
—E-N\#§ —T—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o= FET FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 72,096 72,096
Property, plant and equipment VERE V& 477 843
72,573 72,939
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  EUY B A 7 1A 925,275 936,292
Deposits paid BfE & 383 383
Prepayments and other T8 FRIE K H e UL
receivables WA 1,305 1,371
Cash and cash equivalents RekB&EEY 139 3,044
927,102 941,090
Total assets wEE 999,675 1,014,029
EQUITY EH
Equity attributable to the AAGREBEAELESR
owners of the Company
Share capital fi% 2 25 9,066 8,633
Share premium B An m (B 27(b) 928,358 893,345
Other reserves Hih 27(b) 112,429 116,005
Accumulated losses Rt E 1B 27(b) (264,454) (36,640)
Total equity wmER 785,399 981,243
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings ER= - 10,000
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEE 28 82
28 10,082
Current liabilities REBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENGI R 211,803 3,136
Accrued charges st 2,445 3,668
Borrowings ER= - 15,900
214,248 22,704
Total liabilities “e R 214,276 32,786
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 999,675 1,014,029
Net current assets REBEERAE 712,854 918,386
Total assets less current HMEERTHAER
liabilities 785,427 991,325
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

COMPANY — LEVEL BALANCE SHEET

(Continued)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28th September 2018.

Lam Kit Sun
Director

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Director

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

ON 26th July 2018, the Company was informed by
the Mr. Chan Wai Sing, Vincent (the “Vendor”) that
the Vendor, Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, (“Mr. Lam") the chairman and executive
director of the Company, (the “Offeror”) and Mr. Lam as
guarantor of the Offeror entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed
to sell and the Offeror has conditionally agreed to
purchase the 251,745,000 shares of the Company at
a consideration of HK$128,389,950. Completion is
conditional upon the fulfilment of certain conditions as
set out under the sub-section headed “Conditions” under
the section headed “The Sale and Purchase Agreement”
of the joint announcement of the Company dated 31st
July 2018 (the "Joint Announcement”).
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53 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 17th September 2018, it was proposed by the Board
and approved by the shareholders at the special general
meeting that: (i) the amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company be reduced by
HK$893,345,000; (ii) the credit arising from the share
premium reduction be transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company; and (iii) the Board be
authorised to make a distribution of a special dividend
of HK$0.3 per share up to HK$271,989,682.80 of the
amount standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
account of the Company, pro rata to the shareholders of
the Company (“the Distribution”).

The Distribution is subject to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement becoming unconditional, up to the date of
this report, the completion of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement is still conditional.

Further details are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 31st July 2018 and 17th September
2018.
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HE OB ADR KO EEREFER
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Principal Properties Held For Investment Purposes

FERERZEZEEYE

HONG KONG BB

Location Lot number Type Lease term
it B i By BEE HEFH
Woodland House 1-5, Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential 2047
Woodlands Villa, part, 1511, 1516, 1518, 1519,

121 Tong Fuk Village, 1522 and 1523 in Demarcation

Tong Fuk, Lantau Island, District 328

New Territories, Hong Kong

R IR N L E 4 E 32847 B F= ZEMEF
ERERA 1215 £ 151058 &F 23 1561158 -

MRt Bl B AR R 1 =65 1516%% * 151857 + 151955 -

1522 8% & 1523 5%
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFMBRE

S,
RESULTS E
Year ended 30th June
BEARA=THLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-0\§ ZT—tF ZE—R"% ZT-1fF ZZT-W0%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT FTET FTET FER
(restated) (restated)
(E75) (E7)
Revenue from continuing KREBERLEB Y
operations W% 86,673 195,717 134,961 70,265 197,299
(Loss)/profit before income tax K BHER L LK 2
from continuing operations BRETEH AT (EE)/
i (79,700) (121,332) (169,547) 198,296 (18,472)
Income tax (expense)/credit  KEHELLEK 2
from continuing operations FERES)/
il 3,586 (6,154) 28,959 (37,366) (5,855)
(Loss)/profit attributable to KRBERRFEA
the equity holders of e (EBE) /% T
the Company (including (BREERIEESE
discontinued operations) ES) (135,284) (114,328) (140,790) 161,956 (24,327)
Special cash dividend HAlRek a8 - - - - -
Proposed final dividend BIRASHRES = - - - _
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 30th June
RAA=tH
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-0\§ ZE—tF% ZE—R"% ZE-hF ZZT-I%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TEL THT TET
Total assets BERE 1,081,443 1,456,934 1,150,731 739,628 394,764
Total liabilities MEE (164,470) (443,407) (398,810) (167,361) (94,865)
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